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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

THE BLACK & DECKER CiDRPDRATION AiND SUBSIDIARIES
| I

|
Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Data |

Year Ended December ﬁ?l ',l

* Sales U |

Operating Income | ||

Net Earnings from Continuing Operations

. Net Earnings from Continuing Operatibns Per Common Share —
Assuming Dilution | ‘l

Net Earnings from Continuing Operati()ns Per Common Share,
Excluding Specified Items — Assumlng Dilution (a)

Dividends Per Share | ||

Shares Used in Computing Diluted Earnings Per Share (in mllllons)

2006

$ 6,447.3

W N

740.4
486.1

6.55
6.55

1.52
74.2

2005 2004
$ 6,523.7 S 5,398.4
794.9 613.2
532.2 430.7
S 654 $ 53l
S 673 $ 531,
S 112 s 84
81.4 81.1

| [
{a) Fhe calculation of this amount for 2005 appears on page eight of this report, under Reconciliation of Nor-GAAP Financial Measures.

|
m Generated a record $533 million of free cash flow

. T .
m Continued to demonstr"ate clnsapl;ned stewardship of capital:

I
® Acquired Vector Products Inc., addlng a new growth platform in consumer portable power products

m Repurchased 15% of outstanding shares

® |ncreased dlwdend‘by 36% '[E

m Reported a modest 3%|declrne in EPS excluding certain items in the prior year, despite a weakening economy and severe

commodity cost |nﬂat|0n ||

m Grew EPS at more than]a 20% comp(")und annual rate over a five-year period

I N ..
& Developed new products with rneanlnﬁgful innovation across the company
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BLACK & DECKER CONSUMER PRODUCTS\ Wy
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DEWALT HIGH-PERFORMANCE INDUSTRIAL

PORTER-CABLE PROFESSIO;AL POWER TODLS .porter-cable: com

DELTA MACHINERY b
I i

n
com|

KWIKSET SECURITY HARDWI\RE

k

CTS - '}." nhardware!com (
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BALDWIN HARDWARE PRODI

WEISER SECURITY HARDWARE

PRICE PFISTER PLUMBING PRODUCTS T T Rmes ‘

EMHART FASTENING SYSTEMS CTTAIIIER

| .
“ QUIPMENT QI

DEWALT's new 36-volt line, including the
IMPACT WRENCH (on the cover), gives
professionals the power of corded toals
without the cord. DEWALT conducted

intense end-user research, tested'

thousands of battery cells, and built tools [
from the ground up to fully utilize the power
density of lithium-ion chemistry. The result
was a line of seven tools, using exclusive
Nano™ technology, that work as fast as

— or faster than — corded tools.

The new DEWALT PAVEMENT BREAKER

{right} delivers maximum performance and
reduces user fatigue with SHOCKS™ active
vibration control.




LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

Black & Decker faced a difficult business
environment in 2006. Economic growth
slowed in the United States, and housing
activity decreased dramatically. At the
same time, prices of key commodities
continued to rise, in some cases doubling.
As a result, after four years of outstanding
results, we were unable to extend our
string of record sales and earnings.

While disappointed with these results, we
made excellent progress on our four-
faceted strategy to drive future success:
innovation, structural cost improvement, -
cash generation, and stewardship of
capital.

The most critical aspect of this strategy
is delivering meaningful innovation to
end-users. Qur “new-product machine”
is in high gear, and you will see several
great examples on the following pages.
These innovative solutions reinforce the

"strength of our leading brands and build

an extremely loyal end-user base. New
products also benefit our distribution
partners, enabling us to serve a broad
range of channels effectively. Our product
vitality index remains above 35%, and we
are recognized as a leader in leveraging
research and development resources.

The cost and cash generation components
of our strategy complement marketplace
leadership in delivering financial results to
our stockholders. We continue to reduce
costs, both in manufacturing and in selling,
general, and administrative expenses.

In addition to lowering spending, we
shifted our cost base away from fixed
costs by reducing vertical integration.

We generated $533 million of free cash

~ flow this year, setting a record for the fifth

straight year.

The final element of our strategy —
disciplined stewardship of capital — was
another bright spot in 2006. In March,
we acquired Vector Products, Inc., giving
us a new growth platform in consumer

portable power products. Vector is a great
fit with the Black & Decker® brand, and
we expect this business to deliver good
financial returns. In addition to Vector, we
continued to pursue opportunities across
all of our business segments. However, we
have strict financial guidelines, and prices
on a number of potential acquisitions were
bid up well above what we considered

fair value, In contrast, we helieve that

our stock was often undervalued this

year, relative to historical valuations,

peer companies, acquisition targets, and
our strong cash generation and growth
prospects. Therefore, we invested heavily
in our stock at very attractive prices,
repurchasing 11.8 million, or 15%, of

the outstanding shares. In addition, we
increased our dividend for the third time
since 2002, this time by 36%. While our
net debt has increased somewhat, we
continue to meet our objective of solid
investment-grade debt ratings.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Due to the challenging U.S. environment,
sales decreased 1%. Sales outside the
U.S. were very strong, but could not
compensate for the slower domestic
business.

Our operating margin also decreased

in 2006, primarily because of severe
commodity cost inflation, which
overshadowed successes in reducing
expenses and realizing synergies from
acquired businesses. Lower sales and
production volumes also hurt margins

in the second half of the year, but our
strategic fixed cost reductions over

the tast five years helped to limit this
impact. Despite lower sales and margins,
earnings per share decreased only 3%,
excluding one-time items in the prior year,
due to significant accretion from share
repurchases.

BLACK & DECKER 1
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The four great brand‘s in this busmless have distinct identities, but a common approach — meeting the needs of
end-users through meanmgful innovation. DEWALT tackles obstacles that professional contractors encounter on
the jobsite, from cumbersome p'dvirer cords to motor-clogging masonry dust. Porter-Cable and Delta Machmery
have a long heritage lof making woodworkers more productive, and continue to rejuvenate their product lines.

|

DEWALT's new line of ANGLE GRINDERS
(above) features an exclusive dust ejection
system that dramatically | |mproves the
longevity of the tool,

Porter-Cable's COMPACT BELT SANDER
(left) provides the professional woodworker
outstanding size, weight, and ergonomics,
but still delivers the power needed for
hardwoods.




’ Our flagship Black & Decker business delivers powerful solutions to consumers aI’OLfnd the house, in the yard,
and in the garage. By solving real problems, our power tools and accessories business has built the trust and
loyalty that keep the brands strong.

The ALLIGATOR® lopper (above) combines
the power of a chainsaw with the familiar
scissors-ike motion of a manual lopper in a
unique cutting toal, v

The AUTOWRENCH™ handheld power
adjustable wrench (left) makes it easy to
work in hard-to-reach or tight spaces with
the convenience of one-touch adjustment.

The SIMPLE START™ battery booster
(right}, from the recently acquired Vector
business, charges the battery from the
comfort of the car, without the hassle of
jumper cables,

BLACK & DECKER
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HARDWARE AND HOME{IMBROVE

|l
This business has Ionslg been a Ieclalgier in technology, styres and finishes for security hardware and plur‘nblng
products. It has recenﬂy taken acllvz?ntage of its unique product breadth to develop collections of matchmg
locksets and faucets.|In 2007, KW|kset is launching a product suite with revolutionary technology that brlngs

a new level of personalization anq lconvenience to residential security.

P

The SMARTKEY™ system {above) makes

it simple and secure to re-key a fock,

i ol without removing it from the door or calling
' a locksmith. Its innovative design saves

{ : money and time while providing unparalleled
Securiy.

)

The SMARTSCAN™ sysiem (left) combines
advanced biometric technology with
Kwikset’s proven mechanical security
platform. It is easy to install, program and
use — simply swipe your finger across a
sensor to open the deadhbolt.

The traditional country-themed ASHFIELD™
line {right), one of the Architecturally
Inspired Collections™ by Price Pfister and
Kwikset, makes it easy to coordinate your
home.

BLACK & DECKER



Emhart Teknologies reduces the overall product assembly costs of its customersn by antlupatlng thelr need
and dehvermg technology and market-driven solutions. Its flexible global organlzatlon proactwely addresses the
demands of the automotive sector and a wide range of other industries. ! | |
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and Chief Financial Ofﬁcer” |E
PAUL F. McBRIDE Semior Vice President -

Human Resources and Corporate lmtfatwes

!
CHRISTINA M. McMULLEN Vice PFESJdEI’]f
and Controfler !

JAMES R. RASKIN Vice President -

|
Business Development ! ‘

MARK M. ROTHLEITNER Vrce President
Investor Relations and Treclsurer

NATALIE A. SHIELDS Vjcel‘PreSfdent and
Corporate Secretary I

CTORS

[BUSINESSISEGMENTS

Power Tools and Accessories
THOMAS D. KOOS Group Vice President
President, Consumer Products Group

JOHN W. SCHIECH Group Vice President
President, Industrial Products Group

BRUCE W. BROOKS Vice President
President, Canstruction Tools, Industrial
Products Group

LES H. IRELAND Vice President
President, Europe/Middle East/Africa

STEPHEN F. REEVES Vice President
Vice President, Global Finance

ROBERT |. ROWAN Vice President
President, Power Tools and Accessories,
Consumer Products Group

EDWARD J. SCANLON Vice President
President, Commercial Qperations,
North and Scuth America

BEN S. SIHOTA Vice President
President, Asia — Pacific

Hardware and Home Improvement
JAMES T. CAUDILL Group Vice President
President, Hardware and Home Improvement

Fastening and Assembly Systems
MICHAEL A. TYLL Group Vice President
President, Fastening and Assembly Systems

NOLAN D. ARCHIBALD Chairman,
President, and Chief Executive Officer of the
Corporation

NORMAN R. AUGUSTINE Retired Chairmarn
and Chief Executive Officer
Lockheed Martin Corporation

BARBARA L. BOWLES Vice Chair
Profit Investment Management

GEQRGE W. BUCKLEY Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer
3M Company

M. ANTHONY BURNS Chairman Emerrtus
Ryder System, Inc.

KIM B. CLARK President

Brigham Young University — ldaho

MANUEL A. FERNANDEZ Chairrnan)Emerjtus
Gartner, Inc.

BENJAMIN H. GRISWOLD, IV Senior Partner
Brown Advisory

ANTHONY LUISO Retired President -
Campofrio Spain
Campofrio Alimentacicn, S.A.

ROBERT L. RYAN Retired Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
Medtronic Inc.

MARK H. WILLES Retired Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer
The Times Mirror Company

ECONCILIATIO N[OF[NON-

[islannuallReportiprovidesicertainl lnformation ﬁm&ﬂmmﬂmﬁﬂﬁﬂ

P

statementstprepared]in] acc|ordance Lwith] ggngrally diaccountingyprinciplestinithelUnited]
St (O, Tl o o e i OARP (el cesinyes & e by S8 milss.
YreConciliationtoghe) mosi g MWW@M
Neffearningslfromlcontinuingfo for 2005} Eﬁmm%ﬁﬁiﬂm

orgSoVz3]oerdsharelonlal dll‘uted EEBBII’;] computmg ﬁimmmnma,ﬁm

heloliowinglamountslfrom neearnings) fr,grn =@§E@&iﬂmﬂ,

mg}@ﬂﬁ:;m,ﬂiﬁuﬁ]m Setement (355.0m|II|on

expenseltollepaiiate)

0f‘5532.8 mllllon
($622.7capi

& ]

ﬁﬁlﬁl@ﬂm (excludm proceeds

us calcul
tal

forelg'n earnings nde?the mmmmm

ated &yﬁr@mmm

ﬁiﬂmmn,ﬁﬂ!s
mmﬁa@@m@l@

e e e o oon

|
"8 BLACK & SECKER I |




UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED COMMISSION FILE NUMBER

December 31, 2006 1-1553

THE BLACK & DECKER CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Maryland 52-0248090
(State of Incorporation) (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)
Towson, Maryland 21286
(Address of principal executive offices) . (Zip Code)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: 410-716-3900

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, par value $.50 per share New York Stock Exchange
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check markif theregistrantis a well-known seasoned issuer, asdefined in Rule 405 of the Secu rities Act.
Yes X No___

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or
Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes__  No _X_

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section
13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding twelve months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes X No___

tndicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to ltem 405 of Regulation S-K
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tive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part lll of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Form 10-K. __

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, ora non-accelerated
filer. See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” inRule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (checkone):
Large accelerated filer_X  Accelerated filer ___  Non-accelerated filer __

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).
Yes __ No _X_

The aggregate market value of the votmg stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of June 30, 2006,
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The exhibit index as required by lterm 601(a) of Regulation S-Kis included in ltem 15 of Part IV of this report.

Documents Incorporated by Reference: Portions of the registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement for the
2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorporated by reference in Part ill of this Report.




PART I

matlon about the dlscontmued European security
hardware business, see the discussion in Note 3
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8 of Part Il of this report.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

(a) General Development |
of Business -

The Black & Decker Corporation (col1ect|vely with
its subsidiaries, the Corporaticn), incorporated in
Maryland in 1910, is a leading global-manufacturer
and rnarketer of power tools and accessories,
hardware and home improvement products, and
technology-based fastening systems. With products
and services marketed in over 100 countries, the
Corporation enjoys worldwide recognition of its
strong brand names and a superior reputation for
quality, design, innovation, and value. ’

The Corporation is one of the world's leading
producers of power tools, power tool accesso-
ries, and residential security hardware, and the
Corporation's product lines hold {eading market
share positions in these industries. The Corpora-
tion is also a major global supplier of engineered
fastening and assembly systems. The Corpora-
tion is one of the leading producers of faucets
in North America. These assertions are-based on
total volume of sales of products compared to
the total market for those products and are sup-
ported by market research studies sponsored by
the Corporation as well as independent industry
statistics available through various trade organiza-
tions and periodicals, internally generated market
data, and other sources.

Durlng the first quarter of 2006, the Corporation
acquired Vector Products, Inc. (Vector). The ad-
dition of Vector to the Corporation’s Power Tools
and Accessories segment allows the Corporation
to offer customers a broader range'of products.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, the-Corpora-
tion acquired the Porter-Cable and Delta Tools
Group from Pentair, inc. The Porter- Cable and
Delta Tools Group {also referred to. herein as the
“Tools Group") included the Porter-Cable, Delta,
DeVilbiss Air Power Company, Oldham Saw, and
FLEX businesses. The Corporation sold the FLEX
business in November 2005.

In Novermber 2005, the Corporatlon completed

the sale of DOM security hardware. In January -

2004, the Corporation completed the sale of two
European security hardware businesses, Corbin
and NEMEF. The divested businesses are reflected
as discontinued operations in the Consolidated
Financia! Statements included in item 8 of Part
Il of this report, and as such, operating results,
assets and liabilities, and cash flows of the dis-
continued European security hardware business
have been reported separately from the continuing
operations of the Corporation. For additional infor-

(b) Financial Information About
Business Segments

The Corporation operates in three reportable
business segments: Power Tools and Accessories,
including consumer and industrial power tools
and accessories, lawn and garden tools, electric
cleaning, automotive, and lighting products, and
product service; Hardware and Home Improvement,
including security hardware and plumbing products;
and Fastening and Assembly Systems. For additional
information about these segments, see Note 18
of Notes to Consoclidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8 of Part |l, and Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations included in Item 7 of
Part Il of this report.

(¢) Narrative Description
‘of the Business

The foflowing is a brief description of each of the
Corporation's reportable business segments.

POWER TOOLS AND -ACCESSORIES

The Power Tools and Accessories segment has
worldwide responsibility for the manufacture
and sale of consumer (home use) and industrial
corded and cordless electric power tools and equip-
ment, lawn and garden tools, consumer portable
power products, home products, accessories and
attachments for power tools, and product service.
In addition, the Power Tools and Accessories
segment has responsibility for the sale of security
hardware to customers in Mexico, Central America,
the Caribbean, and South America; for the sale
of plumbing products to customers outside of
the United States and Canada; and for sales of
househoid products principally in' Europe and
Brazil.

Power tools and equipment include drills, screw-
drivers, impact wrenches and drivers, hammers,
wet/dry. vacuums, lights, radio/chargers, saws,
grinders, band saws, plate joiners, jointers, lathes,
dust management systems, routers, ptaners
sanders, benchtop and stationary machinery, air
tools, building instruments, air compressors, gen-
erators, laser products, jobsite security systems,
and WORKMATE® project centers and related
products. Lawn and garden tools include hedge
trimmers, string trimmers, lawn mowers, edgers,
pruners, shears; shrubbers, blower/vacuums,
power sprayers, pressure washers, and related

BLACK. & DECKER 1




accessories. Consumer portable power prod-

ucts include inverters, jump-starters, vehicle

battery chargers, rechargeable spotlights, and
other related products. Home products include
stick, canister and hand-held vacuums; flexible
flashlights; and wet scrubbers. Power tool ac-
cessories include drill bits, hammer bits, router
bits, hacksaws and blades, circular saw blades,
jig and reciprocating saw blades, screwdriver
bits and quick-change systems, bonded and
other abrasives, and worksite tool belts and bags.
Product service provides replacement parts and
repair and maintenance of power tools, equip-
ment, and lawn and garden tools.

Power tools, lawn and garden tools, portabie
power products; home products, and acces-
sories are marketed around-the world under
the BLACK & DECKER name' as well as other
frademarks, and trade names, including, with-
out limitation, BLACK & DECKER; ORANGE AND
BLACK COLOR SCHEME,; POWERFUL SOLUTIONS;
FIRESTORM; GELMAX COMFORT GRIP; MOUSE;
BULLSEYE: PIVOT DRIVER; STORMSTATION;
WORKMATE; BLACK & DECKER XT; VERSAPAK;
SMARTDRIVER; QUANTUM PRO; CYCLONE;
NAVIGATOR; DRAGSTER; SANDSTORM;
PROJECTMATE; PIVOTPLUS; QUICK CLAMP;
SIGHT LINE; CROSSFIRE; CROSSHAIR; 360°;
QUATTRO; DECORMATE; LASERCROSS; AUTO-
WRENCH; SHOPMASTER BY DELTA; DEWALT,;
YELLOW AND BLACK COLOR SCHEME; GUAR-
ANTEED TOUGH; XRP; SITELOCK; PORTER-
CABLE; GRAY AND BLACK COLOR SCHEME;
TIGER SAW; PORTA-BAND; POWERBACK;
EASY AIR; JOB BOSS; DELTA; THE DELTA
TRIANGLE LOGO; UNISAW: BIESEMEYER;
BLACK AND WHITE COLOR SCHEME; DAPC;
EMGLO; AFS AUTOMATIC FEED SPOOL; GROOM
‘N' EDGE; HEDGE HOG; GRASS HOG; EDGE HOG;
LEAF HOG; LAWN HOG; STRIMMER; REFLEX;
VAC ‘N’ MULCH: EXCELL; ALLIGATOR; TRIM
‘N’ EDGE; HDL; TOUGH TRUCK; FLEX TUBE;
VECTOR; ELECTROMATE; SIMPLE START; DUST-
BUSTER; SNAKELIGHT; SCUMBUSTER; STEAM-
BUSTER; CYCLOPRO; SWEEP & COLLECT,; CLICK
& GO; B&D; BULLET;, QUANTUM PRO; PIRANHA,;
SCORPION; QUICK CONNECT; PILOT POINT;
RAPID LOAD; ROCK CARBIDE; TOUGH CASE; MAX
LIFE: RAZOR: OLDHAM; DEWALT SERVICENET,
DROP BOX EXPRESS; and GUARANTEED REPAIR
COST (GRC).

The composition of the Corporation’s sales by
product groups for 2006, 2005, and 2004 is
inctuded in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in ltem 8 of Part |l
of this report. Within each product group shown,
there existed no individual product that accounted
for greater than 109% of the Corporation’s consoli-
dated sales for 2006, 2005, or 2004.

2 BLACK &-DECKER

The Corporation’s product service program sup-
ports its power tools and lawn and garden tools.
Replacement parts and product repair services are
available through a network of company-operated
service centers, which are identified and listed in
product information material generally included in
product packaging. At December 31, 2006, there
were approximately 125 such service centers, of
which roughly three-quarters were tocated in the
United States. The remainder was located around
the world, primarily in Canada and Asia. These
company-operated service centers are supple-
mented by several hundred authorized service
centers operated by independent local owners.
The Corporation also operates reconditioning
centers in which power tools, lawn and garden
tools, and electric cleaningand lighting products
are reconditioned and then re-sold through numer-
ous company-operated factory outlets and service

centers and various independent distributors. ’

Most of the Corporation’s consumer power tools,
lawn and garden tools, and electric cleaning,
automotive, and lighting products sold in the
United States carry a two-year warranty, pursu-

-ant to which the consumer can return defective

products during the two years following the
purchase in exchange for a replacement product
or repair at no cost to the consumer. Most of
the Corporation’s industrial power tools sold in
the United States carry a one-year service war-
ranty and a three-year warranty for manufacturing
defects. Products soid outside of the United States
generally have varying warranty arrangements,
depending upon local market conditions and laws
and regulations.

The Corporation’s product offermgs in the Power
Tools and Accessories segment are sold primarily
to retailers, wholesalers, distributors, and jobbers,
although some discontinued or reconditioned pow-
er tools, lawn and garden tools, consumer portable
power products, and electric cleaning and light-
ing products are sold through company-operated
service centers and factory outlets directly to end
users. Sales to two of the segment’s customers,
The Home Depot and Lowe's Home Improvement
Warehouse, accounted for greater than 109, of the
Corporation’s consolidated sales for 2006, 2005,
and 2004. For additional information regarding
sales to The Home Depot and Lowe's Home
Improvement Warehouse, see Note 18 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements included in
Iltem 8 of Part Il of this report.

The principal materials used in the manufacturing
of products in the Power Tools and Accessories
segment are batteries, copper, aluminum, steel,
certain electronic components, engines, and plas-
tics. These materials are used in various forms.
For example, aluminum or steel may be used. in
the form of wire, sheet, bar, and strip stock.




The materials used in the various manufacturing
processes are purchased on the open market, and
the maijority are available through multiple sources
and are in adequate supply. The Corporation. has
experienced no significant work stoppages to date
as a result of shortages of materials.

The Corporation has certain long-term commit-
ments for the purchase of various component
parts and raw materials and believes that it is
unlikely that any of these agreements would be
terminated prematurely. Alternate sources of sup-
ply at competitive prices are available for most
items for which long-term commitments exist.
Because the Corporation is a leading producer of
power tools and accessories, in a limited number
of instances, the magnitude of the Corporation’s
purchases of certain items is of such significance
that a change in the Corporation’s estabiished
supply relationship may cause disruption in.the
marketplace and/or a temporary price |mbalance
While the Corporatlon believes that the termination
of any of these commitments would not have a
mateérial adverse effect on the' operating results of
the Power Tools and Accessories segment over the
long term, the termination of a limited number of
these commitments would have an adverse effect
over the short term. In this regard, the Corporation
defines long term as a period of time in excess
of 12 months and short term as a pericd of time
under 12 months.

Principal manufacturing and assembly facilities of
the power tools, lawn and garden tools, electric
cleaning and lighting products, and accessories
businessesinthe United States aretocated in Jackson,
Tennessee; Decatur, Arkansas; Shelbyville, Ken-
tucky; and Tampa, Florida. The principal distri-
bution facilities in the United States, other than
those located at the manufacturing and assemnbly
facilities listed above, are located in Fort Mill,
South Carolina, and Rialto, California.

Principal manufacturing and assembly facilities
of the power tools, lawn and garden tools, elec-
tric cleaning and lighting products, and acces-
sories businesses outside of the United States
are located in Suzhou, China; Usti nad Labem,
Czech Republic; Buchlberg, Germany; Perugia,
Italy; Spennymoor, England; Reynosa, Mexico,
and Uberaba, Brazil. In addition to the principal
facilities described above, the manufacture and
assembly of products for the Power Tools and
Accessories segment also occurs at the facility
of its 50%-owned joint venture located in Shen
Zhen, China. The principal distribution facilities
outside of the Unitéd States, other than those
{ocated at the manufacturing facilities listed above,
consist of a central-European distribution center
in Tongeren, Belgium, and facilities in Aarschot,
Belgium; Northampton, England; Dubai, United
Arab Emirates; and Brockville, Canada.

For additional information with respect to these
and other properties owned or leased by the Cor-
poration, see ltem 2, “Properties.”

The Corporation holds various patents and licens-
es on many of its products and processes in the
Power Tools and Accessories segment. Although
these patents and licenses are important, the Cor-
poration is not materially dependent on such pat-
ents or licenses with respect to its operations.

The Corporation holds various trademarks that are
employed in its businesses and operates under
various trade names, some of which*are stated
previously. The Corporation believes that these
trademarks and trade names are important to the
rarketing and distribution of its products.

A significant portion of the Corporation’s sales
in the Power Tools and Accessories segment is
derived from the do-it-yourseif and home modern-
ization.markets, which generally are not seasonal
in nature. However, sales of certain consumer and
industrial power tools tend to be higher during the
period immediately preceding the Christmas gift-
giving season, while the sales of most lawn and
garden tools are at their peak during the late winter
and early spring period. Most of the Corporation’s
other product lines within this segment generally
are not seasonal ir nature, but are influenced by
other general economic trends.

The Corporation is one of the world’s leaders in
the manufacturing and marketing.of portable
power tools, electric lawn and garden tools, and
accessories. Worldwide, the markets in which
the Corporation sells these products are highly
competitive on the basis of price, quality, and af-
ter-sale service. A number of competing domestic
and foreign companies are strong, well-established
manufacturers that compete on a global basis.
Some of these companies manufacture products
that are competitive with a number of the Corpo-
ration’s product lines. Other competitors restrict
their operations to fewer categories, and some
offer only a narrow range of competitive products.
Competition from certain of these manufacturers
has been intense in recent years and is expected
to continue.

HARDWARE AND HOME IMPROVEMENT

The Hardware and Home Improvement segment
has worldwide responsibility for the manufacture
and sale of security hardware products (except for
the sale of security hardware in Mexico, Central
America, the Caribbean, and South America}. It
also has responsibility for the manufacture of
plumbing products and for the sale of plumbing
products to customers in the United States and
Canada. Security hardware products consist of
residential and light commercial door locksets,
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electronic keyless entry systems, exit devices, key-
ing systems, tubular and mortise door locksets,
general hardware, decorative hardware, lamps, and
hrass ornaments. General hardware includes door
hinges, cabinet hinges, door stops, kick plates,
and house numbers. Decorative hardware includes
cabinet hardware, switchplates, door pulls, and
push plates. Plumbing products consist of a variety
of conventional and decorative lavatory, kitchen,
and tub and shower faucets, bath and kitchen
accessories, and replacement parts.

Security hardware products are marketed under a
variety of trademarks and trade names, including,
without limitation, KWIKSET SECURITY; KWIKSET
MAXIMUM SECURITY; KWIKSET ULTRAMAX;
SIGNATURES; KWIKSET; BEAUTY OF STRENGTH,;
BLACK & DECKER; TYLO; POLO; AVALON;
ASHFIELD; SMARTSCAN; SMARTKEY; SMART-
CODE; VENETIAN, BRONZE; POWERBOLT;, KWIK
INSTALL; GEO; SAFE-LOCK BY BLACK & DECKER,;
BALDWIN; THE ESTATE COLLECTION; THE
IMAGES COLLECTION; ARCHETYPES; LIFETIME
FINISH, TIMELESS CRAFTSMANSHIP;
LOGAN; SPRINGFIELD; HAMILTON; BLAKE-
LY; MANCHESTER; CANTERBURY, MADISON;
STONEGATE; EDINBURGH; KENSINGTON;
BRISTOL; TREMONT; PEYTON; PASADENA; RICH-
LAND; WEISER; WEISER LOCK; COLLECTIONS
BY WEISER LOCK; WELCOME HOME SERIES;
ELEMENTS SERIES; BASICS BY WEISER LOCK;
BRILLIANCE LIFETIME ANTI-TARNISH FINISH;
POWERBOLT, POWERBOLT KEYLESS ACCESS
SYSTEM; WEISERBOLT; and ENTRYSETS.
Plumbing products are marketed Under the
trademarks and trade names PRICE PFISTER;
CLASSIC SERIES BY PRICE PFISTER; PRICE
PFISTER PROFESSIONAL SERIES; BACH; SOLO;
CONTEMPRA; MARIELLE; CARMEL; PARISA;
SAVANNAH; CATALINA,; GEORGETOWN; TREVISO;
AVALON; and ASHFIELD.

The composition of the Corporation’s sales by
product groups for 2006, 2005, and 2004 is
included in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part !l
of this report. Within each product group shown,
there existed no individual product that accounted
for greater than 109 of the Corporation's consoli-
dated sales for 2006, 2005, or 2004.

Most of the Corporation’s security hardware
products sold in the United States carry a war
ranty, pursuant to which the consumer can return
defective product during the warranty term in
exchange for a replacement product at no cost
to the consumer. Warranty terms vary by product
and carry a lifetime warranty with respect to
mechanical operations and range from a 5-year to
a lifetime warranty with respect to finish. Products
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sold outside of the United States for residential
use generally have similar warranty arrangements.
Such arrangements vary, however, depending upon
local market conditions and laws and regulations.
Most of the Corporation’s plumbing products sold
in the United States carry a lifetime warranty with
respect to function and finish, pursuant to which
the .consumer can return defective product in
exchange for a replacement product or repair at
no cost to the consumer.

The Corporation’s product offerings in the Hard-
ware and Home Improvement segment are sold
primarily to retailers, wholesalers, distributors,
and jobbers. Certain security hardware products
are sold to commercial, institutional, and industrial
customers. Sales to two of the segment’s custom-
ers, The Home Depot and Lowe's Home Improve-
ment Warehouse, accounted for greater than
109, of the Corporation’s consolidated sales for
2006 2005, and 2004. For additional information
regarding sales to The Home Depot and Lowe's
Home Improvement Warehouse, see Note 18 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in-
cluded in Item 8 of Part Il of this report.

The principal materials used in the manufacturing
of products in the Hardware and Home tmprove-
ment segment are zamak, brass, aluminum,
steel, and ceramics. The materials used in the
various manufacturing processes are purchased
on the open market, and the majority are available
through multiple sources and are in adequate sup-
ply. The Corporation has experienced no significant
wark stoppages to date as a result of shortages
of materials.

The Corporation has certain long-term com-
mitments for the purchase of various finished
goods, component parts, and raw materials
and believes that it is unlikely that any of these
agreements would be terminated prematurely.
Alternate sources of supply at competitive prices
are available for most items for which long-term
commitments exist. Because the Corporation is a
leading producer of residential security hardware
and faucets, in a limited number of instances, the
magnitude of the Corporation’s purchases of cer-
tain items is of such significance that a change in
the Corporation's established supply relationship
may cause disruption in the marketplace and/or
a temporary price imbalance. While the Corpora-
tion believes that the termination of any of these
commitments would not have a material adverse
effect on the operating results of the Hardware
and Home Improvement segment over the long
term, the termination of a limited number of these
commitments would have an adverse effect over
the short term. In this regard, the Corporation
defines long term as a period of {ime in excess




of 12 months and short term as'a penod of tlme
under 12 months. i

From time to tlme, the Corporation enters info
commodity hedges on certain raw materials used
in the manufacturing process to reduce the risk
of market price fluctuations. As of December 31,
2006, the amount of commodlty hedges outstand-
ing was not material. '

Principal manufacturmg and assembly facilities of
the Hardware and Home Improvement segmentin
the United States aré.located in Denison, Texas;
and Reading, Pennsylvanla .-

Principal manufacturing and assembly famlltles
of the Hardware ‘and ‘Home Improvement seg-
ment-outside of the United States are located in
Mexicali and Nogales, Mexico.-The principal dis-
tribution facilities in the United States, other than
those located at the manufacturing and assembly
facilities listed above are located in Mira Loma,
California; and Charlotte North Carohna

For additional information with respect to these
and -other properties owned or leased by the
Corporation, see Item 2, “Properties.”

The Corporation holds Various patents and
licenses on many of its products and processes
in the Hardware and Home Improvement seg-
ment. Although these patents and licenses are
important, the Corporation is'not materially
dependent on such patents or Iucenses with respect
o rts cperations.

The Corporatlon holds vanous trademarks that
are. employed in its busmesses and operates
under. various trade names, some of which are
stated above. The Corporation believes that these
trademarks and trade names.are important to the
marketing and distribution of its products.

A significant portion’of the Corporation’s sales
in the' Hardware and Home Improvement seg-
ment is derived from the do-it-yourself ‘and home
modernization markets, which generally are not
seasonal in nature, but are influenced by trends
in the re5|dent|al and commercial construction
markets and other general economic trends.

The Corporation is one of the world's leading
producers of ‘residential security hardware and
is one of the leading producers of faucets in
North America. Worldwide, the markets in which
the Corporatnon sells these products are h:ghly
competitive on the basis of price, quality, and
after-sale service. A -number of. competing
domestic-and foreign companies are strong, well-
established manufacturers that compete on a
giobal basis. Some of these companies manufac-

ture products that are competitive with a number
of the Corporation’s product lines. Other competi-
tors restrict their operations to fewer categories,
and some offer only a narrow range of competi-
tive products. Competition from certain of these
manufacturers has been intense in recent years
and is expected to continue.

1

FASTENING AND ASSEMBLY SYSTEMS

The Corporation’s Fastening and Assembly Systems
segment has worldwide responsibility for the de-
velopment, manufacture and sale of an extensive
line of metal and plastic fasteners and engineered
fastening systems, for commercial applications,
including blind riveting, stud welding, specialty
screws, prevailing torque nuts and assembilies,
insert systems, metal and plastic fasteners, and
self-piercing riveting systems. The fastening and
assembly systems products are marketed under a
variety of trademarks and trade names, including,
without limitation, EMHART TEKNOLOGIES;
EMHART FASTENJNG TEKNOLOGIES; EMHART;
AUTOSET; DODGE; DRIL-KWICK; F-SERIES; GRIPCO;
GRIPCO ASSEMBLIES; HELI-COIL; JACK NUT;
KALEIl; MASTERFIX; NPR; NUT-FAST, PARKER-
KALON; PLASTIFAST, PLASTI-KWICK; POINT &
SET; POP; POP-LOK; POPMATIC; POPNUT; POP-
SERT; POWERLINK; PROSET; SMARTSET; SWS;
TUCKER; ULTRA-GRIP; ULTRASERT, WARREN;
WELDFAST; and WELL-NUT. The Fastening and
Assembly Systems, segment provides platform-
management and engineering services in addition
to the manufacture and sale of the products
previously described. .

The composition of the Corporation’s sales by
product groups for 2006, 2005, and 2004 is
included in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in¢luded.in Item 8 of Part Il
of this report. Within each product group shown,
there existed no individual product that accounted
for greater than '109% of the Corporation’s consoli-
dated sales for 2006, 2005, or 2004,

The principal markets for these products include
the automotive, transportation, electronics, aero-
space, machine tool, and appliance industries.
Substantial sales are made to automotive manu-

facturers worldwide,

Products are marketed directly to customers and
also through distributors and representatives.
These products face competition from many

manufacturers in several countries. Product
quality, performance, reliability, price, delivery,
and technical and application engineering services
are the primary competitive factors. There is little

seasonal variation in sales. '
| * . i Lt

BLACK & DECKER 5




The Corporation owns a number of United States
and foreign patents, trademarks, and license
rights relating to the fastening and assembly
systems business. While the Corporation considers
those patents, trademarks, and license rights to
be valuable, it is not materially dependent upon
such patents or license rights with respect to
its operations.

Principal manufacturing facilities of the Fastening
and Assembily Systems segment in the United
States are located in Danbury, Connecticut; Mont-
pelier, Indiana; Campbellsville and Hopkinsville,
Kentucky; and Chesterfield, Michigan. Principal
manufacturing and assembly facilities outside
of the United States are located in Birmingham,
England; Giessen, Germany; and Toyohashi, Japan.
For additional information with respect to these
and other properties owned or leased by the
Corporation, see ltem 2, “Properties.”

The raw materials used in the fastening and as-
sembly systems business consist primarily of
ferrous and nonferrous metals in the form of wire,
bar stock, and strip and sheet metais; plastics;
and rubber. These materials are readily available
from a number of suppliers.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Corporation’s product development program
for the Power Tools and Accessories segment is
coordinated from the Corporation's headquarters
in Towson, Maryland. Additionally, product
deve!opment activities are performed at facilities
within the United States in Fort Lauderdale, Florida,
Hampstead, Maryland, and Jackson, Terinessee, and
at facilities in Maltby and Spennymoor, England;
Brockville, Canada; Perugia, Italy; Suzhou, China;
Buchlberg and Idstein, Germany; Mooroolbark,
Australia; Uberaba, Brazil; and Reynosa, Mexico.

Product development activities for the Hardware
and Home Improvement segment are performed
at facilities in Lake Forest, Ca||f0rn|a and Reading,
Pennsylvania.

Product development activities for the Fastening
and Assembly Systems segment are performed
at facilities within the United States in Danbury
and Shelton, Connecticut; Montpelier, Indiana;
Campbellsville, Kentucky; Chesterfield and
Farmington Hills, Michigan; and at facilities in
Birmingham, England; Maastricht, Netherlands;
Giessen, Germany; and Toyohashi, Japan.

Costs associated with development,of new prod-
ucts and changes to existing products are charged
to operaticns as incurred. See Note 1 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements included
in ltem 8 of Part |l of this report for amounts of
expenditures for product development activities.
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As of December 31, 2006, the Corporation
employed approximately 25,500 persons in its
operations worldwide. Approximatety 500 employ-
ees in the United States are covered by collective
bargaining agreements. During 2006, no collective
bargaining agreements were negotiated. One
agreement is scheduled for negotiation during
2007. Also, the Corporation has government-
mandated collective bargaining arrangements or
union contracts with employees in other countries.
The Corporation’s operations have not been
affected significantly by work stoppages and, in
the opinion of manageme.nt employee relations
are good. As more fully described under the
caption “Restructuring and Integration Actions”
in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,
the Corporation is committed to continuous pro-
ductivity improvement and continues to evaluate
opportunities to reduce fixed costs, simplify or
improve processes, and eliminate excess capac-
ity. As a consequence, the Corporation may,
from time to time, transfer production from one
manufacturing facility to another, outsource cer-
tain production, or close certain manufacturing
facilities. Such production transfers, outsourcing,
and/or facility closures may result in a dete-
rioration of employee relations at the impacted
locations or elsewhere in the Corporation’

The Corporation’s operations are subject to foreign,
federal, state, and local environmental laws and
regulations. Many foreign, federal, state, and local
governments aiso have enacted laws and regula-
tions that govern the labeling and packaging of
products and limit the sale of products containing
certain materials deemed to be ervironmentally
sensitive. These laws and regulations not only
limit the acceptable methods for the discharge
of poliutants and the disposal of products: and
components that contain certain substances, but
also require that products be designed in a man-
ner to permit easy recycling or proper disposal
of environmentally sensitive components such as
nickel cadmium batteries. The Corporation seeks
to comply fully with these laws and regulations.
Although compliance involves continuing costs,
the ongoing costs of compliance with existing
environmental laws and regulations have not had,
nor are they expected to have, a material adverse
effect upon the Corporation’s capital expenditures
or financial position. .

Pursuant to authority granted under the Compre-
hensive Environmental Response, -Compensation
and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA), the United
States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has
issued a National Priority List (NPL) of sites at
which action is to be taken to mitigate the risk of
release of hazardous substances into the environ-




ment. The Corporation is engaged in continuing
activities 'with regard to various sites on the NPL
and other sites covered under analogous state
environmental laws. As of December 31, 2006,
the Corporation had been identified as a poten.
tially responsible party (PRP) in connection with
approximately 25 sites being investigated by fed-
eral or state agencies under CERCLA or analogous
state environmental laws. The Corporation also is
engaged in site |nvest|gat|ons and remedial activi-
ties to address énvironmental contamination from
past operatlons at current and former manufactur-
ing facilities in the United States and abroad.

To minimize the Corporation’s potential liability
with respect to these sites, management has under-
taken, when appropriate, active participation in
steering committees.established at the sites and
has agreed to remediation through consent orders
with the appropriate government agencies. Due to
uncertainty as to the Corporation’s invoivement in
some of the sites, uncertainty over the remedial
measures to be adopted, and the fact that
imposition of joint and several liability with the
right of contribution is possible under CERCLA
and other laws and regulations, the liability of
the Corporation with respect to any site at which

remedial measures have not been completed can-

not be established with certainty. On the basis of
periodic reviews conducted with respect to these
sites, however, the Corporation has established
appropriate liability accruals. The Corporatlon S
estimate of the costs associated with environmen-
tal exposures is accrued if, in management’s judg-
ment, the likelihood of a loss is probable and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
As of December 31, 2006, the Corporation's
aggregate probable exposure with respect to
environmental liabilities, for which accruals have
been established in the consolidated financial
statements, was $76.4 million. In the opinion of
management, the amount accrued for probable
exposure for aggregate énvironmental liabilities is
adequate and, accordingly, the ultimate resolution
of these matters is hot expected to have a material
adverse effect on the Corporation’s consolidated
financial statements. As of December 31, 2006,
the Corporation had no'known probable but inesti-
mable exposures relating to environmental matters
that are expected to have a material adverse effect
on the Corporation. There can be no assurance,
however, that unanticipated events will not require
the Corporation to increase the amount it has
accrued for any environmental matter or accrue
for an environmental matter that has not been
previously accrued because'it was not considered
probable. While it is possible that the increase or
establishment of an accrual could have a mate-
rial adverse effect on the financial results for any

particular fiscal quarter or year, in the opinion
of management there exists no known potential
exposures that would have a material adverse ef-
fect on the financial condition or on the financial
results of the Corporation beyond any such fiscal
quarter or year . .

(d) Fmancnal Informatlon
About Geographic Areas

Reference is made to Note 18 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, entitled “Busi-
ness Segments and Geographic Information”,
included in Item 8 of Part Il of this report.

(e) Available Information

The Corporation files annual, quarterly, and cur-
rent reports, proxy statements, and other docu-
ments with the Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion (SEC) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (the Exchange Act). The public may read
and copy any materials that the Corporation files
with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room
at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. The
public may obtain information on the operation
of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC
at 1-800-SEC-0330. Also, the SEC maintains an
Internet website that contains reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information
regarding issuers, including the Corporation, that
file electronically with the SEC. The public can
obtain any documents that the Corporation files
wnth the SEC at http://www.sec.gov.

The Corporation also makes avaliable free of charge on
or through its Internet website (http://www.bdk.com)
the Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports
on Form 8K, and, if applicable, amendments
to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act.as soon as
reasonably practicable after the Corporation
electronically files such material with, or furnishes
it to, the SEC.

Biack & Decker's Corporate Governance Poli-
cies and Procedures Statement is available free
of charge on or through its Internet website
(http://www.bdk.com) or in print by calling (800)
992.3042 or (410) 716-2914. The Statement
contains charters of the standing committees of
the Board of Directors, - the Code of Ethics and
Standards of Conduct, and the Code of Ethics for
Senior Financial Officers.

In April 2006, the Corporation submitted to the
New York Stock Exchange the CEO certification
required by Section 303A.12(a) of the New York
Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual.
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(f) Executive Officers and
- Other Senior Officers
of the Corporation -

The current Executive Officers and Other Senior
Officers of the Corporation, their ages, current
offices or positions, and their business eéxperience
during the past five years are set forth below.

* NOLAN D. ARCHIBALD -63.

Chairman, President, and ~
Chief Executive Officer,
January 1990 - present.

- BRUCE W. BROOKS - 42 :
Vice President of the Corporation and President -
Construction Tools, Industrial Products Group,
Power Tools and Accessories
May 2005 present;

Vice President and General Manager ~
Construction -Tools, Industrial Products Group,
. Power Tools and. Accessories,
- Qctober 2004 - May 2005;

" Vice President Marketing ~ DeEWALT Professional
Products, Power Tools and Accessories Group,
July 2003 - October 2004, ‘

Vice President Marketing -

Black & Decker Consumer. Products,
Power Tools and Accessories Group,
July 2000 - Julyl2003. :

« JAMES T. CAUDILL - 39
Group Vice President of the Corporation and’
President — Hardware and Home Improvement
- July 2006 - present;

Vice President of the Corporat'itm and President —
Hardware and Home Improvement,
May 2005 - July 2006;

* Vice President and General Manager —

- Accessories, Industrial Products Group,
Power Tools and Accessories' Group,
October 2004 — May 2005;

Vice President — Accessories,
DeWALT Professional Products,
Power Tools and Accessories Group,
November 2001 - QOctober 2004.

+ CHARLES E. FENTON - 58

Senior Vice President and General Counsel
December 1996 present, :
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* LES H. IRELAND - 42,
Vice President of the Corporation and
President — Europe/Middle East/Africa,
Power Tools and Accessories,
January 2005 - present;

Vice President of the Corporation and
Managing Director - Commercial Operations,
Europe, Black & Decker Consumer Group,
Power Tools and Accessories Group,
November 2001 ~ Janudry 2005,

* THOMAS D. KOOS - 43"
Group Vice President of the Corporation and
President - Consumer Products Group,
Power Tools and Accessories,
March 2004 - present;

Vice President of the Corporation and President -
" Black & Decker Consumer Products,

Power Tools and Accessories Group,

January 2001 -~ March 2004.

+« ‘MICHAEL D. MANGAN - 50
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer,

* January 2000 - present.
_+ PAUL F. McBRIDE - 51

Senior Vice President — Human Resources
and Corporate Initiatives,
March 2004 — present;

Executive Vice President of the Corporation
and President — Power Tools and
Accessories Group,

April 1999 - March 2004.

» CHRISTINA M. McMULLEN - 51
Vice President and Controiler,
April 2000 - present.

+ JAMES R. RASKIN - 46
Vice President of the Corporation and
Vice President — Business Development,
July 2006 - present;
Vice President - Business Development,
. May 2002 - July 2006;

Vice President — Marketing, -
Consumer Products Group, . -~
September 2001 - May 2002.

« STEPHEN F. REEVES - 47
Vice President of the Corporation and
. Vice President — Global Finance,
:. Power Tools and Accessories,
- March 2004 - present;

Vice President of the Corporation and
- Vice President — Finance; Power Tools

and Accessories Group,

April 2000°~ March 2004.




« '"MARK M. ROTHLEITNER - 48"

» Vice President - Investor Relations and Treasurer,
January 2000 present ’
ROBERT l. ROWAN 46 o .
Vice President of the Corporatlon and President ~
Power Tools and Accessories,:Consumer t
Products Group, Power Tools and Accessories,
February 2006 —present, ., ,, .
Vice President and General Manager, -
Consurner Power Tools and Accessories,

.“Power Tools and Accessories, - . o
July 2003 - February 2006; : Co

Vice Président — Outdoor Products, .
Consumer Products Group, Power Tools .
and Accessorles Group,”

. '_September 2001 — July 2003. .

, EDWARD J. SCANLON = 52" Yol
Vice Pressdent of the Corparation and L
President -~ Commercial Operat|ons North and
South America, Power Tools and Accessorles
March 2004 - present: .. \ -

"Vice President of the Corporation and
President — Commercial Operations,
- North America, Power Toolsand . ..,

) Accessorles Group,. B T
. May 1999 March 2004. . . .,
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, JOHN W. SCHIECH - as

" Group Vice PreS|dent of the Corporation
and President — Industrial Products Group, _
Power. Tools and Accessories, . g

. March 2004 - present; ,. .+

~ Vice President of the Corporation and President -

_ DEWALT Professional Products, Power Tools
“and Accessories Group, ..
January 2001 - March 2004, v

" NATALIE A SHIELDS - 50
Vice Presndent and Corporate Secretary,
‘ Aprll 2006 present '

Internat|ona| Tax and Trade Counsel, .
June 1993 Aprll 2006..

BEN S SIHOTA - 48 ' Co :

Vice President of the'Corporation and Presudent—
Asia Pacific, Power Tools and Accessories,
February. 2006 - present; . T

President — Asia,  Power Tools and Accessones

“*September- 2000 - February 2006. .- o

« MICHAEL A. TYLL - 50 5
Group Vice President of the Corporation and

~ President - Fastening and Assembly Systems
April 2006 - present;

President — Automotive Division, .
Fastening and Assembly Systems, Co
January 2001 - April 2006.
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(g) Forward-Looking Statements.
The anate Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995 (the Reform Act) provides a safe harbor
for- forward-looking statements made by or on
behalf of the Corporation: Thé Corporation and its
representatives imay, from time to time, make written
or.-verbal forward-looking statements, including
statements contained in the Corporation’s filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission
and in its reports to stockholders. Generally, the
inclusion of the words “believe,” “expect,” “intend,”
“estimate,” “anticipate,” “will,” and similar. expres-
sions identify statements that constitute “forward-
looking staterents” within the meaning 6f Section
27A of- the Securities Act of 1933 and Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and
that are intended to come within the safe harbor
protection provided by those sections. All state-
ments addressing operating performance, events,
or developments that;the Corporation expects or
anticipates will oceur in the future, including state-
ments relating to sales growth, earnings or earnings
per share growth, and market share, as weli as
statements expressing optimism or pessimism
about future operating results, are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Reform Act.
The forward-looking statements are and will be
based upon management’s then-current views and
assumptlons regarding future events and operat-
ing performance, and are applicable only as of
the dates of such statements. The Corporation
undertakes no obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of
new information, future events, or otherwise.

By their nature, all forward-looking statements
involve risks and uncertainties, including without
limitations the risks described under the caption
“Risk.Factors” thatrcould materially harm the
Corporation's business, financial condition, and
resuits of operations. You are cautioned not to
place'undue reliance on the Corporatnon s forward-
Iookmg statements
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Many of the factors that affect our business and
operations involve risk and uncertainty. The factors
described below are some of the risks that could
materially harm our business, financial condition,
and results of operations.

+ Our business depends on the strength of the
economies in various parts of the world, par-
ticularly in the United States and Europe. We
conduct business in various parts of the world,
primarily in the United States and Europe and,
to a lesser extent, in Mexico, Central America,
the Caribbean, South America; Canada, Asia and
Australia. As a result of this worldwide exposure,
our net revenue and profitability could be harmed
as a result of economic conditions in our major
markets, including, but not limited to, recession,
inflation and deflation, general weakness in retail,
automotive and construction markets, and changes
in consumer purchasing power.

+ Changes in customer preferences, the inability
to maintain mutually beneficial relationships with
large customers, and the inability to penetrate
new channels of distribution could adversely
affect our business. We have a number of major
customers, including two large customers that, in
the aggregate, constituted approximately 33% of
our consolidated sales in 2006. The loss of either of
these large customers, a material negative change
in our relationship with these large custormers or
other major customers, or changes in consumer
preferences or loyalties could have an advérse
effect on our business. Our major customers are
volume purchasers, a few'of which are much larger
than us and. have strong bargaining power with
suppliers. This limits our ability to recover cost
increases through higher selling prices. Changes
in purchasing patterns by major customers could
negatively impact manufacturing volumes and
inventory levels. Further, our inability to continue
to penetrate new channels of distribution may
have a negative impact on our future results.

¢ The inability to obtain raw materials, compo-
nent parts, and/or finished goods in a timely
and cost-effective manner from suppliers would
adversely affect our ability to manufacture and
market our products. We purchase raw materials
and component parts from suppliers to be used
in the manufacturing of our products. In addition,
we purchase certain finished goods from suppli-
ers. In a limited number of circumstances, the
magnitude of cur purchases of certain items is of
such significance that a change in our established
supply relationships may cause disruption in the
marketplace, a temporary price imbalance, or both,
Changes in our relationships with suppliers or
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increases in the costs of purchased raw materiais,
component parts or finished goods could result in
manufacturing interruptions, delays, inefficiencies
or our inability to market products. in addition,
our profit margins would decrease if, prices of
purchased raw materials, component parts, or
finished goods increase and we are unable to pass
on those increases to our customers,

+ We face significant global competition. The
markets in which we sell products are highly
competitive on the basis of price, quality, and
after-sale service. A number of competing do-
mestic and foreign companies are strong, well-
established manufacturers that compete globally
with us. Some of our major customers sell their
own “private label” brands that compete directly
with our products. Price reductions taken by us in
response to customer and competitive pressures,
as well as price reductions and promotional ac-
tions taken to drive demand that may not result
in anticipated sales levels, could also negatively
impact our business. Competition has been intense
in recent years and is expected to continue. If we
are unable to maintain a competitive advantage,
loss of market share, revenue, or profitability may
result.

* Low demand for new products and the inability
to develop and introduce new products at favorable
margins could adversely impact our performance
and prospects for future growth. Our competitive
advantage is due in part to our ability to develop
and introduce new products in a timely manner
at favorable margins. The uncertainties associated
with developing and introducing new products,
such as market demand and costs of develop.
ment and producticn, may impede the successful
development and introduction of new products
on a consistent basis. Market acceptance of the
new products introduced in 2006 and scheduled
for introduction in 2007 may not meet sales
expectations due to various factors, such as our
failure to accurately predict market demand and
evolving industry standards, to resolive technical
challenges in a timely and cost-effective manner,
and to achieve manufacturing efficiencies. Our
investments in productive capacity and commit-
ments to fund advertising and product promotions
in coennection with these new products could be
excessive if those expectations are not met.

+ Price increases could impact the demand for
our products from customers and end-users. We
have recently increased the prices of our products
for our U.S. power tools and accessories business
and hardware and home improvement business.
An adverse reaction by our customers or end-users
to these price increases could negatively impact
our anticipated sales, profitability, manufacturing
volumnes, and/or inventory levels.




» The inability to generate sufficient cash flows
to support operations and other activities-could
prevent future growth and success. Our inability
to generate sufficient cash flows to support capi-
tal expansion, business acquisition plans, share
repurchases and general operating activities could
negatively affect our operations and prevent our
expansion into existing and new markets. Our
ability to generate cash flows is dependent in part
upon obtaining necessary financing at favorable
interest rates. Interest rate fluctuations and other
capital market conditions may prevent us from
doing so. .

= Our success depends on our ability to improve
productivity and streamline operations to control
or reduce costs. We are committed to continuous
productivity improvement and continue to evaluate
opportumtles to reduce fixed costs, simplify or
improve processes, and eliminate excess capac-
ity. We have also undertaken restructuring and
integration actions as described in Note 20 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and
in “Management’s Discussion and-Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations”.
The ultimate savings realized from restructuring
and integration actions may be mitigated by many

factors, including economic weakness, competitive -

pressures, and decisions to increase costs in areas
such as promotion or research and development
above levels that were otherwise assumed. Our
failure to achieve projected levels of efficiencies
and cost reduction measures and to avoid delays
in or unanticipated inefficiencies resulting from
manufacturing and administrative recrganiza-
tien actions in progress or contemplated would
adversely affect our results of operations.

» The inability to successfully integrate the
operations of acquired businesses or to identify
new acquisition opportunities could negatively
impact our prospect for future growth and prof-
itability, We expend significant resources on
identifying opportunities to acquire new lines of
business and companies that could’ contribute
to our success and expansion into existing and
new markets. Our inability to successfully identify
acquisition opportunities, integrate the operations
of acquired businesses, or realize the anticipated
cost savings, synergies and other benefits related
to the acquisition of those businesses could have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and future growth. Acquisitions may also
have a material adverse effect on our operating
results due to large write-offs, contingent liabilities,
substantial depreciation, or other adverse tax or
audit consequences.

+ Failures of our infrastructure could have a
material adverse effect on our business. We
are heavily dependent on our infrastructure. Sig-
nificant problems with our infrastructure, such as

manufacturing failures, telephone or information
technology (IT) system failure, computer viruses
or other third-party tampering with IT systems,
could halt or delay manufacturing and hinder our
ability to ship in a timely manner or otherwise
routinely conduct business. Any of these events
could result in the loss of customers, a decrease
in revenue, or the incurrence of S|gn|f|cant costs
to eliminate the problem or failure.

» Our products could be subject to product liability
claims and litigation. We manufacture products
that create exposure to product liability claims
and litigation, If our products are not properly
manufactured or designed, personal injuries or
property damage could result, which could subject
us to claims for damages. The costs asscciated
with defending product liability claims and payment
of damages could be substantial. Our reputation
could also be adversely affected by such claims,
whether or not successful.

« Our products could be recalled. The Consumer
Product Safety Commission or other applicable
regulatory bodies may require the recall, repair
or replacement of our products if those products
are found not to be in compliance with applicable
standards or regulations. A recall could increase
costs and adversely impact our reputation.

» We may have additional tax liabilities. We are
subject to income taxes in the United States and
numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant judg-
ment is required in determining our worldwide
provision for income taxes. In the ordinary course
of our business, there are many transactions and
calculations where the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. We are regularly under audit by tax
authorities. Although we believe our tax estimates
are reasonable, the final outcome of tax audits and
any related litigation could be materially different
than that which is reflected in historical income
tax provisions and accruals. Based on the status
of a given tax audit or reiated litigation; a material
effect on our income tax provision or net income
may resuit in the period or pericds from initial
recognition in. our reported financial results to
the final closure of that tax audit or settlement of
related titigation when the ultimate tax and related
cash flow is known with certainty.

» We are subject to current environmental and
other laws and regulations. We are subject to
environmental laws in each jurisdiction in which
we conduct business. Some of ‘our products in-
corporate substances that are regulated in some
jurisdictions in which we conduct manufacturing
operations., We could be subject to liability if we
do not comply with these regulations. In addition,
we are currently and may, in the future, be held
responsibie for remedial investigations and clean-
up costs resulting from_the discharge of hazard-
ous substances into the environment, including
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sites that have never been owned or operated
by us but at which we have been identified as a
potentially responsible party,under federal and
state environmental laws and regulations. Changes
in environmental and other laws and reguiations
in both domestic and foreign jurisdictions could
adversely affect our operations due to increased
costs oi compliance and potentlal Ilab|I|ty for
non-compliance.

* If our goodwill or mdeflmte lived mtanglble
assets become impaired, we-may be required to
recerd a significant charge to earnings. Under
United States generally accepted accounting
principles, goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible
assets are not amortized but are reviewed for
impairment on an annual basis or more frequently
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying value may not be recov-
erable. We may be required to record a significant
charge to earnings in our financial statements
during the period jin which any impairment of
our goodwill or mdefmlte lived intangible assets is
determined, resuiting in an impact on our results
of operations.

+ Changes in accountlng may affect our reported
earnings. For many aspects of our business,
United States generally accepted accounting
principles, including pronouncements, implemen-
tation guidelines, and interpretations, are highly
complex and require subjective judgménts. Changes
in these accounting principles, including their
interpretation and apphcatron could 5|gn:f|cant|y
change our reported earnings, adding significant
volatility to our reported results without a compa-
rable underlying change ih our cash flows.

+ We are exposed to adverse changes in currency
exchange rates, raw material commodity prices or
interest rates, both in absolute terms-and relative
to competitors’ risk profiles. We have a number

of manufacturing sites throughout the world and.

selt our products in more than 100 countries.
As a result, we are exposed to movements in the
exchange rates of various currencies against the
United States doltar and against the curréncies of
countries in which we have manufacturing facili-
ties. We believe our most significant foreign cur:
rency exposures are the euro, pound sterling and
Chinese renminbi. A decrease in the value of .the
euro and pound sterling relative to the U.S. dollar
could adversely affect our results of operations.
An increase in the value of the Chinese renminbi
relative to the U.S. dollar couid adversely affect
our results of operations. We utilize materials in
the manufacturing of our products that include
certain components and raw materials that are
subject to commaodity price volatility. We believe
our most significant commodity-related exposures
are to steel, resins, copper, aluminum, and zinc.
An increase in the market prices of these items

12 BLACK & DECKER

could adversely affect our results.of operations.
We have outstanding variable-rate.and fixed-rate
borrowmgs To meet our cash requlrements we
may incur addltlonal borrowings in the fiture
under our existing or. future borrowing facilities.
Anincrease in interest rates cou!d adversely affect
our results of operations. '

« We operate a global business that exposes
us to additional risks. Our sales-outside of the
United States.accounted for approximately 369 of
our consolidated net revenue in 2006. We continue
to eXpand into foreign markets.. The future growth
and profitabiiity of our foreign operations are
subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties,
such as tariffs, natlonahzatlon exchange controls,
interest rate ﬂuctuat;ons civil unrest, governmen
tal changes, limitations on foreign investment in
local business and other political, economic and
regulatory risks inherent in conducting business
internationally. Over the past several years, such
factors have become increasingly important as a
result of our higher percentage of manufactur:
ing in Chma Mexico and the Czech Republic and
purchases of products and components from
foreign countrles

a

»* Catastrophic events may disrupt our business.

" Unforeseen events, including war, terrorism and

other international-conﬂicts, public health issues,
and natural disasters such as earthquakes,
hurricanes or other adverse weather and ciimate
conditions, whether occurring in the United States
or abroad, could disrupt our'operations, disrupt
the operations of ‘our suppliers or customers, or
result in political or economic instability. These
events could reduce demand for our products and
make it difficult or impossible for us to manufac-
ture our products, deliver products to customers,
or to’ recewe products from suppllers '

The foregomg list is not exhaustive. There can be
no assurance that we have, correctly identified
and appropriately assessed all factors affecting
our business or that the publicly available and
other information with respect to these matters
is complete and correct. Additional risks and
uncertainties not presently known to us or that
we currently believe to be immaterial also may
adversely impact our business.-Should any risks
or uncertainties develop into actual events, these
developments.could have material adverse effects
on our business, financial condltlon and results
of operations.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Corporation operates 41‘ manufacturing facili-
ties around the world, including 25 located outside
of the"United States in 9 foreign countries: The
major properties associated with each business
segment are listed in “Narrative Description of the
Business” in-ltem-1(c) of Part | of :this report.




The following are the Corporation’s major Ieased
facilities:

In the United States: Lake Forest, Mira Loma,
and.Rialto, California; Charlotte, North Carolina;
Jackson, Tennessee; Tampa, Florida; Chesterfield,
Michigan; and Towson, Maryland. .

Cutside of the United States: Tongeren and
Aarschot, Belgium; Reynosa and Mexicali, México;
Brockville, Canada; Usti nad Labem, Czech Repub-
lic; and Suzhou China.

Additional property both owned a_nd leased by
the Corporation in Towson, Maryland, is used for
administrative offices. Subsidiaries of the Corpora-
tion lease certain locations primarily for smaller
manufacturing and/or assembly operations,
service operations, sales and administrative offices,
and for warehousing and distribution centers. The
Corporation also owns a manufacturing plant
located on leased land in Suzhou, China.

As more fully described in Item 7 of Part Il of
this report under the caption “Restructuring and
Integration Actions”, the Corporation is commit-
ted to continuous productivity improvement and
continues to evaluate opportunities to reduce fixed
costs, simplify or improve processes, and elimi-
nate excess capacity. The Corporation will continue
to evaluate its worldwide manufacturing cost struc-
ture to identify opportunities to improve capacity
utilization and lower product costs and will take
appropriate action as deemed necessary.

Management believes that its owned and leased
facilities are suitable and adequate to meet the
Corporation’s anticipated needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Corporation is involved in various lawsuits in
the ordinary course of business. These lawsuits
primarity involve claims for damages arising out
of the use of the Corporation's products and
allegations of patent and trademark infringement.
The Corporation also is involved in litigation and
administrative proceedings involving employment
matters and commercial disputes. Some of these
lawsuits include claims for punitive as well as
compensatory damages. The Corporation, using
current product sales data and historical trends,
actuarially calculates the estimate of its exposure
for product liability. The Corporation is insured for
product liability claims for amounts in excess of
established deductibles and accrues for the esti-
mated liability as described above up to the limits
of the deductibles. All other claims and lawsuits
are handled on a case-by-case basis.

As previously noted under Item 1(c) of Part | of
this report, the Corporation also is party to litiga-
tion and administrative proceedings with respect
to claims involving the discharge of hazardous

substances into the environment. Some of these
assert claims for damages and liability for reme-
dial investigations and clean-up costs with respect
to sites that have never been owned or operated by
the Corporation but at which the Corporation has
been identified as a PRP. Others involve current
and former manufacturmg facilities.

The EPA and the Santa Ana Regional Water Qual
ity Board (the Water Quality Board) have each
initiated administrative proceedings against the
Corporation and certain of the Corporation’s
current or former affiliates alleging that the
Corporation and numerous other defendants are
responsible to investigate and remediate alleged
groundwater contamination in and adjacent to a
160-acre property located in Rialto, California.
The cities of Colton and Rialto, as well as the
West Valley Water District and the Fontana Water
Company, a prwate company, also have initiated
lawsuits against the Corporation and certain of
the Corporation’s former or current affiliates in
the Federal District Court for California, Central
District alleging similar claims that the Corpora-
tion is liable under CERCLA, the Resource Con-
servation and Recovery Act, and state law for the
discharge or release of hazardous substances into
the environment and the contamination caused
by those alleged releases. All defendants have
crossclaims against one another in the federal
litigation. The administrative proceedings and the
lawsuits generally allege that West Coast Load-
ing Corporation (WCLC), a defunct company that
operated in Rialto between 1952 and 1957, and
an as yet undefined number of other defendants
are responsible for the release of perchlorate and
solvents into the groundwater basin that supplies
drinking water to the referenced three municipal
water suppliers and one private water company in
California and that the Corporation and certain of
the Corporation's current or former affiliates are
liable as a “successor” of WCLC. Judgment has
been entered in favor of all defendants, including
the Corporation and certain of the Corporation’s
current and former affiliates, in the federal lawsuit
brought by the City of Colton as to Colton’s fed-
eral ctaims. The remaining state claims and the
crossclaims in that lawsuit have been dismissed
by the court on jurisdictional grounds. The City
of Colton and several co-defendants have ap-
pealed the dismissal of these claims. The City
of Colton also has re-filed its claims in California
state court and filed a new federal action arising
out of CERCLA, the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, and state law. Certain defendants
have crossclaimed against other defendants in
the new federal action and have asserted claims
against The United States Department of Defense,
Environmental Protection Agency and the City of
Rialto. The Corporation believes that neither the
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facts nor the law support an allegation that the
Corporation is responsible for the contamination
and is vigorously contesting these claims.

The Corporation’s estimate of costs associated
with product liability claims, environmental mat-
ters, and other legal proceedings is accrued if, in
management’s judgment, the likelihood of a loss
is probable and the amount of the loss can-be
reasonably estimated. .These accrued ||ab|I!t|es
are not discounted.

in the opinion of management, amounts accrued
for exposures relating to product liability claims,
environmental matters, and other'legal 'proceed-
ings are adequate and, accordingly, the ultimate
resolution of these matters is not'expected to have
a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s con-
solidated financial statements. As.of December
31, 2006, the Corporation had no known probable
but inestimable exposures relating to product
liability claims, environmental matters, or other
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legal proceedings that are expected. to have a
material adverse effect on the Corporation. There
can be no assurance, however, that unanticipated
events will not require the Corporation to increase
the amount it has accrued for any matter or accrue
for a matter that has not been previously accrued
because it was not considered probable. While it is
possible that the increase or establishment of an
accrual could have a material adverse effect on the
financial results for any particular fiscal quarter or
year, in the opinion of management there exists
no known potential exposures that would have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition
or on the'financial results 'of the Corporatlon
beyond any such frscal quarter or year

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO
A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS .

Not applicable.




PART i o

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR
REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY,
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

(a) Market Information

The Corporation’s Common Stock is listed on the
New York Stock Exchange.

The following table sets forth, for the periods
indicated, the high and low sale prices of the
Common Stock as reported in the consolidated
reporting system for the New York Stock Exchange
Composite Transactions:

QUARTER 2006 2005
January to ) ) ’
March $90.500 to $80.950 $89.750to $77.180
April to June $94.900 to $79.350 $91.450 to $77.850
July to
September $84.850 to $66.040 $93.710 to $80.030-
October to
. December . $91.140to $76.850 $89.000 to $75.700

(b) Holders of the Corporation’s
Capital Stock

As of January 26, 2007, there were 11,369 holders
of record of the Corporation’s Common Stock.

(¢) D|V|dends

The Corporation has paid consecutive quarterly
dividends on its Common Stock since 1937. Future
dividends will depend upon the Corporation’s earn-
ings, financial condition, and other factors. The
Credit Facility, as more fully described.in Note 8
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8 of Part Il of this report, does not
restrict the Corporation’s ability to pay regular
dividends in the ordinary course of business on
the Common Stock.

Quarterlly dividends per common share for the
most recent two years are as follows:

QUARTER 2006 2005
January to March . 5 .38 $ .28
April to June : L .38 .28
July to September . .38 .28
October to December .38 .28

$1.52 $1.12

Common Stock:

150,000,000 shares authorized, $.50 par value,
66,734,843 and 77,357,370 outstanding as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Preferred Stock: !

5,000,000 shares authorized, without par value,
no shares outstanding as of December 31, 2006
and 2005,

(d) Annual Meeting of Stockholders

The 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the
Corporation is scheduled to be held on April 19,
2007, at 9:00°a.m. at the Sheraton Baltimore
North Hotel, 903 Dulaney Valley Road, Towson,
Maryland 21204,
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(e) Performance Graph . .
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(f) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

' ’ TOTAL NUMBER MAXIMUM NUMBER

: OF SHARES OF SHARES

TOTAL NUMBER AVERAGE PURCHASED AS THAT MAY YET

OF SHARES PRICE PAID PART OF PUBLICLY BE PURCHASED

PERIOD (a) PURCHASED PER SHARE ANNQUNCED PLANS (b) UNDER THE PLANS
October 2, 2006 through October 29, 2006 — — — 4,940,095
October 30. 2006 through November 26, 2006 _— — — 4,940,095
November 27, 2006 through December 31, 2006 1,625,000 $78.14 1,625,000 3,315,095
Total 1,625,000 $78.14 1,625,000 3,315,085

(a} The periods represent the Carporation's monthly fiscal calendar.

(b} Al purchases by the Corporation of its cormmon stock were made under the repurchase plan publicly announced on July 20, 2006, when the
Corporation announced it had authorization from its Board of Directors to repurchase 8,000,000 shares. In addition, the maximum number of
shares that may yet be purchased under the plans noted above, includes 3,000,000 shares authorized by the Board of Directors on October 26,
2006. On February 8, 2007, the Corporation announced it had authorization from its Board of Directors to repurchase an additional 3,000,000
shares. There is no expiration date or current intent to terminate the repurchase plans,
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ITEM- 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY (a) - '

- . '

(MILLIONS QF DOLLARS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) ) 2006 ) ‘2005 2004 - 2003 (c) 2002 (c)
Sales = . | S $6,447.3 $6,523.7  $5398.4  $4,4827 34,2918
Net earnings from continuing operations = .7 4861 532.2 430.7 270.5 210.0
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations (b) ) — , ) 149 . 5.8 1.2
Net earnings ' B 486.1 . 5321 . 4456 2763 . 2112
Basic earnings per share: - o . a
Continuing operations " - ’ S T 6.74. 6.72 . 5.40 3.47 2.62
Discontinued operations ) - oo —_ = 19 .08 - .01
Net earnings per common share — basic T eTa 6.72 5.59 355 . 263
Diluted earnings per share: _ S - K ,
Contin'uin'g operations o ) T 855 . ‘6.54 531 . 347 2.61
Discontinued operations —_ . — ’ .18 .08 .01 ‘
‘Net earnings per common share — assuming dilution ‘ 6.55 - 6.54 " 549 - 3.55 2.62 }
Total assets ‘ i N v - 52477 . 5,842.4 . 5,555.0 42622 4,1626
Lohg-term debt . S C e 1,170.3 . 10303 1,200.6 915.6 927.6
Redeemnable preferred stock of subsidiary (d) "' i — [ — 1922 2026 208.4
Cash dividends per common share © 152 - o112 84 57 48

{a) As more fully.disclosed.in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the Corporation adopted SFAS No. 123R effective January 1, 2006
using the modified retrospective rmethod of adoption whereby the Corporation restated all prior periods presented based on the amounts previously
recognized under SFAS No. 123 for purposes of pro forma disclosures. The amounts in this five-year summary reflect the restated amounts upon
adoption of SFAS No. 123R. ' . o

{b) (Loss) earnings from discontinued operations represent the earnings, net of applicable incorne taxes, of the Corporation’s discontinued European
security hardware business. Loss:from discontinued operations for the year ended December 31,-2005, includes a loss on sale of discontinued
operations of $.1 millicn. Earnings from discontinued operations for the year ended December 31,,2004, include a gain on sale of discontinued
of operations of $12.7 million. That gain was net of a $24.4 million goodwill impairment charge associated with the DOM security hardware
business. The earnings of the discontinued operations do not reflect any expense for interest allocated by'or managément fees charged by the
Corparation. For additional information about the discontinled European security hardware business, see Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8 of Part Il of this report, . . o - ,

¢c) Earnings from continuing operations for 2003 and 2002 include a restructuring charge of $206 million and $46.6 million before taxes, respec-
tively ($14.9 million and $22.2 million after taxes, respectively). Those 2003 and 2002 pre-tax charges were net of reversats of $13.2 million and
$11.0 million, respectively, representing reversals of previously provided restructuring reserves as well as the excess proteeds received on the sale of
long-lived assets, written down as part of restructuring actions, over their adjusted carrying values. In addition, earnings from continuing operations
for 2003 include a réstructuring charge of $11.0 million before taxes ($7.2 million after taxes) associated with the closure of a manufacturing facility

in its Hardware and Home Improvement segment as a result of the acquisition of the Baldwin and Weisqr businesses.

{d) As of December 31, 2004; redeemable preferred stock of subsidiary was included in other current liabilities. As of December 31, 2002 and 2003,
redeemable preferred stock of subsidiary was included in other long-term liabilities. ‘

vy b
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview ‘

The Corporation is a global manufacturer and
marketer of power tools and accessories, hardware
and home improvement products, and technology-
based fastening systemns. As more fully described
in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, the Corporation operates in three
reportable business segments — Power Tools and
Accessories, Hardware and Home Improvement,
and Fastening and Assembly Systems — with these
business segments comprising approximately 749%,

16%, and 10%, respectively, of the Corporation's

sales in 2006. As more fully disclosed in Note 2
of Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements, on
March 1, 2006, the Corporation acquired Vector.
Vector, a designer and marketer of consumer
portablie power products, is included in the Power
Tools and Accessories segment.

The Corporation markets its products and services
in over 100 countries. During 2006, approximately
649, 21%, and 15% of its sales were made to
customers in the United States, in Europe (includ-
ing the United Kingdom and Middle East); and in
other geographic regions, respectively. The Power
Tools and ‘Accessories and Hardware and Home
Improvement segments are subject to general
economic conditions in the countries in which
they operate as well as the strength of the retail
economies. The Fastening and Assembly Systéms
segment is also subject to general economic condi-
tions in the countries in which it operates as well
as to automotive and industrial demand.

An overview of certain aspects of the Corporation’s
performance during the year ended December 31,
2006, follows:

» Sales for 2006 were $6,447.3 million, which
represented a 1% decline from 2005 sales of
$6,523.7 mitlion.

+ Excluding incremental sales of the acquired Vector
business, sales for 2006 declined by 3% from the
2005 level. That decline was driven by lower sales
in the United States due, in part, to weak demand
in the face of slowing residential construction and
actions taken by certain major customers late in
2006 to reduce inventory levels. The Corporation
expects that continued weakness in key sectors of
the U.S. economy in 2007, including significantly
lower housing starts, will result in a sales decrease
in the first six months of 2007, as compared to the
corresponding 2006 period.
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+ Operating income as a percentageé of sales for
2006 decreased by approximately 70 basis points
from the 2005 level to 11.5%. A principal factor
in that decline was rising commaodity costs,
which increaséd cost of goods sold in 2006 by
approximately $95 million over the 2005 level
and are expected to increase cost of goods sold
by approximately $120 million in 2007 over the
2006 level.

» Interest expense (net of interest income) rose by
$28.4 million in 2006 over the 2005 level, primarily
as a result of higher prevailing U.S. interest rates,
including the impact on the Corporation's foreign
currency hedging activities, and higher borrowing
levels.

« Net earnings from continuing operations were
$486.1 million, or $6.55 per diluted share, for

_ the year ended December 31, 2006, as compared

to $532.2 million, or $6.54 per diluted share, in
2005. Net earnings from continuing operations for
the year ended December 31, 2005, included two
unusual items: (i) $55.0 million of pre-tax income
($35.8 million after tax) associated with a favorable
settiement of environmental and product fiability
coverage litigation with an insurer; and (ii) $51.2
million-of incremental tax expense associated
with the repatriation of foreign earnings under the
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004.

» Diluted earnings per share of $6.55 for the year
ended December 31, 2006, benefited from lower
weighted-average shares outstanding, principaily

‘as a result of share repurchases. During 2006, the

Corporation repurchased approximately 11.8 million
shares of its common stock at a cost of $896.0
million. Shares used in computing annual diluted
earnings per share declined by 9%, from 81.4 mil-
tion for 2005 to 74.2 million for 2006.

+ The acquisition of Vector on March 1, 2006, not
only broadened the Corporation’s product offerings
in its Power Tools and Accessories segment but also
contributed 2% in incremental sales growth to the
year ended December 31, 2006.

The preceding information is an overview of cer-
tain aspects of the Corporation's performance
during the year ended December 31, 2006, and
shoutd be read in conjunction with Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations in its entirety.

In the discussion and analysis of financial con-
dition and results of operations that follows,
the Corporation generally attempts to list con-
tributing factors in order of significance to the
point being addressed. Also, the Corporation
has attempted to differentiate between sales of
its “existing” businesses and sales of acquired
businesses. That differentiation includes sales
of businesses where year-to-year comparability
exists in the category of “existing” or “legacy”




businesses. For example, in 2006, the sales of Vector
are included in sales of acquired businesses.

Sales-

The following chart provides an analysis of the
consolidated changes in sales for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS) 2006 2005 2004
Totai sales ' $6,447.3  $6,523.7 $5,398.4
Unit volume - existing {a) (2% 7% . 10%
Unit volume — acquired (b) 2% 14%, 9%,
Price (1% (1% @)%
Currency . . . —% 19, 3%
Change in total sales 1Y% 21% 20%

(a) Represents change in unit volume for businesses where year-to-year
comparability exists; however, includes unit volume in 2005 of the
European FLEX power tools business sold in November 2005.

(b) Represents change in unit volume for businesses that were acqunred
and were not included in prior perlod results.

Total consolidated sales for the year ended
December 31, 2006, were $6,447.3 million, which
represented a 1% decrease from 2005 sales
of $6,523.7 million. Excluding the incremental
effects of the Vector acquisition, unit volume
declined by 2% from the 2005 level. That 2%
decline was driven by lower sales in the United
States due, in part, to weak demand in the face
of slowing residential construction and actions
taken by certain major customers late in 2006
to reduce inventory levels. Vector, a consumer
portable power business acquired on March 1,
2006, contributed 2%, to 2006 consolidated sales.
Pricing actions had a 1% negative impact on sales
in 2006, as compared to 2005. The effects of
foreign currency did not have a material effect on
sales in 2006, as compared to 2005.

Total consolidated sales for the year ended De-
cember 31, 2005, were $6,523.7 million, which
represented a 21% increase over 2004 sales of
$5,398.4 million. Excluding the incremental ef-
fects of the MasterFix business for the first three
months of 2005 and of the Porter-Cable and Delta
Tools Group for the first nine months of 2005,
total unit volume increased by 7% during the year
ended December 31, 2005. That 7% increase was
primarily driven by growth in the Corporation’s
industrial power tools and plumbing products
businesses in the United.States. Unit volume of
acquired businesses contributed 14% to the sales
growth for 2005 over the 2004 levels. Pricing
actions had a 1% negative effect on sales for 2005,
as compared to 2004. The effects of a weaker U.S.
dollar as compared to other currencies, particu-
larly the Canadian dollar, Brazilian real, and euro,
caused the Corporation’s consolidated sales for
2005 to increase by 1% over the 2004 levels.

Earnings:

The Corporation reported consolidated operating
income of $740.4 million on sales of $6,447.3
million in 20086, as compared to operating income
of $794.9 million on sales of $6,523.7 million in
2005 and to operating income of $613.2 mllllon
on sales of $5,398.4 million in-2004.

Consolidated gross margin as a percentage of
sales for 2006 was 34.8%, as compared to 35.5%
for 2005. That decrease in gross margin was pri-
marily a resuit of significant commodity inflation,
coupled with the negative effects both of pricing
actions and of lower sales and production volumes
over which to leverage fixed costs, which offset the
positive effects that resulted from restructuring
and productlwty initiatives as well as favorable
product m|x

Consolidated gross margin as a percentage of
sales for 2005 was 35.5%, as compared to 36.4%
for 2004. The Corporation estimates that the
Porter-Cable and Delta Tools Group acquisition
had an approximate 150 basis point negative
impact on consolidated gross margin as a per-
centage of sales for the year ended December
31, 2005. In addition to favorable product mix,
the results of restructuring and other productiv-
ity initiatives, the leverage of fixed costs over a
higher sales base, and foreign currency effects
favorably impacted gross margin as a percentage
of sales in the Corporation’s legacy businesses.
These positive factors were partially offset by
increased raw material costs, the negative effects
of pricing actions, higher pension expense, and
transition costs associated with integration of
lockset operations in the Hardware and Home
improvement segment.

Consolidated selling, general, and administrative
expenses as a percentage of sales were 23.3%
in both 2006 and 2005 and 25.1% in 2004.
Consolidated selling, general, and administrative
expenses.in 2006 decreased by $21.1 miltion
from the 2005 level. That decrease resulted from
declines in certain sales-related expenses due, in
part, to lower sales volume as well as from declines
in certain employee-related expenses, including
performance-based incentive compensation, which
offset incremental expenses of the acquired Vec:
tor business and the unfavorable effect of foreign
currency translation.

Consolidated selling, general, and administrative
expenses in 2005 increased by $169.9 million
over the 2004 level, The effects of acquired busi-
nesses and foreign currency translation accounted
for approximately two-thirds of that increase,
with the remainder principally resulting from

BLACK & DECKER 19




additional sales-related expenses associated with
the higher level of sales experienced during 2005.
The reduction in selling, general, and administra-
tive expenses as a percentage of sales during 2005
as compared to the 2004 level was principally
due to the impact of the Porter-Cable and
Delta Tools Group acquisition - due to the lower
expenses of that business - and the leverage of
expenses over a higher sales base in the Corpo
ration’s legacy businesses.

Consolidated net interest expense (interest ex-
pense less interest income) was $73.8 million
in 2006, as compared to $45.4 million in 2005
and $22.1 million in 2004, The increase in net
interest expense in 2006, as compared to 2005,
was primarily the result of higher prevamng
U.S. interest rates, including the impact on the
Corporation’s foreign currency hedging activities,
and higher borrowing levels. The higher net
interest expense in 2005, as compared to
2004, was primarily the result of both higher
borrowing levels and higher interest rates, inciud-
ing the effects of higher prevailing U:S. interest
rates on the Corporation’s foreign currency hedging
activities,

Other expense (income) was $2.2 million in 2006,
as compared to $(51.6) million in 2005 and
$2.8 million in 2004. As more fully described in
Note 21 of Notes to Consolidated Financial State-
ments, the Corporation received a payment of
$55.0 million in 2005 relating to the settlement
of environmental and product liability coverage
litigation with an insurer.

Consolidated income tax expense of $178.3
million, $268.9 million, and $157.6 million was
recognized on the Corporation’s earnings from
continuing operations before income taxes of
$664.4 million, $801.1 million, and $588.3 mil-
lion, for 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. The
Corporation’s effective tax rate was 26.8% for
2006, as compared to an effective tax rate of
33.69%, for 2005 and 26.8%, for 2004, While the ef-
fective tax rate in 2006 approximates that in 2004,
the 2005 effective tax rate reflects incremental tax
expense of $51.2 million associated with the re-
patriation of forelgn earnings under the American
Jobs Creation Act of 2004 and the tax effects
— $19.2 million - of the $55.0 million of income
recognized upon settlement of environmental and
product liability coverage litigation with an insurer
during 2005. Absent those items, the 2005 effec-
tive tax rate would also approximate the effective
tax rates in 2006 and 2004. A further analysis of
taxes on earnings is included in Note 12 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Corporation reported net earnings from
continuing operations of $486.1 million, or $6.55
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per share on a diiuted basis, for-the year ended
December 31, 2006, as compared to net earnings
from continuing operations of $532.2 million, or
$6.54 per share on a diluted basis, for the year
ended December 31, 2005, and $430.7 million,
or $5.31 per share on a diluted basis, for the year
ended December 31, 2004,

The Corporation reported a net loss of $.1 million
from discontinued operations in 2005, as com-
paréd to net earnmgs from discontinued operations
of $14.9 mitlion in 2004. As more fully described
in Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial State-
ments, net earnings from discontinued operations
for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
reflected a $.1 million loss and a $12.7 million
gain, respectively, on the sales. of discontinued
operations. The $.1 million loss recognized in
2005 related to the sale ¢f the discontinued DOM
business. The $12.7 million gain recognized dur-
ing 2004 consisted of a $37.1 million gain on the
sale of two discontinued businesses (NEMEF and
Corbin) in early 2004, partially offset by a $24.4
million goodwill impairment charge associated
with the discontinued DOM business. The Corpo-
ration reported net earnings of $486.1 million,
$532.1 million, and $445.6 million, or $6.55,
$6.54, and $5.49 per share on a diluted basis,
for the years ended December 31 2006, 2005,
and 2004, respectively.

In addition to the matters previously noted, diluted
earnings per share for 2006 benefited from lower
weighted-average shares outstanding. Shares used
in computing diluted earnings per share for 2005
of 81.4 million, declined by 9% to 74.2 million
shares for 2006, principally as a result of share
repurchases. Shares used in computing diluted
earnings per share for 2004 of 81.1 million
approximated the 2005 level.

Business Segments

As more fully described.in Note 18 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, the Corpora-
tion operates in three reportable business seg-
ments: Power Tools and Accessories, Hardware
and Home Improvement, and Fastening and As-
sembly Systems. -

POWER TOOLS AND ACCESSORIES

Segment sales arid profit for the Power Tools and
Accessories-segment, determihed on the basis
described in Note 18 of Notes to Consclidated
Financial Statements were as follows (in millions
of dollars)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 2005 2004
Sales to unaffiliated
customers $4,735.6 '$4,821.4 $3,84038

Segment profit 5700 6349 488 4




Sales to unaffiliated customers:in the Power Tools
and Accessories segment during 2006,decreased
2% from the 2005 level. Sales of the acquired
Vector business resulted in a 2% increase in sales
during 2006. That increase was offset by a four-
percentage point decline in sales of the legacy
Power Tools and, Accessorles businesses . that
was primarily attnbutable to lower sales in the
United States, partlally offset’ by higher sales
outside of the United States.

Sales in North America decreased at.a mid-
single-digit rate during 2006 as compared to
the prior year's level. Sales of the Corporation’s
industrial power tools and accessories business
in the United States decreased at a mid-single-
digit rate primarily as a result of lower sales of
equipment (due largely to lower;sales of genera-
tors and compressors), construction tools, and
woodworking tools. The U.S. industrial power tools
and accessories business was adversely impacted
by weak demand in the face of slowing residential
construction.and actions taken by certain major
customers late in 2006 to reduce inventory levels.
Sales of the consumer power tools and accesso-
ries business in the United States decreased at a
low single-digit rate primarily as a result of lower
consumer power tool and pressure washer sales,
which were partially offset by the sales of the ac-
quired Vector business. Excluding the sales of the
acquired Vector business, sales of the consumer
power tools and accessories business declined at
a low double-digit rate from the 2005 leve! with
sales down across most channels and product
lines. Actions taken by major. retailers to reduce
inventory levels also negatively.impacted the U.S.
consumer power tools and accessories business
in 2006. in Canada, sales decreased at a low
single-digit rate, as a double-digit rate of decline
in sales of consurmer power tools and accessories
was partially offset by a mid-single-digit rate
of increase in sales of industrial power tools
and accessories, .

Sales of the European power tools and accessories
business during 2006 increased at a low single-
digit rate over the level experienced in 2005. A
mid-single-digit rate of increase of organic sales
was partially offset by the sales decline that
resulted from the divestiture of the FLEX business
in late 2005. While sales grew in 2006 across
most markets, marked growth was experienced
in the Middle East and Africa region as well as in
Eastern Europe. Sales of the European industrial
power tools and accessories business increased
at a low single-digit rate in 2006. That increase
was the result of a double-digit rate of increase
in legacy sales of the industrial power tools and

accessories business in Europe which was partially
offset by the effects of the FLEX divestiture. Sales
of the Corporatlons consumer power tools and
accessories business in Europe increased at alow
single-digit rate during 2006.

Sales in other geographic areas increased at a
double-digit rate in 2006 over the 2005 level.
That increase resulted from a double-digit rate of
increase in Latin' America and a mid-single-digit
rate of increase in Asia.

Segment profit as a percentage of sales for the
Power Tools and Accessories segment was 12.0%
for 2006, as compared to 13.29% for the cor-
responding 2005 period. The incremental effect
of the Vector acquisition on segment profit as a
percentage of sales for 2006 was not material.
Gross margm as a percentage of sales for 2006
declined in comparison to theé corresponding 2005
period primarily due to negative pricing actions,
lower sales and production volume over which to
absorb fixed costs, and commodity inflation. Those
negative factors were mitigated by the benefits of
restructuring and productivity initiatives as well.as
favorable mix. Selling, general, and administrative
expenses as a percentage of sales for 2006 in-
creased, as compared to the corresponding 2005
period, due principally to the de-leveraging of fixed
and semi-fixed costs over a lower salés base.

Sales to unaffiliated customers in the Power Tools
and Accessories segment during 2005 increased
26% over the 2004 level. The incremental effect of
the acquired Porter Cable and Delta Tools Group
for the first nine months of 2005 accounted. for
19 percentage points of the 26% increase in
2005, while sales of the legacy Power Tools and
Accessories businesses, including the acquired
Porter-Cable and Delta Tools Group for.the final
three months.of 2005, accounted for the remain-
ing 7 percentage points of growth.

Sales in North’America increased 36% during
2005 over the prior year's level. Of this increase,
27 percentage points were due to the incremental
sales of the acquired Porter-Cable and Delta Tools
Group for the first nine months of 2005 and the
remaining 9 percentage points were due to the
legacy power tools and accessories business.
Sales. of the Corporation’s legacy industrial
power. tools and- accessories business in North
America increased at a double-digit rate over the
2004 levels. Sales of the Corporation’s legacy
consumer power tools and accessories business
increased at a mid-single-digit rate as. a result
of h|gher sales of consumer power tools and
accessories, lawn and garden products and clean-
ing and_lighting products e v
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Sales in Europe during 2005 increased at a mid-
single-digit rate over the 2004 ievels due to the
incremental effect of the acquired Porter-Cable
and Delta Tools Group. Excluding the incremen-
tal effect of the acquired Porter-Cable and Delta
Tools Group, sales in Europe increased slightly
over the 2004 ievel. Sales of the Corporation’s
legacy industrial power toois and accessories
business in Europe during 2005 increased at a low
single-digit rate as compared to 2004 as weaker
economic conditions in the United Kingdom
mitigated growth in other regions. Sales of the
Corporation’s legacy consumer power tools and
accessories businesses in Europe during 2005
approximated sales in the prior year. in November
2005, the Corporation sold the FLEX business, the
major European component of the Porter-Cable
.and Delta Tools Group.

Sales in other geographic areas increased at a
double-digit rate during 2005 over the 2004 levels.
That increase resulted from a double-digit rate
of increase in Latin America and Asia, which was
partially offset by'a double-digit rate of decline
in Australia. '

Segment profit as a percentage of sales for the
Power Tools and Accessories segment was 13.2%,
for 2005, as compared to 12.7% in 2004, That
increase in segment profit as a percentage of sales
resulted from a reduction in selling, general, and
administrative expenses as a percentage of sales
partially offset by a lower gross margin as a per-
centage of sales, The reduction in selling, general,
and administrative expenses as a percentage of
sales was attributable to both the impact of the
Porter-Cable and Delta Tools Group acquisition
- due to the lower expenses of this business —and
the leverage of expenses over a higher sales base
in the Corporation’s legacy businesses. Gross
margin as a percentage of sales declined
during 2005 as comipared to 2004 as the impact
of the lower-margin Porter-Cable and Delta Tools
Group offset improvements in gross margin as a
percentage of sales in the Corporation’s legacy
businesses. Gross margin improved in the legacy
businesses in 2005 due to favorable product
mix, productivity gains, foreign currency effects,
restructuring savings, and absorption benefits,
which offset the negative effects of pricing actions
and raw material inflation. Due to the ongoing
integration of the acquired Porter-Cable and Deita
Tools Group into its legacy businesses, it is difficult
to precisely determine the individual profit con-
tributions of the acquired Porter-Cable and Delta
Tools Group and of the legacy businesses. The
Corporation estimates that the Porter-Cable and
Delta Tools Group acquisition had an approximate
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60 basis point negative impact on segment profit
as a percentage of sales for 2005.

HARDWARE AND HOME IMPROVEMENT

Segment sales and profit for the Hardware and
Home Improvement segment, determined on
the basis described in Note 18 of Notes to Con-
solidated Financial Statements, were as follows
(in millions of dollars).

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200‘6 2005 2004
Sales to unaffiliated

customers $1,003.4 £1,0198 $970.2
Segment profit : 1354 1439 1463

Sales to unaffiliated customers in the Hardware
and Home Improvement segment during 2006
decreased 2% from the 2005 level, due primarily
to a mid-single-digit rate of decline in sales of
plumbing products. Despite a double-digit rate
of decline in U.S. housing starts in 2006, sales
of security hardware products approximated the
2005 level. Sales of Kwikset products grew at a
low single-digit rate, as higher retail sales and
the effects of a price increase during the fourth
quarter of 2006 offset weakness in the wholesale
channel. That growth in Kwikset sales offset a low
single-digit rate of decline in sales of Weiser and
Baldwin products.

Segment profit as a percentage of sales in the
Hardware and Home Improvement segment de-
creased from 14.1% in 2005 to 13.5% in 2006.
The decline in segment profit as a percentage of
sales in 2006 was attributable to a decline in gross
margin, as the favorabie effects of restructuring/
integration and productivity initiatives, coupled
with price increases instituted by the segment,
were insufficient to offset the negative effects
of significant commodity inflation, particularly
with respect to copper and zinc, and lower sales
and production volumes. Selling, general, and
administrative expenses as a percentage of sales
decreased in 2006, as compared to 2005, as a
result of cost reduction initiatives.

Saies to unaffiliated customers in the Hardware
and Home Improvement segment increased
5% during 2005 over the 2004 level. During
2005; sales of plumbing products increased at
a double-digit rate over the 2004 leve! due to
increased listings at a significant customer and
strong sales at other retailers. Sales of security
hardware preoducts in 2005 increased slightly
over the 2004 level, as a mid-single-digit rate
of increase in sales of the Kwikset business in
North America was substantially offset by a mid-
single-digit rate of decline in sales of the Baldwin
and Weiser businesses.




Segment profit as a percentage of sales for the
Hardware and Home Improvement segment was
14.19% for 2005 and-15.1%, for 2004. The decline
in segment profit as a percentage of sales in 2005
was attributable to a decline in gross margin,
which was primarily due to the negative effects
of pricing actions, higher raw material costs, and
transition costs associated with the integration
of lockset operations, including the closure of a
manufacturing site. Gross margin for 2005 was
also negatively impacted by the write-down of
property and equipment. Selling, general, and
administrative expenses as a percentage of sales
decreased slightly in 2005, as compared to the
2004 tevel, due to the leverage of expenses over a
higher sales base in the Kwikset and Price Pfister
businesses, which was partially offset by increased
distribution and transportation costs. :

FASTENING AND ASSEMBLY SYSTEMS-

Segment sales and profit for the Fastening and
Assembly Systems segment, determined on the
~ basis described in Note 18 of ‘Notes to Con-

solidated Financial Statements, were as follows
{in millions of dollars):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 2005 2004

Sales to unaffiliated customers $666.5  $662.2 & $619.9
Segment profit 95.8 94.6 84.2

Sales to unaffiliated'customerS'in the Fastening
and Assembly Systems segment increased 1%
in 2006 over the 2005 level. Sales ot the North
American businesses declined at a mid- single-digit
rate, reflecting both weak industrial sales and weak
automotive sales in the face of productlon cuts
by automotive customers. Sales in the European
industrial business rose at a low single-digit rate
while sales in the European automotive business
approximated the prior year level. In Asia, sales
grew ata double-digit rate, reflecting strong sales
in both Japan and China. :

Segment profit as a percentage of sales for the
Fastening and Assembly Systems segment in-
creased slightly from 14.3% in 2005 to 14.49%
in 2006. The segment reduced selling, general,
and administrative expenses as a percentage of
sales, despite higher research and development
expenditures, due to spending controls in 2006.
Mowever; that favorability was offset by a decline
in gross margin, primarily as a result of com-
modity inflation and the unfavorable effects of
foreign currency.

Sales to unaffiliated customers in the Fastening
and Assembly Systems segment increased by 7%
in 2005 over the 2004 level, with the incremental
sales of the MasterFix business for the first three
months of 2005 accounting for 1 percentage point

of that increase. Sales in the automotive channel
in North America increased at a mid-single-digit
rate over the level experienced in 2004. Sales in
the industrial channe! in North America decreased
at a low single-digit rate, as compared to 2004.
Sales in Europe increased at a double-digit rate,
as compared to 2004. Sales in the European in-
dustrial business increased at a high single-digit
rate of- growth ~ due in part, to incremental sales
of the acquired MasterFix business — during 2005
over the 2004 level. Sales in the European auto-
motive business.increased at a double-digit rate
during 2005 over the 2004 level. Sales in Asia
during 2005 increased at a double-digit rate, as
compared to 2004

Segment proﬂt as a percentage of sales for the
Fastening and Assembly Systems segment in-
creased from 13.6% in 2004 to 14.3% in 2005.
The increase in segment profit as a percentage
of sales was attributable to the positive effects
of pricing actions and the leverage of expenses
over a higher sales base, partially offset by h|gher
commodity costs.

OTHER SEGMENT RELATED MATTERS

As indicated in the first table of Note 18 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Staternents, segment profit
(loss), associated with Corporate, Adjustments,
and Eliminations was ${(65.1) millicn, $(81.2)
million, and $(100.7) million for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.
Corporate expenses for the year ended December
31, 2006, declined from the prior year's level as the
positive effects of certain lower employee-related
expenses not allocated directly to the reportable
business segments (including performance-based
incentives), as well as higher Corporate expense
allocations charged directly to the Corporation’s
business segments, were partially offset by the
negative effects of higher pension and environ-
mental expenses.

Corporate expenses for the year ended December
31, 2005, dectined from the prior year’s level
as the positive effects of increased allocations
of Corporate expenses to the reportable busi-
ness segments to reflect the impact of acquired
businesses, lower expenses associated with
intercompany eliminations, and a lower level
of expenses directly related to the reportable
business segments offset the negative effects of
increased pension, postretirement benefits, and
environmental expenses.

As more fully described in Note 18 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, in determin-
ing segment profit, expenses relating to pension
and other postretirement benefits are based solely
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upon estimated service costs. Expense recognized
by the Corporation in 2006 relating to its pension
and other postretirement benefits plans increased
by approximately $13 million over the 2005 levels.
Expense recognized by the Corporation in 2005
relating to its pension and other postretirement
benefits plans increased by approximately $19
million over the 2004 levels. The adjustment
to businesses’ postretirement benefit expense
booked in consolidation as identified in the second
table included in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements was expense of $25.2 million
tn 2006, as compared to expense of $13.8 mil-
tion for 2005 and income cof $.8 million for 2004,
That increase in expense resulted from the higher
level of pension and other postretirement benefit
expenses in 2006 - excluding higher service costs
reflected in segment profit of the Corporation’s
reportable business segments — not allocated to
the reportable business segmeénts.

Income (expenses) directly related to reportable
business segments booked in consolidation,
and, thus, excluded from segment profit for the
reportable business segments, were $(.2) million,
$3.3 million, and $(10.0) million for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The $.2 million of segment-related
expense excluded from segment profit in. 2006
principally related to an increase in reserves for
certain matters associated with the Power Tools
and-Accessories segment. However, that increase
was substantially offset by the reversal of certain
perfarmance-based expenses included in the
allocation of Corporate expenses to each of the
reportabie business segments. The $3.3 million of
segment-related income excluded from segment
profit in 2005 principally related to a reduction in
reserves for certain legal matters associated with
the Power Tools and Accessories and Hardware
and Home Improvement .segments. The $10.0
million of segment-related expense excluded
from segment profit in 2004 principally related
to restructuring-related expenses associated with
the Hardware and Home Improvement and Power
Tools and Accessories segments.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As more fully discussed in Note 3 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, the European
security hardware business, consisting of the
NEMEF, Corbin, and DOM businesses, has been
reflected as discontinued cperations in the Consoli-
dated Financial Statements. As such, the operat-
ing results, assets and liabilities, and cash flows
of the discontinued European security hardware
business have been reported separately from the
Corporation's continuing operations. In November
2005, the Corporation completed the sale of the
DOM security hardware business for an aggregate
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price of $17.2 million, net of cash transferred. In
January 2004, the Corporation completed the sale
of two European security hardware businesses,
NEMEF and Corbin, for an aggregate price of
$77.5 million, net of cash transferred.

Net (loss) earnings of the discontinued European
security hardware business were $(.1) million for
the year ended December 31, 2005, and $14.9
million ($.18 per share on a diluted basis) for the
year ended December 31, 2004.

Restructuring and
Integration Actions

The Corporation is committed.to continuous pro-
ductivity improvement and continues to evaluate
opportunities to reduce fixed costs, simplify or
improve processes, and eliminate excess capacity.
A tabular summary of restructuring activity dur-
ing the three years ended December 31, 2006,
is included in Note 20 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Staternents.

In 2004, the Corporation recognized $5.4 million
of pre-tax restructuring and exit costs related to
actions taken in its Power Tools and Accessories
segment. The restructuring actions taken in 2004
principally reflected severance benefits. The $5.4
million charge recognized during 2004 was offset,
however, by the reversal of $4.0 million of sever-
ance accruals established as part of previously
provided restructuring reserves that were no longer
required and $1.4 million representing the excess
of proceeds received on the sale of long-lived as-
sets, written down as part of restructuring actions,
over their adjusted carrying values. Adjustments to
the severance component of restructuring reserves
previously established related to: (i) actual attrition
factors that differed from those initially estimated;
(ii) more cost-effective methods of severing
employment that became probablé, typically based
on negotiations with trade unions or local govern-
ment institutions; and (iii) amendments to the
initial plan that were approved by the appropriate
level of management, based primarily on changes
in market conditions that dictated a modification
to the intended course of action. During 2004,
none of the adjustments to the severance obliga-
tions recorded in connection with restructuring
actions was individuaily significant. Adjustments to
the asset write-down component of restructuring
reserves previously established related to the
receipt of proceeds in excess of adjusted carry-
ing values of fixed assets that were disposed
of in connection with the restructuring actions.
Adjustments to the other charge component of
restructuring reserves previously established
principally related to settlement of operating
lease commitments at amountsless than initially




estimated or the Corporation’s ability to sublease
certain facilities exited as part of the restructur-
ing actions.

During 2005, the Corporation substantially com-
pleted the execution of the restructuring plan that
was formulated in the fourth quarter of 2001 and
the closure of the manufacturing facility in its
Hardware and Home Improvement segment.

In addition to the recognition of restructuring and
exit costs, the Corporation also recognized related
expenses, incremental to the cost of the under-
lying restructuring actions, that do-not qualify
as restructuring or exit costs under accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States
(restructuring-related- expenses). Those restruc-
turing-related expenses included items — directly
related to the underlying restructuring actions
- that benefited on-going operations, such as
costs associated with the transfer of equipment.
Operating results included approximately $10
miltion of restructuring-related expenses for'the
year ended December 31, 2006, as compared to
approximately $15 million of restructuring-related
expenses for both 2005 and 2004. -

The Corporation realized beneflts of approximately
$25 million and $35 million in 2006 and 2005,
respectively, ‘net of restructurlng related expenses.
Those benefits resulted in a reduction in cost of
goods sold of approximately $21 million and
$33'million in 2006 and 2005, respectively, and
a reduction in selling, general, and administrative
expenses of approximately $4 million and $2 mil-
lion in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

In addition to the prewously dlscussed restructur
ing actions, the Corporation also rdentlfled oppor-
tunities to integrate businesses it has acquired,
including the Porter-Cable and Deita Tools Group
as well as Vector.

Prior to the date of the acquisition of the Porter-
Cable and Delta Tools Group and during 2004, the
Corporation identified opportunities to restructure,

as well as to integrate, these businesses into its.

existing Power Tools and Accessories segment.
Subsequent to the acquisition, the Corporation
approved restructuring/integration actions relat-
ing to the acquired business in the amount of
$15.2 miilion. These actions principally reflected
severance costs associated with administrative
and manufacturing actions related to the acquired
businesses, including the closure of three manu-
facturing facilities, and lease and other contrac-
tual obligations for which no future benefit would
be realized. Certain of these restructuring/
integration actions commenced in 2004 and the

remainder commenced in 2005; all actions were:

substantially completed in 2006.

Prior to the date of the acquisition of Vector and
during 2006, the Corporation identified opportu-
nities to integrate that business into its existing
Power Tools and Accessories segment. Subsequent
to the acquisition, the Corporation approved
restructuring/integration actions relating to the
acquired business in the amount of $1.3 million.
These actions principally reflected severance costs
associated with administrative and distribution
functions of the acquired business, as well as the
cost of lease and other contractual obligations
for which no future benefit would be realized.
These actions are expected.to be completed by
mid-2007. )

The Corporation expects that incremental pre-tax
savings associated with the integration of the
Porter-Cable and Delta Tools Group will benefit
results by approximately $15 million in'2007, net
of integration-related expenses. The Corporation
expects that principally all of those incremental
pre-tax savings will benefit gross margin. Ultimate
savings realized from restructuring/integration
actions may be mitigated by such factors as ‘eco-
nomic weakness and competitive pressures, as
well as decisions to increase costs in areas such
as promotion or research and development above
levéls that were otherwise assumed.

Hedgmg Actlwtles

The Corporation has a number of manufacturmg
sites throughout the world and sells its prod-
ucts in more than 100 countries. As a resuit, it
is exposed to movements in the exchange rates
of various currencies against the United States
dollar. and against the currencies of countries in
which it manufactures. The major foreign curren-
cies in which foreign currency risks exist are the
euro, pound sterling, Canadian dollar, Japanese
yen, Chinese renminbi, Australian dollar, Mexican
peso, Czech koruna, and Braziljan real. Through its
foreign currency activities, the Corporation seeks
to reduce the risk that cash flows resulting from
the sales of products manufactured in a currency
different from that of the selling subsidiary WI|| be

" affected by changes in exchange rates.

From time to time, currencies may strengthen or
weaken in countries in which the Corporation sells
or manufactures its product. While the Corporation
will take actions to mitigate the impacts of any
future currency movements, there is no assurance
that such movements will not adversely affect
the Corporation.

Assets and liabilities of subsnduarues located out-
side of the United States are translated at rates
of exchange at the balance sheet date as more
fuIIy explained in Note 1 of Notes to Consotidated
Fmancuai Statements The resultlng translation
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adjustments are included in the accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) component
of stockholders’ equity. During 2006, translation
adjustments, recorded in the accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) compoenent of stock-
holders' equity, increased stockholders’ equity
by $70.3 million, as compared to a decrease of
$89.1 million in 2005.- ‘

The materials used in the manufacturing of the
Corporation's preducts, which include certain
components and raw materials, aré subject to
price volatility. These component parts and raw
materials are principally subject to market risk
associated with changes in the price of steel,
resins, copper, aluminum, and zinc. The materials
used in the various manufacturing processes are
purchased on the open market, and the majority
is available through multipte sources. Rising com-
modity costs decreased operating income in 2006
by approximately $95 million from the 2005 level
and are expected to decrease operating income
by approximately $120 mitlion in 2007 from the
2006 level. While future movements in prices of
raw materials and component parts are uncertain,
the Corporation uses a variety of methods, includ-
ing established supply arrangements, purchase
of component parts and raw materials for future
delivery, and supplier price commitments, to ad-
dress this risk. In addition, the Corporation utilizes
derivatives to manage its risk to changes in the
prices of certain commodities. As of December
31, 20086, the amount outstanding under com-
modity hedges was not material.

As more fully described in Note 10 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, the Corpora-
tion seeks to issue debt opportunistically, whether
at fixed or variable rates, at the lowest possible
costs. Based upon“its assessment of the future
interest rate environment and its desired variable
rate debt to total debt ratio, the Corporation may
elect to manage its interest rate risk associated

Principal Payments and Interest Rate Detail by Con_tractuaI‘Maturity Dates

with changes in the fair value of its indebtedness,
or the cash flows of its indebtedness, through the
use of interest rate swap agreements.

In order to meet its goal of fixing or limiting
interest costs, the Corporation maintains a
portfolio of interest rate hedge instruments. The
variable rate debt to total debt ratio, after taking
interest rate hedges into account, was 429 at
December 31, 2006, as compared to 649, at
December 31, 2005, and 52% at December
31, 2004. At December 31, 2006, average debt
maturity was 6.7 years, as compared to 4.9 years
at December 31, 2005, and 8.3 years at December
31, 2004. At December 31, 2006, average long-
term debt maturity was 8.0 years, as compared
to 7.3 years.at December 31, 2005, and 8.3 years
at December 31, 2004. -

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

The following table provides information.as of
December 31, 2006, about the Corporation’s
derivative financial instruments and other finan-
cial instruments that are sensitive to changes in
interest rates, including interest rate swaps and
debt obligations. For debt obligations, the table
presents principal cash flows and related average
interest rates by contractual maturity dates. For
interest rate swaps, the table presents notional
principal amounts and weighted-average inter-
est rates by contractual maturity dates. Notional
amounts are used to calculate the contractual
payments to be exchanged under the interest rate
swaps. Weighted-average variable rates are gener-
ally based on the London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR) as of the reset dates. The cash flows of
these instruments -are denominated in a-variety
of currencies. Uniess otherwise indicated, the
information is presented in U.S. dollar equivalents,
which is the Corporation’s reporting currency, as
of December 31, 2006.

FAIR VALUE
(ASSETS)/
(U.S. DOLLARS IN MILLIONS) 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 THEREAFTER TOTAL LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES ) : :
Short-term borrowings g ‘ . . .
Variable rate (other currencies)- $258 9 $ - $ — $ — $ - $ — $2589 $258.9
Average interest rate 5.43%, 5.43%,
Long-term debt : '
Fixed rate (U.S. dollars) $1502 , -2 - % . $ — % 4000 $750.0 $1,3005 $1,299.9
Average interest rate - 6.559, 7.009%, 7.009%, 7.13% 561% .6.18%
INTEREST RATE DERIVATIVES ' C
Fixed to Variable Rate Interest . , '
Rate Swaps (U.S. dollars) - $75.0 $ - $ — $ — $150.0 $175.0 $400.0 $1.3
Average pay rate (a) ‘ : .
Average receive rate . 5.229, . 5349, ' 4.86% ° 5.11%

{a) The average pay rate for swaps in the notional principal amount of $250.0 mllhon is based upon 3-month forward LIBOR {with swaps in
the notional principal amount of $75.0 million, $150.0 million, and $25.0 million maturing in 2007, 2011, and thereafter, respectively).
The average pay rate for the remaining swaps is based upon 6-month forward LIBOR.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATE
SENSITIVITY

As discussed previously, the Corporation is exposed
to market risks arising from changes in foreign
exchange rates. As of December 31, 2006, the
Corporation has hedged a portion of its 2007 esti-
mated foreign currency transactions using forward
exchange contracts. The, Corporation estimated
the effect on 2007 gross profits, based upon a
recent estimate of foreign exchange exposures, of
a uniform 10%, strengthening in the value of the
United States dollar. The Corporation estimated
that this would have the effects of reducing gross
profits for 2007 by approximately $26 million. The
Corporation also estimated the effects on 2007
gross profits, based upon a recent estimate of
foreign exchan’ge exposures, of a uniform 10%
weakening in the value of the United States dollar.
A uniform 109 weakening in the value of the United
States dollar would have the effect of mcreasnng
gross profits,

In addition to their direct effects, changes in ex-
change rates also affect sales volumes and foreign
currency sales prices as competitors’ products
become more or less attractive. The sensitivity
analysis of -the effects of changes in foreign cur-
rency exchange rates prewously described does
not reflect a potential change in sales levels or
local currency prices nor does it reflect higher
exchange rates, as compared to those experienced
during 2006, inherent in the foreign exchange
hedging portfolio at December 31, 2006.
Critical Accounting Policies

The Corporation’s accounting policies are more
fully described in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. As disclosed in Note 1 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the

preparation of financial statements in conformity -

with accounting principles generélly accepted in
the United States requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events
that affect th‘e amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Future
events and their effects cannot be determined with
absolute certainty. Therefore,.the determination
of estimates requires the exercise of judgment.
Actual results inevitably will differ from those
estimates, and such differences may be materlal
to the financial statements. .

The Corporahon belleves that, of its 5|gn|f|cant
dccounting policies, the following may, involve a
higher degree of judgment, ‘estimation, or com-
plexity than other accounting policies.

As more fully described in Note 1 of Notes to Con-
solidated Financial Statements, the Corporation

performs goodwill impairment .tests on at least
an annual basis and mare frequently in certain
circumstances. The Corporation cannot predict
the occurrence of certain events that might ad-
versely affect the reported value of goodwill that
totaled $1,195.6 million at December 31, 2006.
Such events may inciude, but are not limited to,
strategic decisions made in response to economic
and competitive conditions, the impact of the
economic environment on the Corporation's cus-
tomer base, or a material negative change. in its
relationships with significant customers,

Pension and other postretirement benefits costs
and obligations are dependent on assumptions
used in calculating such amounts. These as-
sumptions include discount rates, expected
return on plan assets, rates of salary increase,
health care cost trend rates, mortality rates, and
other factors. These assumptions are updated on
an annual basis prior to the beginning of each
year. The Corporation considers current market
conditions, including interest rates, in making
these assumptions. The Corporation develops the
discount rates by considering the yields available
on high-quality fixed' income investments with
maturities corresponding to the related benefit
obligation. The Corporation's discount rate for
United States defined benefit pension plans was
6.00% and 5.75% at December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively. As discussed further in Note
13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
the Corporation develops the expected return on
plan assets by considering various factors, which
include its targeted asset allocation percentages;
historic returns, and expected future returns. The
Corporation’s expected long-term rate. of return
assumption for United States defined benefit plans
for 2006 and 2007 is 8.75%.

The Corporation believes that the assumptions
used are appropriate; however, differences in
actual experience or changes in the assumptions
may materially affect the Corporation’s financial
position or results of operations. In accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States, actual results that differ from
the actuarial assumptions are accumulated and,
if |n excess of a specified .corridor, amortized
over future periods and, therefore, generally affect
recognized expense and the recorded obligation in
future periods. The expected return on plan assets
is. determined using the expected rate of return
and a calculated value of assets referfed to as the
market-related value of assets. The Corporation’s
aggregate fair value of plan assets exceeded the
market-related value of assets by approximately
$71.6 million as of the 2006 measurement
date. Differences between assumed and actual
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returns are amortized to the market-related value
on -a straight-line ‘basis over a five-year period.
Also, gains and losses resulting from changes
in assumptions and from.differences between
assumptions and actual experience (except
those differences heing amortized 1o the market-
related value of assets) are amortized over the
expected remaining service period of active plan
participants or, for retired participants, the aver-
age remaining life expectancy, to the extent that
such amounts exceed ten percent of the greater
of the market-related value of plan assets or the
projected benefit obligation at the beginning of
the year. The Corporation expects that its pension
and other postretirement benefit costs in 2007 will
approxnﬂate the costs recognized in 2006.

In September 2006, the Financial Accountmg
Standards .Board (FASB) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 158,
Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans — an Amendment of
FASE Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R). SFAS
No 158 requires two major changes to account-
ing for defined benefit and other postretirement
plans, with two different effective dates. The first
requirement of SFAS No. 158, which the Corpora-
tion adopted as of December 31, 2006, requires
the recognition of the overfunded or underfunded
status of a defined benefit postretirement plan as
an asset or a liability in the balance sheet, with
changes in the funded status recorded through
comprehensive income in the year in which those
changes occur. The impact of the Corporation’s
adoption of SFAS No. 158 is more fully described
in Note 13 of Notes to Consolldated Flnan<:|al
Statements. .- .

The second requirement of SFAS’ No 158, which
is effective for the Corporation as of December
31, 2008, requires that the funded status be
measured as of an entity’s year-end balance
sheet date rather than as of an earlier date as
currently permitted. The Corporation currently
uses a measurement date of ‘September 30 for
the -majority of its defined benefit pensmn and
postretirement plans. :

As more fully described in Item 3 of'this report,
the Corporation is subject to various legal proceed-
ings and claims, including those with respect to

environmental matters, the outcomes of which .

are subject to sugnn‘lcant uncertainty. The Corpo-
ration evaluates, among other factors, the degree
of probability of an unfavorable outcome, the
ability to make a reasonable estimate of the
amount of loss, and in certain instances, the
ability of other parties to share costs. Also, in
accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States, when a range of
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probable toss exists, the Corporation accrues at
the low end of the range when no other more’likely
amount exists. Unanticipated events or changes
in these factors may require the Corporation to
increase the amount it has accrued for any matter
or accrue for a matter that has not been previously
accrued because it was not probable.

Further, as indicated in Note 21 of Notes to
Consoclidated Financial Statements, insurance
recoveries for environmental and certain general
liability claims’have not been recognized until
reatized. Any insurance recoveries, if realized in
future periods, could have a favorable impact on
the Corporatnon s financial condition or results of
operations in the periods reallzed

The Corporatlon is also subject to income tax
laws in many countries. Judgment is required in
assessing the future tax consequences of events
that have been recognized.in the Corporation’s
financial statements or tax returns. Additionatlly,
the Corporation is subject to periodic examina-
tions by taxing authorities in many countries.’ The
final outcome of these future tax consequences,
tax audits, and changes in regulatory tax laws and
rates could materially impact the Corporation’s
financial statements. Adiscussion of a significant
tax matter'that is the subject of current litigation

- between the Corporation and-the- U.S. Internal

Revenue Service is included’ under the captlon
“Fmancual Condition”.

Impact of
New Accounting Standards

As more fully described, in Note 1 of Notes to
Consolldated Financial Statements the Corpora
tion has not yét fully-adopted the provisions of
SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accountmg for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans —an
Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 108,
and 132(R). Also, as more fully described’in Note
1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
the ‘Corporation has not yet adopted the provi-
sions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accountmg
for Uncertamty in Income Taxes = an interpretation of
FASB Statement No. 109, and SFAS No. 157, Fa.vr
Value Measurements

Fmanmal Condltlon

Operating activities provided.cash of $622. 7 m|I
lion for the year ended December 31, 2006, as
compared to $614.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005. Cash flow from operating
activities for the year ended December 31, 2005,
included cash flow from discontinued operations
of $4.7 million. The increase in cash -provided
by operating-activities in 2006, as compared to




2005, was primarily due-to lower cash used for
working capital; in particular trade receivables and
inventories (associated with the lower level of sales
and iower production levels), which was partially
offset by a higher usage of cash associated with
other current liabilities, including higher income
tax payments due, in part to tax payments as-
sociated with repatrlatlng fore|gn earnings under
the Amerlcan Jobs Creation-Act of 2004 (AJCA).
That improvement in cash used for working capltal

- was partially offset by lower net earnings in 2006

as compared to 2005, including the effect of a
$55 million pre:tax_ settlement w:th an msurer
in 2005

As part of |ts capitat management the Corpo:
ration reviews-certain working capital metrics.
For-example, the: Corporation evaluates its trade
receivables and inventory levels through the
computation of days sales outstanding and in-
ventory turnover ratio, respectively. The number
of days sales outstanding as of December 31,
2006, increased moderately over the level as of
December 31, 2005. "Average inventory turns as
of December 31, 2006, approximated inventory
turns as of December 31, 2005. '

Investnng actlwties used cash of $241.0 mil-
lion for the.year ended December 31, 2006, as
compared to $34.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005. This increase in cash used
was primarily the result of acquisition activity in
2006, as compared to divestiture activity in 2005.
Cash used by investing activities in 2006 included
the purchase of Vector for $158.5 million, net
of cash acquired, which was partially offset by
$16.1 million of cash received associated with
the final adjustment to the purchase price of
the Porter-Cable and Delta Tools Group. In 2005,
cash proceeds from divestiture and acquisition
activity totaled $61.2 million, including $33.6
million associated with the sale of Flex, $17.2
million associated with the sale of discontinued
operations, and $10.4 million associated with a
preliminary adjustment to the purchase price of
the Porter-Cable and Delta Tools Group. Capital
expenditures decreased $6.5 million during 2006
as compared to the 2005 period. The Corporation
anticipates that its capital spending in 2007 will
approximate $120 million. '

Financing activities used cash of $1,124.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2006, as com-
pared to $115.3 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2005. Cash used by financing activities in
2006 included the purchase by the Corporation
of 11,753,700 shares of its common stock at an
aggregate cost of $896.0 million, a net decrease
in short-term borrowings of $309.3 million, the
repayment of the 7.0% notes due February 1,

2006 of $154.6 million, and'dividend payments
of $109.1 million. In 2006, the Corporation
increased its dividend payment - on. a per share
basis from $1.12 during 2005 to $1.52 during
2006. Sources of cash from financing activities
in 2006 included the issuance of $300.0 million
of 5.75% Senior Notes due in 2016, and $48.2
million of proceeds received upon the issuance of
common stock, including certain related income
tax benefits, under stock based compensatlon

. plans.

Cash used by financing activities in 2005 included
the purchase by the Corporation of 6, 276,700
shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost
of $525.7 million, repayment of $136.0 million
of preferred stock of a subsidiary, and dividend
payments of $88.6 million. Sources of cash from
financing activities in 2005 included a net increase
in short term-term borrowings of $565.6 million
associated with the repatriation of foreign earn-
ings under the AJCA and $69.9 million of proceeds
received upon the issuance of common stock,
including certain related income tax benefits,
under stock-based compensation plans.

The Corporation carried out its share repurchase
program based upon the belief that its shares
were undervalued and to manage share growth
resuiting from option exercises. Subsequent to
December 31, 2006, the Corporation repurchased
1,139,300 shares of its common stock at an ag-
gregate cost of $90.7 million. In February 2007,
the Board of Directors authorized the Corporation
to repurchase an additional 3,000,000 shares of
its common stock. After those share repurchases
and that authorization, the Corporation has re-
maining authorization from its Board of Directors
to repurchase an additional 5,175,795.shares of
its common stock. In addition, in February 2007,
the Corporation announced that its Board of
Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of
$.42 per share of the Corporation’s outstandmg _
common stock payable during the first quarter

of 2007. The $.42 dividend represents an 11%

increase over the $.38 quarterly dividend paid
by the Corporation in 2006. Future dividends will
depend on the Corporations’s earnings, financial

. condition, and other factors.

During 2003, the Corporation received notices
of proposed adjustments from the United States
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) in connection with
audits of the tax years 1998 through 2000. The
principal adjustment proposed by the IRS consists
of the disallowance of a capital loss deduction
taken in the Corporation’s tax returns and interest
on the deficiency. Prior to receiving the notices of
proposed adjustments from the {RS, the Corpora-
tion fited a petition against the IRS in the Federal
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District Court of Maryland (the-Court) seeking
refunds for a carryback of-a portion of the afore-
mentioned capital loss deduction. The IRS sub-
sequently filed a.counterclaim to the Corporation’s
petition. In October 2004, the Court granted the
Corporation’s motion for summary judgment on its
complaint against the IRS and dismissed the IRS
counterclaim. in its opinion, the Court ruled in the
Corporation’s favor that the capital losses cannot
be disallowed by the IRS. In December 2004, the
IRS appealed the Court’s decision in favor of the
Corporation to the United States Circuit Court
of . Appeals for the Fourth Circuit (the Fourth Cir-
cuit Court). In February 2006, the Fourth Circuit
Court issued its decision, deciding two of three
issues in the Corporation’s favor and remanding
the third issue for trial in the Court. The Corpo-
ration intends to vigorously dispute the position
taken by the IRS in this matter. The Corporation
has provided adequate reserves in the event that
the IRS prevails in'its disallowance of the previ-
ously described capital loss and the imposition
of related interest. Should the IRS prevail in its
disallowance of the capital loss deduction and the
imposition of relatéd interest, it would result in a
cash outflow by the Corporation of approximately
$170 million. If the Corporation prevails, it would
result in the Corporation receiving a refund of
taxes.previously pald of apprommateiy $50 mll
lion, plus interest. -

v

The ongeing costs of compliance with existing
environmental laws and regulations have not had,
and are not expected to have, a material adverse
effect on the Corporation’s capital expendltures
or financial position.

The Corporation will continue to have‘cas‘h‘réquire-
ments to support seasonal working capital needs
and capital expenditures, to pay interest, and to
service debt. For amounts available at Decem-
ber 31, 2006, under the Corporation's revolving
credit facilities and under short-term borrowing
facilities, see Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. In order to meet its cash
requirements, the Corporation intends to use its
existing cash, cash equivalents, and internally
generated funds, and to borrow under its existing and
future unsecured revolving. credit facilities
or under short-term borrowing facilities. The Cor-
poration believes that-cash provided from these
sources will be adequate to meet its cash reguire-
ments ‘over the next 12 months.

The following table provides a summary of the
Corporation's contractual obligations by’ due
date (in millions of dollars). The Corporation’s
short-term borrowings, long-term debt, and lease
commitments are more fully described in Notes 8,
9, and 19, respectively, of Notes to Consolldated
FlnanC|aI Statements .

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

-* 'LESS THAN 1 YEAR

1TO3YEARS - 3TOS5YEARS AFTER 5 YEARS "“TOTAL
Short-term borrowings (a) (b) (c) $ 2596 $ — 3 - % — $ 2596
Long-term debt (c) ) ' 2306 141.5 5269 1,058.8 1,857.8
Operating leases . 681 874 315 © 99 196.9
Plrchase obligations (d) - 470.2 642 - 4 535.7
Total contractual cash obligations (e) $1,028.5 $293.1 $559.3 $1,069.1 ' $2,950.0

(a} As mare fully described in Note 8 of Nates to Consotidated Financial Statements, the Corporation has a $1.0 biltion commercial paper program as
well as a supporting $1. 0 billicn credit facility that matures in October 2009, There was $251.4 miilion outstanding under the commercial paper
program at December 31, 2006 The Corporat«on s average borrowmg cutstanding under these facilities during 2006 was $509.6 million.

(b) As described in Note 8 of Notes to Consohdated Financial Statements certain subsidiaries of the Corporation outside of the United States have
uncommitted lines of credit of $504.6 million at December 31, 2006. These’ uncommltted lines of credit do not have termination dates and are

reviewed periodically.

(c) Paymen:s due by period include contractually requlred interest payments.

(d) The Corporation enters into contractual arrangements that result in its obligation to make future payments including purchase obligations. The
Corporation enters into these arrangements in the ordinary course of business in order tc gnsure adequate levels of inventories, machinery and
equment or services. Purchase obligations primarity consist of inventory purchase commntments mcludlng raw matenals components and
sourced products, sponsorship arrangements and arrangements for other serwces

{e) The Corporation anticipates that fundlng of its pension and postretirement benefit plans in 2007 will approximate $35 million, That amount
principally represents contributions either required by regulations or laws or, with respect to unfunded plans, necessary to-fund current benefits. -
The Corporation has not presented estimated pension and postretirement !undlng in the table above as the funding can vary from year to year
based upon changes in the fair value of the plan assets and actuanal assumptlons
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND

. QUALITATIVE: DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK -

Information required under this Item is contained. _. _
in item 7 of this report under the caption “Hedging
Activities” and in Item 8 of this report in Notes 1

and 10 of Notes to Consolldated Financial State-
ments and is incorporated hefein by reference.

'Consolldated Statement ot Earnlngs

- ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
~ AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The following consohdated financial statements of
the Corporation and its subsidiaries are included
herein as indicated beIOW' S

Consolidated Fmanmal Statements _‘

. 1

- years ended December 31, 2006 2005

and 2004

LN ‘. . I . e (..‘.

Consolidated Balance Sheet = - = . -
- December 31 2006 and. 2005 L ‘q:
Consolidated Statement of Stockhoiders Eqwty
- years ended December 31 2006 2005

and 2004 N

Consohdated Statement of Cash Flows '

- years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, :
and 2004 .

«

Notes to Consoildated Fmancnal Statements

o~
' 4 -

Report of Independent Registered Pubhc* S

" Accounting Firm on Consolidated

Financial Statements

. . - '
’ia - [ - - '.-.,p

s
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. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS , i
THE BLACK & DECKER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES. -
(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)* :

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

e
PN

-

-

_ 2006 2005 -« . 2004
SALES ' o - $6447.3° °  $6,523.7 - $53984
Cost of goods sold ©-4,2058 - 42066 34329
Selling, general, and admlmstratwe expenses 1,501.1 - 1,522.2 ‘ 1 352 3
OPERATING INCOME B 740.4 794.9 613.2
Interest expense (net of interest Income of | :
$29.6 for 2006, $36.5 for 2005, and $35.8 for 2004) 73.8 45.4 22.1
Qther expense (mcome) s ) 2.2 (51.6) 2.8
EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS -
BEFORE INCOME TAXES 664.4 801.1 588.3
© Income taxes - ' . ‘. 178.3 - 268.9 157.6
NET EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 486.1 532.2 430.7
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (NET OF INCOME TAXES):
Earnings of discontinued operations (net of income taxes
of $.5 for 2005 and $1.0 for 2004) —_ — 2.2
(Loss) gain on sale of discontinued operations
- (net of impairment charge of $24.4 in 2004) —_ (1) 12.7
NET (LOSS) EARNINGS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS — 1 149
NET EARNINGS : $ 4861 = $ 5321 $ 4456
BASIC EARNINGS P:ER COMMON SHARE R
Continuing operations $ 6.74 $ 672 -% 540
Discontinued operatlons —_ — .19
NET EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE — BASIC $ 674 $ 6.72 $ 5.59
DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE )
Continuing operations % 6.55 $ 654 $ 531
Discontinued operations — — .18
NET EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE — .
ASSUMING DILUTION $ 6.55 $ 654 $ 549

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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' A "CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
" THE lBLACK & DECKER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
-{MILLIONS'OF DOLLARS)} :
DECEMBER 31, 2006 2005
ASSETS
. _Cash and cash equivalents  _ $ 2333 '$ 9676
Trade receivables, less allowances of $44 5 for 2006 and $45.1 for 2005 1,149.6 - 1,130.6
Inventories 1,063.5 1,049.1
Cther current assets _ 257.0 - . - 200.1
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS © 2,703.4 3,347.4
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 622.2 ' 668.8
GOODWILL 1,195.6 1,115.7
OTHER ASSETS 726.5 7105
$5,247.7 $5,842.4
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY h . _
Short-term borrowings $ 2589  $ 566.9
Current maturities of long-term debt -150.2 155.3
Trade accounts payable - 458.5 466.8
Other current liabilities .- 912,0 ©  -1,061.2
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,779.6 2,250.2
LONG-TERM DEBT ' R 1,170.3 1,030.3
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES . 197.6 188.5
POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS - o 482.4 402.0
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 454.2 408.2
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY e : Coa
Common stock {outstanding: December 31, 2006 — 66,734, 843 shares; '
December 31, 2005 — 77,357,370 shares) 334 38.7
Capital in excess of par value N 398.8
Retained earnings 1,473.0 1,511.4
Accumulated other comprehensive mcome (Ioss) (342.8) {385.7)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY '1,163.6 - 1,563.2
$5,247.7 $5,842.4
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. : '
!
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

. THE BLACK & DECKER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

DUTSTANDING
COMMON
SHARES

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2003 ' . 77,933,464

Comgprehensive income (Joss): :
Net earnings . —
Net gain on derivative instruments (net of tax) . _ —
Minimum pension liability adjustment (net of tax) ' ' T

Foreign currency translation adjustments, less effect of hedging activities ‘ -
(net of tax). .- -

Write-off of accumulated foreign currency translation adjustments o
due to sale of businesses —

Comprehensive income ' ' ) ‘ - ) .=

Cash dividends on common stock ($.84 per share) : —
Common stock issued under stock-based plans (net of forfeitures) 4,227,797
Purchase and retirement of common stock ' ~ (66,100)

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2004 - .82,095,161
Comprehensive incorme (loss}: ‘
Net earnings ° SR —
Net gain on derivative instruments (net of tax) ' ' ' _—
Minimum pension liability adjustment (net of tax) o -
Foreign currency transiation adjustments, less effect of hedging activities o :
(net of tax) : . : —_
Write-off of accumulated foreign currency translation adjustments : S L.
due to sale of businesses . o —_

Comprehensive income ‘ : : —

Cash dividends on common stock ($1.12 per share) : —
Comimon stock issued under stock-based plans (net of forfeitures) 1,538,909
Purchase and retirement of common stock ’ . (6,276,700)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2005 _ e 77,357,370

Comprehensive income (loss):
Net earnings ' ’ A o —
Net gain on derivative instruments (net of tax) -
Minimum pension liability adjustment (net of tax) —_

Foreign currency translation adjustments, less effect of hedging activities
(net of tax) —_

Comprehensive income —

Adoption of FASB Statement No. 158 (net of tax) —_
Cash dividends on common stock (31.52 per share) —

Common stock issued under stock-based plans (net of forfeitures) 1,131,173
Purchase and retirement of common stock (11,753,700)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2006 66,734,843

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CAPITALIN

ACCUMULATED

OTHER TOTAL

PAR EXCESS OF RETAINED COMPREHENSIVE STOCKHOLDERS'
VALUE PAR VALUE EARNINGS INCOME (LOSS) EQUITY
$39.0 $615.2 $ 689.8 $(452.2) $ 891.8
— — 4456 - - 445.6
— — — © A9 4.9
— — — 494 ' 49.4
— — - " 958 9538
— — P (28.7) (28.7)
— — 4456 121.4 567.0
— . = (67.5) — (67.5)
2.0, 214.6 — — 216.6
- (3.6) — — - (36)
41.0 ' "826.2 1,067.9 (330.8) 1,604.3
—_ — 532.1 — 532.1
— - — 34.8 34.8
- — — 15.9 15.9
- S _ | (89.1) (89.1)
— — —_ (16.5) (16.5)
— — 532.1 (54.9) 477.2
— = (88.6) — (83.6)
8 95.2 — — 96.0
(3.1) (522.6) — —_ . {(525.7)
38.7 . -398.8 1,511.4 (385.7) 1,563.2
— — 486.1 — - 486.1
_ —_ — 1 (8.8) (8.8)
— — — 80.5 - 805
— — — 703 70.3
— — 486.1 142.0 628.1
— _ — — (99.1) (99.1)
= DR - (109.1) — (109.1)
6 75.9 - — - 76.5
(5.9) (474.7) (415.4) — (896.0)
$33.4 $. — $1,473.0 $(342.8) $1,163.6
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_ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
THE BLACK & DECKER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES -
{MILLIONS OF DOLLARS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, . 2006 2005 2004

OPERATING ACTIVITIES S
Net earnings . $486.1 $532.1 $445.6

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to cash flow
- from operating activities of continuihg operations:

Earnings of discontinued operations —_ — (2.2)
Loss {gain} on sale of discontinued operations
(net of impairment charge) ) . —_ 1 (12.7})
Nan-cash charges and credits:
Depreciation and amortization 154.9 150.6 142.5
| Stock-based compensation 29.2 30.1 34.4
Other ' 9 6.4) (3.4)

Changes in selected working capital |tems
(net of effects of businesses acquired or dwested):

\ Tradé receivables 36.1 (128.5) 1.3

| Inventories : ‘ 57.5 (105.5) - (66.7)
* Trade accounts payable ‘ . '(25.1) 12.3 {(39.9)
Other current liabilities {180.8) 6l.7 558
" Restructuring spending ‘ .7 (13.6) (25.0)
Other assets and liabilities ' L 65.6 76.5 71.8
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS . 622.7 609.4 601.5

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES .

OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS —_ 4.7 3.1

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 622.7 0i4.1 604.6
INVESTING ACTIVITIES . '

Capital expenditures (104.6) (111.1) (117.8)
Proceeds from disposal of assets : : 14.7 12.7 26.0
Purchase of business, net of cash acquired (158.5) — (804.6)
Reduction in purchase price of previously acquired business 161 10.4 —
Proceeds from sale of business, net of cash transferred — 336

Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations, net of cash transferred =~ — 17.2 77.5
Investing activities of discontinued operations . — (.4 (1.2)
Cash inflow from hedging activities S 1.4 159 7.2
Cash outflow from hedging activities (14.8) (13.4) (7.9)
Other investing activities, net 4.7 .5 1.2

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES {241.0) (34.6) (819.6)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ' '

Net (decrease) increase in short-term borrowings : (309.3) 565.6 (3.4)
Repayment of preferred stock of subsidiary - (136.0) —
Proceeds from long-term debt :

(net of debt issue costof $2.4 for 2006 and 2004) 296.4 — 295.4
Payments on long-term debt (155.1) (.5 (.6)
Purchase of commaon stock (896.0) (525.7) (3.6)
Issuance of common stock 48.2 69.9 186.1
Cash dividends (109.1) (88.6) (67.5)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES . (1,124.9) (115.3) - 406.4
tffect of exchange ratigz changes on cash : 89 (11.0) 148
{DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS . (734.3) 453.2 206.2
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 967.6 514.4 308.2
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $233.3 $967.6 $514.4
See Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THE BLACK & DECKER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF éIGNlEICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation: The Consolidated
Financial Statements include the accounts of the
Corporation and its subsidiaries. Intercompany
transactions have been eliminated.

Reclassifications: Certain prior years’ amounts
in the Consolidated Financial Statements have
been reclassified to conform to the presentatlon
used in 2006.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of finan-
cial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results inevitably wilt differ from
those estimates, and 'such differénces may bé
material to the flnanmal statements

Revenue Recogmtlon Révenue from sales of

products is recognized when title passes, which
occurs either upon shipment or upon delivery
based upon contractual terms. The Corporation
recognizes customer program costs, |ncludmg
customer incentives such as volume or trade dis-
counts, cooperative advertising and other sales
related discounts, as a reduction to sales.

Foreign Currency Translation: The financial state-
ments of subsidiaries located outside of the United
States, except those subsidiaries operating in high-
ly inflationary economies, generally are measured
using the local currency as the functional currency.
Assets, including goodwill, and liabilities of these
subsidiaries are translated at the rates of exchange
at the balance sheet date. The resultant translation
adjustments are included in accumulated other
comprehensive income {loss), a separate compo-
nent of stockholders’ equity. Income and expense
items are translated at average monthly rates of
exchange. Gains and losses from foreign currency
transactions of these subsidiaries are included
in net earnings. For subsidiaries operating in
highly inflationary economies, gains and losses
from balance sheet translation adjustments are
included in net earnings. o

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equiva-
lents include cash on hand, demand depaosits, and
short-term investments with maturities of ‘three
months or less from the date of acquisition.

Concentration of Credit: The Corporation sells
products and services to customers in diversified
industries and geographic regions and, there-
fore, has no significant concentrations of credit
risk other than with two major customers. As of
December 31, 2006, approximately 30% of the
Corporation’s trade receivables were due from two
large home improvement retailers.

The Corporation continuously evaluates the credit-
worthiness of its customers and generally does
not reqwre collateral.

lnventones. inventories are stated at the lower of
cost or-market. The cost of United States inven-
tories is based primarily on the last-in, first-out
(LIFO) method; all other inventories are based on
the first-in, first- out (FIFO) method.

Property and Depreciation: Property, plant, and
equipment is stated at.cost. Depreciation is
computed generally on the straight-line method.
Estimated useful lives range from 10 years to
50 years for buildings and 3 years to 15 years
for machinery and equipment. The Corporation
capitalizes improvements that extend the useful
life of an asset. Repair and maintenance costs aré
expensed as incurred.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: Goodwill
represents the excess of the cost of an acquired
entity over the net of the amounts assigned to
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The
Corporation accounts for goodwill in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible As-
sets. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and intangible
assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not
amortized, but are subject to an impairment test
on an annual basis, or whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable. Other intangible assets
are amortized over their estimated useful lives.

The Corporation assesses the fair value of its
reporting units for its goodwill impairment tests
based upon a discounted cash flow methodology.
Those estimated future cash flows — which are
based updn historical results and current projec-
tions - are discounted at a rate corresponding to
a “market” raté. If the carrying amount of the
reporting unit exceeds the estimated fair value
determined through that discounted cash flow
methodology, goodwill impairment may be pres-
ent. The Corporation would measure the goodwill
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impairment loss based upon the fair value of the
underlying assets and liabilities of the reporting
unit, including any unrecognized intangible assets,
and estimate the implied fair value of goodwili.
An impairment loss would be recognized to the
extent that a reporting unit’'s recorded goodwill
exceeded the implied fair value of goodwill.

The Corporation pérformed its annual impairment
test in the fourth quarters of 2006, 2005, and
2004. No impairment was present upon perform-
ing these impairment tests., The Corporation
cannot predict the occurrence of certain events
that might adversely affect the reported value of
goodwill. Such events may include, but are not
limited to, strategic decisions made in response to
economic and competitive conditions, the impact
of the economic environment on the Corporation’s
customer base, or a material negative change in
its relationships with significant customers.

Product Development Costs: Costs associated with
the development of new products and changes
to existing products are charged to operations
as incurred. Product development costs were
$139.4 million in 2006,:$133.8 million in 2005
and $118.6 million in 2004. :

Shippirig and Hand!ing Costs: Shipping and
handling costs represent costs associated with
shipping products to customers and handling
finished goods. Inciuded in selling, general,
and administrative expenses are shipping and
handling costs of $338.8 million in 2006,
$339.2 million in 2005, and $278.1 million in
2004, Freight charged to customers is recorded
as revenue,

Advertising and Promotion: Advertising and promo-
tion expense, which is expensed as incurred, was
$182.4 million in 2006, $193.6 million in 2005,
and $174.9 million in 2004,

Product Warranties: Most of the Corporation's
products in the Power Tools and Accessories
segment and Hardware and Home Improvement
segment carry a product warranty. That product
warranty, in the United States, generally provides
that customers can return a defective product
during the specified warranty period following
purchase in exchange for a replacement product
or repair at no cost to the consumer. Product
warranty arrangements outside the United States
vary depending upon local market conditions and
laws and reguiations. The Corporation accrues
an estimate of its exposure to warranty claims
based upon both current and historical product
sales data and warranty cosis incurred.
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Postretirement Benefits: Pension plans, which cover
substantially all of the Corporation's employees
in North America (if hired before 2007), Europe,
and the United Kingdom (i hired before 2005),
consist primarily of non-contributory defined ben-
efit plans. The defined benefit plans are funded
in conformity with the funding requirements of
applicable government regulations. Generally,
benefits are based on age, years of service, and
the level of compensation during the final years of
employment. Prior service costs for defined benefit
plans generally are amortized over the estimated
remaining service periods of employees.

Certain employees are covered by defined con-
tribution plans. The Corporation’s contributions
to these plans are based on a percentage of em-
ployee compensation or employee contributions.

These plans are funded on a current basis.

In addition to pension benefits, certain postretire-
ment medical, dental, and life insurance benefits
are provided to most United States retirees who
retired before 1994, Most current United States
employees are eligible for postretirement medical
and dental benefits from their date of retirement
to age 65. Retirees in other countries generaily are
covered by government-sponsored programs.

The Corporation uses the corridor approach in
the valuation of defined benefit plans and other
postretirement .benefits. The corridor approach
defers all actuarial gains and losses resulting from
variances between actual results. and economic
estimates or ‘actuarial assumptions. For defined
benefit pension plans, these unrecognized gains
and losses are amortized when the net gains and
tosses exceed 10% of the greater of the market-
related value of plan assets or the projected ben-
efit obligation at the beginning of the year. For
other postretirement benefits, amortization occurs
when the net gains and losses exceed 109% of the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at
the beginning of the year. The amount in excess
of the corridor is amortized over the average
remaining service period to retirement date of
active plan participants or, for retired participants,
the average remaining life expectancy. .

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 158,

Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension

and Other Postretirement Plans — an Amendment of
FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R). SFAS

No. 158 requires two major changes to account-

ing for defined benefit and other postretirement
plans, with two different effective dates. The first
requirement of SFAS No. 158, which the Carpora-




tion adopted as of December 31, 2006, requires
the recognition of the overfunded or underfunded
status of a defined benefit postretirement plan as
an asset or a liability in the balance sheet, with
changes in the funded status. recordéd through
comprehensive income in the year in which those
changes occur. The impact of the adoptlon of SFAS
No. 158 is more fully descrlbed in Note 13.

The second requ!rement of SFAS No. 158 Wthh
is effective for the Corporation as of December
31, 2008, requires that the funded status be
measured as of an entity’'s year-end balance
sheet date rather than as of an earlier date as
currently permitted. The Corporation currently
uses a measurement date of September 30 for
the maijority of its defined ‘benefit pension and
postretirement plans. ‘ T

Stock-Based Compensation: In December 2004,
the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004)

(SFAS No. 123R), Share-Based Payment. This -

Statement revised SFAS No. 123 by eliminating
the option to account for employee stock op-
tions under Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25 (APB No. 25) and requires companies
to recognize the cost of employee services in
exchange for awards of equity instruments based
on grant-date fair value of those awards (the “fair-
value-based" method). Stock-based compensation
expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the requisite service period of the award, which
is generally the vesting period. The Corporation
determines the fair. value of its stock options
using the Black-Scholes option valuation model,
which incorporates assumptions such as expected
option life, interest rate, volatility, and dividend
yield. The Corporation determines the fair value
of its restricted stock based on the fair value of
its common stock at the date of grant.

SFAS No. 123R permitted public companies to
adopt its requirement using one of two methods.
The Corporation adopted SFAS No. 123R, effective
January 1, 2006, under the modified retrospective
method. The medified retrospective method per-
mits entities to restate all prior-periods presented
based. on the amounts previously recognized
under SFAS No. 123 for purposes of pro forma
disclosures. All prior periods were adjusted to give
effect to the fair-value-based method of accounting
for awards granted on or after January 1, 1995.

The impact of adopting SFAS No. 123R, as com-
pared to if the Corporation had continued to
account for share-based compensation under APB
No. 25, decreased the captions. noted below for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, as follows:. _

(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS . ' ‘
EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 2006 - 2005 2004

Earnings from )
contlnumg operatlons Co

before income taxes T $(163) $(18.2) H16.0)
Net earmngs from ‘ ) ‘

continliing operations ' (10.6) (11.8) (10.4)
Net earnings "o . (310.6) (11.8)  (10.4)
Basic earnings per share $ 19 %15 $(13)

Diluted earnings per share $ (14 $ (15 % (10

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the
Corporation presented all tax benefits of deduc-
tions.resulting from the exercise of options or
vesting of other stock-based arrangements as
operating cash flows in the Consolidated State-
ment of Cash Flows. SFAS No. 123R requires the
cash flows resultlng from the tax benefits of tax
deductions in excess of the compensation cost
recognized for share-based arrangements to be
classified as financing cash flows. The Corpora-
tion has recognized $9.7 million, $13.9 million,
and $14.5 million as a financing cash flow, within
the caption “Issuance of common stock”, for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004,
respectively, that would have been recognized as
an operating cash_flow prior to the adoption of
SFAS No.-123R. . ‘.

The following balances as of December 31, 2003,
have been restated to recognize stock-based com-
pensatlon expense for fiscal years 1995 to 2003,
in million of dollars

CAPITAL IN
EXCESS OF RETAINED
PAR VALUE EARNINGS

As previously reported $486.7 $7730

Adjustment for change in accounting * - 1285 . (B3.2)

A5 adjusted g - $615.2 $689.8

Prior to. the -adoption of SFAS No. 123R net de-
ferred tax assets as of December 31, 2005, were
$116.2 million; an adjustment of $25.8 million
was recogmzed for the change in accounting which
resulted in net deferred tax assets of $142.0 mil-
licn as. of that date.

i -
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Derivative Financial Instruments: The Corporation
is exposed to market risks arising from changes
in interest 'rates. With prodiucts and services
marketed in over 100 countries and with manu-
facturing sites in 10 countries, the Corporation
also is exposed to risks arising from changes
in foreign currency rates. The Corporation uses
derivatives principally in the management of inter-
est rate and foreign currency exposure. It does not
utilize derivatives that contain leverage features.
On the date on which the Corporation enters
into a defivative, the derivative is designated as
a hedge of the |dentmed exposure. The Corpora-
tion formally documents all relationships between
hedging instruments and hedged items; as well
as its risk-management objective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. In
this documentation, the Corporatlon specifically
‘identifies the asset liability, firm commitment,
forecasted transaction, or net investment that
has been designatéd as the hedged item’ and
states how the hedging instrument is expected to
reduce the risks related to the hedged item. The
Corporation measures effectiveness of its hedging
relat:onshlps both at hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis.

For each derivative instrument that is- de5|gnated
and qualifies as a fair value hedge, the gain
or loss on the derivative instrument. as well as
the offsetting loss ‘or gain on the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in
current earnings during the period of the change
in fair values. For each derivative instrument that
is designated and qualifies as a cash flow hedge,
the effective p'ortion of the gain or.loss on'the de-
rivative instrument is reported as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
and reclassified into earnings in the same period
or periods during which the hedged transaction
affects earnings. The remaining gain or loss on
the derivative instrument in excess of the cumu-
lative change in the present value of future cash
flows of the hedged item, if any, is recognized in
current earnings durmg the period of change. For
hedged forecasted transactions, hedge accounting
is discontinued if the forecasted transaction is no
longer probable of occurring, in which case previ-
ously deferred hedging gains or losses would be
recorded to earnings immediately. For derivatives
that are designated and qualify as hedges of net
investments in subsidiaries located outside the
United States, the gain or loss (net of tax), is
reported in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) as part of the cumulative translation
adjustment to the extent the derivative is effec-
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tive. For derivative instruments not designated as
hedging instruments, the gain or loss is recognized
in current earnings during the period of change.

Interest Rate Risk Management: The Corporation
has deSIgriated each of its outstanding interest
rate swap agreements as fair value hedges of the
underlying fixed rate cbligation. The fair value of
the inteérest rate swap agreements is recorded in
other current assets, other assets, other current
liabilities, or other long-term liabilities with a
corresponding increase or decrease in the fixed
rate obligation. The changes in the fair value of
the interest rate swap agreements and the under-
lying fixed rate obligations are recorded as equal
and offsetting unrealized gains and losses in
interest expense in the Consolidated Statement
of Earnings. The Corporation has structured-all
existing interest rate swap agreements to be 100%
effective. As a result, there is no current impact
to earnings resulting from hedge ineffectiveness.
Gains or losses resuitlng from the early termina-
tion of mterest rate swaps are deferred as an
mcrease ‘or decrease to the carrying value of the
related debt and amortized as an adjustment to
the yield of the related debt instrument over the
remaining period originally covered by the swap.

Foreign Currency Management: The fair vaiue of
foreign currency-related derivatives are generally
included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet in
other current assets and other current liabilities.
The earnings impact of cash flow hedges relating
to forecasted purchases of inventory is reported
in cost of goods sold to match the undertying
transaction being hedged. Realized and unrealized
gains and losses on these instruments are deferred
in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
until the underlying transaction is recognized
in earnings. - :

The earnings impact of cash flow hedges relating
to the variability in cash flows associated with for-
eign currency-denominated assets and liabilities
is reported in cost-of goods sold, selling, general,
and administrative expenses, or other expense
(income), depending on the nature of the assets
or liabilities being hedged. The amounts deferred
in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
associated with these instruments generally relate
to foreign currency spot-rate to forward-rate .dif-
ferentials and are recognized in earnings over the
term of the hedge. The discount or premium relat-
ing to cash flow hedges associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities is
recognized in net interest expense over the life
of the hedge.




New Accounting Pronouncements: In June 2006,
the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN
48), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109. FIN 48
provides guidance for the recognition, derecogni-
tion and measurement in financial statements of
tax positions taken in previously fited tax returns or
tax positions expected to be taken in tax returns.
FIN 48 requires an entity to recognize the financial
statement impact of a tax position whén it is more
likely than not that the position will be sustained
upon examination. If the tax position meets the
more-likely- -than-not recognition threshold, the tax
effect is recognlzed at the largest amount of the
benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of
being realized upon ultimate settlement. FIN 48
requires that a liability created for unrecognized
tax benefits shall be presented as a liability and
not combined with deferred tax liabilities or assets.
The application of FIN 48 may also affect the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and therefore may
change or create deferred tax liabilities or assets.

The Corporat1on believes that the adoption of
FIN 48 will require the reclassification of certain
deferred tax liabilities or assets to a liability for
tax uncertainties. FIN 48 permits an entity to
recogn:ze interest related to tax uncertainties
as either income taxes or interest expense. FIN
48 also permits an entity to recognize penalties
related to tax uncertainties as either income tax
expense or within other expense classifications.
The Corporation has recognized interest and
penalties, if any, related to tax uncertainties as
income tax expense and will-continue this treat-
ment upon adoption of FIN 48, The Corporation
will be required to adopt FIN 48 as of January 1,

2007, with any cumulative effect of the change in
accountmg principles recorded as an adjustment
to opening retained earnings. The Corporation is
currently evaluating the impact of its adoption of
FIN 48 and has not yet determined the effect.on
its earnings or financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No.
Y57, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No. 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and expands disclosures
about fair value measurements. This statement
clarifies how to measure fair value as permitted
under other accounting pronouncements but does
not require any new fair value measurements.
However, for some entities, the application of this
statement will change current practice. The Corpo-
ration will be required to adopt SFAS No. 157 as
of January 1, 2008. The Corporation is currently
evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 157 and has
not yet determined the effect on its earnings or
financial position,

NOTE 2: ACQUISITIONS

Effective March 1, 2006, the Corporation acquired
Vector Products, Inc. (Vector). The cash purchase
price for the transaction was $158.5 miillion, net
of cash acquired of $.1 million and including
transaction costs of $.9 million. The addition of
Vector to the Corporation’s Power Tools and Ac-
cessories segment allows the Corporation to offer
customers a broader range of products. ’

The transaction has been accounted for in ac-
cordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combina-
tions, and accordingly, the financial position and
results of operations have been included in the
Corporatlons Balance Sheet and Statement of
Earnings since the date of acqmsmon

The Corporation has not yet obtained all lnforma
tion, including, but ‘not limited to, finalization of
mdependent appraisals, required to complete the
purchase price allocation related to the acquisition
of Vector. The final allocation will be completed in
2007. The initial purchase price allocation of the
acquired business, based on preliminary appraisal
data and management’s estimates at the date of
acquisition, in millions of dollars, is as follows:-

Accounts receivable . $ 188
Inventories 42,5
Property and equipment . 2.6
Goodwill ) 84.2
Intangible assets 24.5
QOther current and long-term assets -+ - . 9.1

Total assets acquired , 181.7
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - 16k
Other liabilities ' 6.6

Total liabilities 23.2
Fair value of net assets acquired $158.5

The Corporation does not believe that the goodwill
and intangible assets recognized will be deductlble
for income tax purposes. :

Prior to the date of the acquisition of Vector and
during 2006, the Corporation identified opportu-
nities to integrate the business into its existing
Power Tools and Accessories segment. Subsequent
to the acquisition, the Corporation approved inte-
gration actions relating to the acquired business
in the amount of $1.3 million. These actions
principally reflect severance costs associated with
administrative and distribution functions .of the
acquired business as well as the cost of lease and
other contractual obligations for which no future
benefit will be realized. During 2006, the Corpora-
tion utilized $.3 million of this reserve.

Effective after the close of business on October 2,
2004, the Corporation acquired the Porter-Cable
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and Delta Tools Group frém! Pentair, Inc. The
Porter-Cable and Delta Tools Group included the
Porter-Cable, Delta, DeVilbiss Air Power Company,
Oldham Saw, and FLEX businesses. The addition
of the Porter-Cable and Delta Tools Group to the
Corporation's Power Tools and Accesscries seg-
ment allowed the Corperation to offer customers
a broader range of products. The cash purchase
price for the transaction was . $767.7 million, net
of cash acquired of $8.3 million and including
transaction costs of $5.7 million. That $767.7
million purchase price is net of purchase price
reduction-of $10.4 million and $16.1 million,
recewed in 2005 and 2006, respectively.

ThIS transaction has been accounted for in
accordance with SFAS No.141, Business Combi-
nations and- accordingly, the, fmanmal position
and results of operations 'have been included in
the Corporations operations since the date of
acqu15|t|on

The purchase price allocation of the acquured
businesses, based upon independent apprais-
als and .management’s estimates. at the date of
acquisition, in millions of dollars, is as follows:

Accounts receivable -$202.5
Inventories ] 172.3
Property and equipment - . L 1246
Goodwill . ‘ ; 335.7
Intangible assets ‘ 189.4
Other current and long-term assets . 44,2 -
Total assets acquired 1,068.7
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - 2259
Other liabilities 75.1
Total liabilities ,301.0
Fair value of net assets acquired ., $767.7

Prior to the date of -.the ach|S|t|on of the Porter-

Cable and Delta Tools Group and during 2004, the

Corporation identified opportunities to restructure
the acquired businesses as well as to integrate
these businésses into its existing Power Tools and
Accessories segment: Subsequent to the acquisi-
tion, the Corporation approved integration actions
relating to the acquired businesses. These actions
principally ‘reflect séverance costs associated
with administrative and manufacturing actions
related to the acquired businesses, including
the closure of three manufacturing facilities, as
well as the cost of lease and other contractual
obligations for whlch no future benefit would
be’ realized ‘ . :

3 P
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Arsummary of- integration-activity relating to
the Porter-Cable and Delta Tools Group during
2005 and 2006, in millions of dollars, is set
forth -below: -

SEVERANCE OTHER
BENEFITS CHARGES TOTAL

Integration reserve at ’ :

December 31, 2004 . $8.7 $6.2 .$149
Adjustments to previously ‘ ) )

provided reserves (.7 ) I (1.0)
Utilization of reserves: ’ _ .

Cash _ 58 . (34 . (8.2)
Integration reserve at N . o
. December 31, 2005 2.2 2.5, 4.7
Utilization of reserves: R

Cash _ (1.86) 2.5 (4.1}
Integration reserve - ) R

at December 31, 2006 $ 6 $ — % .6

The Corporation’ substantially completed these
restructuring actions during 2006.

In November 2005, the Corporation completed the
sate of the FLEX business of the acqwred Porter-
Cable and Delta Tools Group. The effect of the'sale
was not material to the Corporatlon

NOTE 3: DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Corporation’s former European security
hardware business is classified as discontinued
operations. The European security hardware busi-
ness consisted of the NEMEF, Corbin, and DOM
businesses. In. November 2005, the Corporation
completed the sale of the DOM security hardware
business and received cash proceeds, net of cash
transferred, of $17.2 million. In January 2004, the

" Corporation completed the sale of the NEMEF and

Corbin ,businesses and received cash proceeds,
net of, cash transferred, of $77.5 million.

During 2005, the Corporation recognized a
$.1 million loss on the sate of the DOM security
hardware business. Diiring 2004, the Corporation
recognized a $12.7 million net gain on the sale
of these discontinued. operations (the “net gain
on sale of discontinued operations”). That net
gain consisted of a $37.1 million gain on the sale
of the NEMEF and Corbin businesses, less-a
$24.4-.million goodwill impairment charge
associated with the DOM business. That goodwill
impairment charge was determined as the excess
of the-carrying value of goodwill associated with
the DOM business over its implied fair value.. .

' . . . rob




Sales and earnings before income taxes of the
discontinued operations for each year, in millions
of dollars, were as follows:

e * 2006 2005 ° 2004
Salés  $—  $60.1  $66.2
Earnings before income taxes e 5 3.1

The results of the discontinued operations do not
reflect any expense for interest allocated by or
management fees charged by the Corporatlon

NOTE a: INVENTORIES
The classification of mventorles at the end of each
year, in millions of 'dollars, was as follows:

- 2006 - 2005
FIFO cost )
Raw materials and work-i in-process ' $ 2844 % 2575
Flnished products . 769.6 | 7740

-, 10540 11,0315

Adjustment to arrive at”’ )
LIFQ inventory value ‘ 9.5 17.6

$1,063.5" $1,049.1

The cost of United States inventor‘ies stated under
the LIFO method was approximately 54% and 58%

of the value of total inventories at December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively. .

NOTE 5: PROPERTY PLANT

AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equment at the end of
each year, in millions of dollars, consisted of
the following:

. 2006 2005
Property, plant, and equipment at cost: :
Land and improvermnents $ 416 § 441
Buildings ‘ ' - 3119 309.7
Machinery and equipment 1,3828 11,3481
- o . 1,736.3 11,7019
Less accumulated depreciation 11141 11,0331

$ 622.2 3§ €68.8

Depreciation expense was $146.2, million,
$146.0 million and $140.8 million for the
years ended December 31, 2006 2005, and
2004, respectively. '

]

NOTE 6: GOODWILL AND OTHER
IDENTIFIED INTANGIBLE ASSETS -

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill
by reportable business segment, in mllllons of

dollars, were as follows

1}

POWER HARDWARE FASTENING &
. TOOLS & & HOME ASSEMBLY
- ACCESSORIES IMPROVEMENT - * SYSTEMS . -~ TOTAL
Goodwill‘at January 1, 2005 $ 417.1 $463.9 - $303.0 . $1,184.0
Actwlty associated with prior year acquisition (31.6) 3): - — (31.9)
Sale of business Tt (15.2) — Cam (15:2)
Currency translatlon adjustment (1.3 —_ (19.9) - (21.2)
Balance at December 31, 2005 369.0° 463.6 283.1 '1,115.7
Acquisition - . o7 B4.2 — - 84.2
Activity associated with prior year acquisition (17.0) — - - (17.0)
Currency translation‘adjustment 9 2 11.6 12.7
Balance at December 31, 2006 $437.1 $463.8 $294.7 $1,195.6
: "
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The carrying amount of acquired intangible assets
included in other assets at thé end of each year,
in million of dollars was as fellows

N . I R =
‘o 2006 ’ 2005

Customer relationships,
{net of accumulated amortlzatlon .
of $5.1 in 2006 and $1.4 in 2005} $ 54.2

Technology and patents
“{net.of. accumulated amortization S e -
of $4.9 in 2006 and $2.8 in 2005). - 171 16.6

Trademarks'and trade names
(net of accurmulated amortization . ‘
,0f $1.9 in 2006 and $.4 in 2005} . 207.0 208.5

Totabintangibles, net . $278.3 $261.1

*

Trademarks and trade names mclude indefinite-
lived-asséts of -$193.9 million at December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectwely

Expense assomated with- the amortrzatlon -of
intangible assets in 2006, 2005, and 2004 was
$7.3 million, $3.5 million, and $1.0 million, re-
spectively. At December 31, 2006, the weighted-
average amdartization periods were 15 years. for
customer, relationships, 10 years for technology
and patents, .and 10 years for trademarks. and
trade names. The estimated future amortization
expense for identifiable intangible assets during
each of the next five years is $7.7 million.

$ 360

NOTE 7: OTHER CURRENT LI‘ABILITIES_

Other current liabilities at the end of each year, in
millions of dollars, included the foltowing:

2006 2005
$2189 % 2428

Trade discounts and allowances

Employee benefits 1539 157.1
Salaries and wages 80.6 107.8
Advertising and promotion - 47.7 75.1
Warranty C . 60.2 57.3
Income taxes, mcludmg deferred taxes 35.2 101.0
All'other °~ Tt 31857 320.1

$912.0 $1,061.2

All other at December 31, 2006 and 2005, con-
sisted primarily of 'accruals for foreign currency
derivatives, environmental exposures, interest,
insurance, and taxes other than income taxes.

The following provides information with respect
to the Corporation’s warranty accrual, in millions
of dollars:

2006 2005

Warranty reserve at January 1 $57.3 $55.2
Accruals for warranties issued during

the period and changes in estimates

related to pre-existing warranties 116.4 116.4
Settlements made 18.1) (111.2
Additions due to acquisition 3.0 —
Reduction due to sale of business —_ (1.5)
Currency translation adjustments 1.6 (1.6}
Warranty reserve at December 31 $60.2 $57.3
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In December 2000, a subsidiary of the Corpora-
tion issued preferred shares to private investors,
redeemable in December 2005. Holders of the
subsidiary's preferred shares were entitled to an-
nual cash dividends of $10.7 million. The $10.7
million dividends on those -preferred shares were
classified as interest expense in 2004 and 2005,
The preferred shares were redeemed in December
2005 via a $136.0 million payment to the private
investors and the relinquishment of a liquid asset
in the amount of $50.0 millien that was prewously
mcluded in other current assets

NOTE 8 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings in the amounts of $258.9
million and $566.9 million at December 31,2006
and 2005, respectively, consisted prlmarrly of
borrowmgs under the terms of the Corporation’s
commercial paper program, uncommitted lines of
credit, or other short-term borrowing arrangements.
The weighted-average interest rate on short-term
borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2006 and
2005 was- 5:439% and 4.56%, respectively. -~

in November 2002, the Corporatlon entered mto a
$500 million agreement under which it may issue
commercial paper at market rates with maturi-
ties of up to 365 days from the date of issue. In
September 2004, the Corporation increased the
maximum amount authorized for issuance under

" its commercial paper program from $500 million

to $1.0 billion. There was $251.4 million and
$467.2 million outstanding under this agreement

" at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

. In April 2001, the Corporation entered into a
© $1.0 billion unsecured revolving credit facility that

would have expired in April 2006. In October 2004,
the Corporation replaced its $1.0 billion unsecured
revolving credit facility (the Former Credit Facil-
ity} that would have expired in April 2006 with a
$1.0 billion unsecured revolving credit facility (the
Credit Facility) that expires in October 2009. The
amount available for borrowing under the Credit
Facility at December 31, 2006 and 2005, was
$748.6 miliion and $532.8 million, respectively.

The average borrowings outstanding under the
Corporation’s Credit Facility and commercial
paper program during 2006 and 2005 were
$509.6 million and $213.8 million, respectively.

Under the Credit Facility, the Corporation has the
option of borrowing at LIBOR plus a specified
percentage, or at other variable rates set forth
therein. The Credit Facility provides that the inter-
est rate margin over LIBOR, initially set at .375%,
will increase (by a maximum amount of .625%,) or
decrease (by a maximum amount of .115%) based




upon changes in the ratings of the Corporatlon 5
long:term senior. unsecured debt.

In addition to interest payabié on the prmcnpal'

amount of indebtednéss cutstanding from time
to time under-the Credit Facility, the Corporation
is required to pay an annual facility fee, equal to
.125%, of the amount of the Credit Facility’s com:-
mitment, whether used or unused. The Corpora-
tion is also required to pay a utilization fee, equal
to. 125%, applied to the outstanding balance when
borrowings under the Credit Facility exceed 50%
of the Credit Facility. The Credit Facility provides
that both the facility fee and the utilization fee
will increase or decrease based upon changes in
the ratings of the Corporation’s Iong -term senior
unsecured debt.

The Credit Facility includes various custqmary
covenants. Some of the covenants limit the ability
of the Corporation and its subsidiaries to pledge
assets‘or incur liens on 'assets. Other financial
covenants require the Corporation to maintain
a specified: leverage ratio and interest coverage
ratio. As of December 31, 2006, the Corporation
was in compliance with all terms and conditions
of the Credit Facnhty '

Under the Former Credlt Facul:ty, the Corpora
tion had the option of borrowing at LIBOR plus a
specified percentage, or at other variable rates set
forth therein. The Former Credit Facility provided
that the interest rate margin over LIBOR, initiaily

set at .475%, would increase or decrease based

upon changes in the ratings of the Corporation’s
long-term senior unsecured debt. The Former
Credit Facility provided for.an interest rate margin
over LIBOR of .475% during 2004. In addition
to the interest payable on the principal amount
of indebtedness outstanding from time to time
under the Former Credit Facility, the Corporation
was required to pay an annual facility fee to each
bank, equal to'.150% and .125%, respectively,
of the amount of each bank's commitment,
whether used or unused. The .Corporation was
also required to pay a uiilization fee under the
Former Credit Facility equal to .125%, applied
to the outstanding balafice when borrowings
exceeded 50% of the facility. The Former Credit
Facility provided that both the facility fee and the
utilization fee would’ mcrease or decrease based
upon changes in the ratings of the Corporation’s
senior unsecured debt.

Under the terms of uncommitted lines of credit at
December 31, 2006, certain subsidiaries outside
of the United States may borrow up to an additional
$504.6 million on such terms as may be mutu-

ally. agreed. These arrangements do.not-have
termination dates and are revnewed pericdically.
No material compensatlng balances are required
or mamtamed

NOTE 9: LONG-TERM DEBT '

The composmon of long-term, debt at the end of
each year; in millions. of. dollars, was.as. follows:.

2006 . 2005

7.0% notes due2006 ., .., %, —.$% 1_5:4:6
6.55% notes due 2007 C il . 1500 150.0
7.125% notes due 2011 . ‘ e
(mcludlng discount of ) -\
© $1.4in 2006 and $1.7in 2005) 398.6 398.3
4.75% notes'due 2014 ’ T
(including discount of * §os s
. $1.7 in 2006 and $2.0 in 2005) S 2983 12980
5.75% notes'due 2016 L ‘
(including discount of ~ ’
$1.2in 2006) * - 298.8 .—-
7.05% notes due 2028 . 150.0° . 150.0
Other loans due through 2009 MR . 1.0
Fair value hedgingadjustment = ¢ -282 <337
Less current maturities ' S e
* of long-term debt - (150.2) (155.3)

I ' $117031 $1,030:3
As more fuIIy descr:bed in Note 1, at- December
31, 2006 and 2005, the carrying amount of long-
term debt and current maturities thereof includes
$24.2 million'and $33, 7 million, respectlvely, relat-
ing to outstandmg or términated fixed-to- variable
rate mterest rate swaps agreements !

.Indebtedness of subsidiaries: in the aggregate
principal amounts of $341.5 million and $867.8

millionnwere included in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet at'December 31, 2006 and-2005,.respec-
tively,-in short-term borrowings, current maturities
of long'term debt, and-long-term-debt.- . . +:

Principal payments on long-term debt obligations
due over the'next five years are as follows; $150.2
millionin- 2007, $.2 million in* 2008, $.1 million
in 2009, $ —'in 2010, and $400.0 million in
2011. Intérest’ payments on all indebtedness were
$98.0 millign in 2006 $94 3 m|II|on in 2005 and
$77.2 million in 2004

NOTE 10: DERIVATIVE. S

Y

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Corporat:on is exposed to market l‘ISkS arlsmg
from changes in interest rates.-With products and
services marketed in over 100 countries and with
manufacturing sites in 10 countries, the-Corpora-
tion also is exposed to risks arising from changes
in foreign exchange rates.
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Credit Exposure: The Corporatlon is exposed
to credit-related losses 'in the 'event of non-
performance by counterparties to certain derivative
financial instruments. The Corporation mionitors
the creditworthiness of the counterparties and
presently does not expect defauit by any of the
counterpartles The Corporation does not obtain
collateral in connection with its derivative financial
instruments,

The credit exposure that results from-interest rate
and foreign exchange contracts is the fair value
of contracts with a positive fair value as of the
reporting date. Some derivatives are not subject
to credit exposures. The fair value of all financial
instruments is summarized in Note 11.

interest Rate Risk Management: The Corporation
manages its interest rate risk, primarily through
the use of interest rate swap agreements, in
order to achieve a cost-effective mix of fixed and
variable rate indebtedness. It seeks to issue debt
opportunistically, whether at fixed or variable
rates, at the lowest possible costs. The Corpora-
tion may, based upon its assessment.of the future
interest rate environment, elect to manage its
interest rate risk associated with changes in the
fair value of its indebtedness, or the future cash
flows associated with its mdebtedness through
the use of interest.rate swaps. v .

The amounts exchanged by the counterparttes to
interest rate swap agreements normally are based
upon the notional amounts and other terms, gen-
erally related to interest rates, of the derivatives.
While notional amounts of -interest rate ‘swaps
form part of the basis for the amounts exchanged
by the counterparties, the notional amounts are
not themselves exchanged and, therefore, do
not represent a measure of the Corporation's
exposure as an. end user of derivative financial
instruments.

The-Corporation’s portfolio of-.interest rate swap
instruments at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
consisted of $400.0 million notional and $525.0
million notional amounts of fixed-tg-variable rate
swaps with a weighted-average fixed rate receipt
of 5.119% and 5.33%, respectively. The basis of
the variable rate paid is LIBOR.

Credit exposure on the Corporation’s interest
rate derivatives at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
was $4.7 million and $9.2 million, respectiveiy.
Deferred gains on the early termination of interest
rate swaps were $25.3 million and $29.7 million
at December 31, 2006 and 2005. .
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Foreign Currency Management: The Corporation
enters into various foreign currency contracts

-in.managing its foreign currency exchange risk.

Generally, the foreign currency contracts have
maturity dates of less than twenty-four months.
The contractual amounts of foreign currency
derivatives, principally forward exchange contracts
and purchased options, generally are exchanged
by the counterparties. The Corporation's foreign
currency derjvatives are designated to, and
generally are denominated in the currencies of, the
underlying exposures. To minimize the volatility of
reported equity, the Corporation may hedge, on a
limited basis, a portion of its net investment in sub-
sidiaries located outside the United States through
the use of foreign currency forward contracts and
purchased foreign currency options.

The Corperation seeks to minimize its foreign
currency cash flow risk and hedges its foreign
currency transaction exposures (that is, currency
exposures related to assets and liabilities) as well
as certain forecasted foreign currency exposures.
Hedges of forecasted foreign currency exposures
principally relate to the cash flow risk relating to
the sales of products manufactured or purchased
in a currency different from that of the selling
subsidiary. The Corporation hedges its foreign

currency cash flow risk through the use of for-

ward exchange contracts and, to a small extent,
options. Some of the forward exchange contracts
involve the exchange of two foreign currencies
according to the local needs of the subsidiaries.
Some natural hedges also are used to mitigate
risks associated with transaction and forecasted
exposures. The Corporation also responds to for-
eign exchange movements through various means,
such as pricing actions, changes in cost structure,
and changes in bedging strategies.

The. following tabie summarizes the contractual
amounts of forward exchange contracts as of

December 31, 2006 and 2005, in millions of

dollars, including details by major currency as of
December 31, 2006. Foreign currency amounts
were translated at current rates as of the re-
portmg date. The “Buy” amounts represent the
United States dollar equivalent of commitments
to purchase currencies, and the “Sell” amounts
represent the United States dollar equivalent of

commitments.to sell currencies.




AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006 BUY SELL

United States dollar $2,639.6, $(1,854.2)
Pound sterling - .1,338.1  (1,685.9)
Euro - T - g17.2 (1,081.1)
Canadian dofiar - — - (154.6)
Australian dollar e '41.7 (53.8)
Czech koruna -~ " . 586 —

Japanese yen . | : .. ' 88 ' (337
Swedish krona 78.5- (122.2)
Swiss franc C = P (152)
Norwegian krone - .+ . L= (30.8)
Danish krone ) X (31.7)
Other - . : ’ 11.3 (18.4)
Total : L '$5,096.4 $(5,081.6)
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005 '

Total . $2,950.5 $(2,954.6)

Nvopt'ions to buy. or sell curr-encies,‘wer‘e
outstanding at December 31, 2006,

Credit exposure on forelgn currency derivatives
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, was $32.7
million’ and $18. 2 mnlhon ‘respectively.

Hedge ineffectiveness and the portion of derivative
gains and losses excluded from the assessment
of hedge effectiveness related to the Corporatlon S
cash flow hedges that were recorded to earn-
ings during 2006, 2005 and 2004 were not
significant.

Amounts deferred in-accumulated other compre-
hensive income (loss) at December 31, 2006,
that are expected to be reclassified into earnings
during 2007 represent an after-tax loss of $1.2
million. The amount expected to be reclassified
into eafnings in the next twelve months includes
unrealized gains-and losses related to open
foreign currency contracts. Accordingly, the amount
that is ultimately reclassified mto earnmgs may
differ materially.

NOTE 11: FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of a financial instrument represents
the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged -in a ¢urrent transaction between
willing parties, other than in'a forced sale or liqui-
dation. Significant differences can arise between
the fair value and carrying amount of financial
instruments that are recognized at historical
cost amounts.

The following methods and assumptions were
used by the Corporation in estimating fair value
disclosures for financial instruments: '

« Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
certain other current assets, short-term borrow-

'
1

ings, and current maturities of long-term debt:
The amounts reported in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet approximate fair value.

» Long-term debt:*Publicly traded- debt is valued
based on quoted market values. The fair value of
other long-term debt is estimated based on quoted
market prices for the same or similar issues or on
the current rates offered to the Corporation for debt
of the same remaining maturities.

+ Interest rate hedges: The fair value of interest
rate hedges reflects the estimated amounts that
the Corporation would receive or pay to terminate
the contracts at the reporting date. -

+ Foreign currency contracts: The fair value of for-
ward exchange contracts and options is estimated
using prices established by financial |nst|tut|ons for
comparable instruments. .

The following table sets forth, in millions of
dollars, the carrying amounts and fair values of
the Corporation’'s financial instruments, except
for those noted above for which carrying amounts
approximate fair values:

ASSETS (LIABILITIES) . . CARRYING - | FAIR
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006 AMOUNT VALUE

Non-derivatives:

Long-term debt $(1,170.3) $(1,149.0)
Derivatives relating to: - . -
Debt ' ) ‘
Assets 47 47
Llabllltles (6.0) ©.0)
Foreign Currency o S
Assets 327 - 327
' Liabilities ' 1(29.6) (29.6)
ASSETS (LIABILITIES) CARRYING ' FAIR
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005 AMOUNT VALUE

Non-derivatives;

. Long-term debt $(1,030.3) $(1,039.0}
Derivatives relating to:
Debt . . Lo
- Assets ’ . 9.2 L, 92
* Liabilities -~ - : - Y 3.4y - (3.4)
Foreign Currency 1 - . o S
Assets’ 182 :. 182

- Liabilities . (23.9) (23.9)

NOTE 12: INCOME TAXES :
Earnings from continuing operations before in-
come taxes for each year, in m:lhons of .dollars,
were as follows -

. 2006 2005 2004
Umted.States : $295.7 - $400.0 = $2945
Other countries oo - 368.7 401.1 293.8
"$664.4 $801.1 $588.3
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Significant components of income taxes (benefits)
from continuing operations for each year, in mil-
lions of doliars, were-as follows: !

2006 . 2005 2004

Current: . '
United States $135.4 . $2196 $ 90.2
_ Other countries .o 611 = 39.7 48.3
O , 1965 - 2593 138.5

Deferred: e .

United States (11.9) 5.8 19.9
Other‘countries * 6.3 38 T (8
’ T (18.2) 9.6 19.1
- ., $178.3 $268.9 $157.6

Income tax expense recorded directly as an adjust-
ment to equity as a result of hedging activities was
not significant'in 2006, 2005, and 2004. Income
tax'benefits recorded directly as an adjustment to
equity as a result of employee stock options were
$9.7 million, $13.9 million, and $12.1 million in
2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. ,

[(ncome tax payments were $221.7 million in
2006, $165.8 million in 2005 and $89 5 million
in 2004,

Deferred tax (liabilities) assets at the end of each
year, in millions of doltars; were composed of ‘the
following:

2006 - 2005

Deferred tax liabilities:

Employee and postretirement benefits  $(157.8) $(157.8)

Other (421 (36.7)
Gross deferred tax liabilities (199.9) (194.5)
Deferred tax assets: '

Tax loss carryforwards 129.0 116.3

" Tax credit and capital foss ot : ’
carryforwards - 50.8 50.8
__Postretirement benefits. . _ . 1448 . 1224

Stock-based compensatlon 36.4 36.8

* Other LT 137.0 1156
Gross deferred tax assets 498.0 4419
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance (117.8) (105.4)

$180.3 %1420

Net deferred tax assets

Deferred income taxes are included in the Con-
solidated Balance Sheet in other current assets,
other assets, other current liabilities, and deferred
income taxes. Other deferred tax assets principally
relate to accrued liabilities that-are-not-currently
deductlble

Durlng the year ended, December 31 2006 the
deferred tax asset valuation allowance increased
by $12.4 million. The increase was principally
the result of tax losses generated by a subsidiary
that cannot be utilized in the consolidated
United States-tax return.

Tax loss carryfo'erardé at December 31, 2006,
consisted of net operating losses expiring from
2007 to 2026.
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The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (AJCA)
introduced a special one-time dividends received
deduction on the repatriation of certain foreign
earnings to the United States, during a one-year
period. The deduction resulted in an approximate
5.25% federal income tax rate on eligible repatria-
tions of foreign earnings. During the fourth quarter
of 2005, the Corporation’s Chief Executive Offi-
cer and Board of Directors approved a domestic
reinvestment plan as required by the AJCA. During
the fourth quarter of 2005, the Corporation re-
patriated $888.3 million of previcusly unremitted
foreign earnings and recognized $51.2 million of
tax expense related to the repatriation.

At December 31, 2006, unremitted earnings of
subsidiaries outside of the United States were
approximately- $1.5 billion, on which no United
States taxes had'been provided. The Corporation’s
intention is to reinvest these earnings permanently
or to repatriate the earnings only when possible
to.do so at minimal additional tax cost. It is not
practicable to estimate the amount of additional
taxes that might be payable upon repatrlatlon of
forelgn earnings.

A reconciliation of income taxes at the federal
statutory rate to the Corporation’s income taxes
for each year, both from continuing operations, in
millions of doliars, is as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Income taxes at federal
statutory rate

Taxes associated
with repatriation ‘
of foreign earnings R —

Lower effective taxes on ) :

'$2325  $2804  $205.9

(55.1)

earnings in other countries (59.0) 62.3)
Other —net = "= ' 4.8 {.4) 6.8
Income taxes ’ ' $178.3 $157.6

$268.9

NOTE 13: POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

As disclosed in Note 1 of Notes to Consolldated
Financial Statements, the Corporation adopted
SFAS No: 158 effective December 31, 2006. The
following table summarizes the |mpact of the
adoption of SFAS No. 158 on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at December 31 2006, in millions
of dollars

[

IMPACT O_F
SFAS NO. 158 '

PRIORTO  ADOPTION - AFTER

SFAS NO. 158 INCREASE SFAS NQ. 158

ADOPTION  (DECREASE) ADOPTION

Prepaid pension costs $ 46.1 $(14.8) $ 313

Other assets g 183 (18.3) . -_—

Pension liabilities 389.5 1159 505.4
Accumulated other -

comprehensive l0ss 413.4 149.0 562.4

The following tables set forth the funded status
of the defined benefit pension and postretirement




plans, and amounts recognized-:in the Consoli-

dated Balance Sheet, in millions of dollars. As
disclosed in Note'1, SFAS No. 158, -adopted by
the Corporation’ effective December 31,2006,
requires: the recognition of the overfunded or-
underfunded status of a defined benefit postretire-
ment plan as an asset or liability in the balance
sheet, with changes in the funded status recorded
through other comprehenswe income. Accord:”

ingly, the amounts presented in the table Below
for 2006 and 2005 utilize different accounting

methodologies. The Corporation uses a measure-
ment date of September 30 for the majority of its
~defined benefit pension and postretirement plans.
Defined postretirement benefits consist of several
. unfunded heaith care plans that provide certain
- postretirement medical, dental, and life insurance
benefits for most United States employees. ‘The
. postretirement medical benefits are contributory
-andinclude certain cost-sharing features, such as
deductlbles and co payments ~

v vl

2on

: O o L 2006 ) 2005
i " 3 PENSION - = PENSION
. : - PENSION. BENEFITS - OTHER PENSION BENEFITS OTHER
S T T Tt TS OBENEFITS T U PLANS T "POST T TTTUBENEFITS T 7T T PLANS - POST-
\ PLANS OUTSIDE:  RETIREMENT PLANS QUTSIDE -RETIREMENT
. INTHE OF THE BENEFITS IN THE OF THE BENEFITS
UNITED STATES+ UNITED STATES - ALL PLANS - UNITED STATES  UNITED STATES ALL PLANS
CHANGE IN'BENEFIT OBLIGATION —~ -~ T - T - TTrmoT s
Benefltobllgatron at begmmng of year . $1,045.7 $757.1 -°$103.8 ‘- $9948 '* - $7331 ' $1446
Service cost - ! Citae23s 0 147 S0 e v23s Mt v 137 st 8
Interest cost i +* - .. 584 . . 384 ' B9 L. 579 375 . L84
Ptan participants’ contributions YT — 1.6 35 — e + 69
Actuarial losses (gains) L2 9.7 (76.7) (10 0) 23.0 749 v (2.1)
Foreign currency exchange rafe changes R 90.0 a4, R (76.1) 2
Benefits pald : -{62.7) - (31.1) (15 1) (62.5) (29 8) (21 9)
Plan amendments 2 - ( 7) 14.7 2.2 . ,(32 5)
Curtailments _ — — — (5.7) - (.6)
Benefit obligation at end of year 1,074.8 794.0 - '88.8 1,045.7— - - -757.1- -~ - 1038
CHANGE, IN PLAN ASSETS ' ™. A T et 0
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 8904'  468.4 . — f _847.4' . 441 1 S —
Actyal return on plan assets - ' 888 " 516 - T e " 8s. 2" L
Expenses™ ~ © . © . IR 7.0 2., = (75) (4 -
Benefits pald e T (62. 7)_ - (29.9) 15.1" (62 5) --('29.4)‘ T (2ly)
Employer. contributions T a8 15.0 116 33 154° "' 150
Contributions by plan participants ! : - ./ 18 3.5 — 1.6 6.9
Acquisitions ; ., Love v Ty e - - 2.4 — —
Effects of currency exchange rates - 60.5 — —_— 45.1) -
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 914.2 566.0 — 890.4 468.4 —
Funded status . . -{160.6) , (228.0) (88.8) (155.3) (288.7) (103.8)
Contrrbutlons subsequent to measurement date -, 3.3 - — 36 —
(Accrued) benef:t cost at December 31 2006 $. (160. 6) - $(224.7) $(88.8)
Unrecognrzed -net actuarial loss - B 385.4 276.1 20.8
Unrecognized prior service cost . . 17.7 11.89 (35.2)
(Accrued) prepaid benefit cost™s =+ 2 NIl ot > Lt
at December 31,2005 . - . _c1 e o, ot $ 2478 $ 29 $(118.2)
AMOUNTS RECOGNIZED IN THE
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Noncurrent assets $ 31.3 $ - - J— $ 443 $ — | -
Current liabilities {9.3) 4.4) 9.3) (5.0) (15.0) (15.0)
Postretirement benefits (182.6) (220.3) (79.5) (101.0) (197.8) (103.2)
Net amoint recognized at Decemnber 31, 2006 $ (160.6) $(224.7) $(88.8) ' '
Intangible asset ' 7.3 12.0 —
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 302.2 203.7 —
Net amount recognized at December 31, 2005 $ 2478 $ 29 $(118.2)
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE ASSUMPTIONS
USED TO DETERMINE BENEFIT
OBLIGATIONS AS OF MEASUREMENT DATE :
Discount rate 6.00% 4.93%, 6.25% 5.75% 4.87% 6.00%
Rate of compensation increase 3.93% 3.65% —_ 3.929, 3.869, —
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The amounts recognlzed in accumulated other comprehensnve loss as of December 31, 2006, are as follows

. OTHER
'+« PENSION BENEFITS -+ PENSION BENEFITS POSTRETIREMENT
. . PLANS IN THE PLANS OUTSIDE OF BENEFITS R
. UNITED STATES THE UNITED STATES ALL PLANS - TOTAL
Prior service cost (credlt) $ 147 3 ‘.11.8 $303) . $ 44
Net:loss « . - P AT 3639 193.1 98 566.8
Total $378.6 $204.9 $21.1) - $562.4

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31, 2006, that are expected to
be recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost (credit) during 2007 are as follows:

QTHER
PENSION BENEFITS PENSION BENEFITS POSTRETIREMENT
PLANS IN THE PLANS QUTSIDE OF BENEFITS
UNITED STATES THE UNITED STATES ALL PLANS TOTAL
Prior service cost (credit) n . - %21 $16 $(4.6) $ (D
Net loss : 26.3 12.5 2 39.0
Total * - R A $28.4 - - $14.1 $ (4.9) $38.1

The allocation, by ',asset category, of assets of
defined benefit pension plans in the United States

at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectlvely, .

were as follows:

2005 -

The allocation, by asset category, of assets of
defined benefit pension plans outside of, the
United States at September 30, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, were as follows: :

‘PLAN ASSETS AT SEPTEMBER 30 - 2006 © PLAN ASSETS AT SEPTEMBER 30 . 2006 2005
Equity Securities ' 699, 729 Equity Securities 729, - 709
Fixed Income Securities 28% 269, Fixed Income Securities 219% 229,
Alternative Investments . . 3% 2% Real Estate . 5% 7%

. : T 100%  100% Other 2% 19,
At September 30, 2006, the Corporation’s targeted 100% 100%

allocation, by asset category, of assets of defined -

benefit pension plans in the United States is equity

securities — 65% (comprised of 50% U.S. and 15%
non-U.S. equities); fixed.income seCurmes 30%,.

and alternatlve mvestments - 5%
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.. At September 30, 2006, thé Corporation’s'tar’geted

allocation, by asset category, of assets of defined
benefit pension plans outside of the United States
is equity securities — 68%,; fixed income securities

" —25%: and real estate - 7%.

To the extent that the actual alflocation of plan
assets differs from the targeted allocation by -
more than 5% for any category, plan assets are

“w- re-balanced within three months

. The Corporation establishes its estimated long-

term return on plan assets considering various

‘factors, which include the targeted asset allocation

percentages, historic returns, and expected future
returns. Specifically, the factors are considered in
the fourth quarter of the year-preceding the year
for which those assumptions are applied. -
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Under all}stock optlon plans“there‘werer2*310 493
ushares rofiJcommonistock“reserved dorafuture
grants!aswf December l31m2006°‘= xTransactlons
arelsummarized:astfollows’ -7%8‘31‘1-'-9 b"MB—m
m'n,d & stsoibni en %itcu or{T-50itulip-iirs wiickTed:

UL a o ¢ ¢ STOCK; 11k 4 AVERAGE
3 “5‘,:-( .!..t.)‘ 1.8!8‘ . )LUBD OPT|ONS L EXERCISE PRICE

_Outstanding at '\, o.... r TR ',,:_:nf,,'"“"" o :‘;‘:
December 317560341 ot 15, :-157”9'1‘3""’“m $13.6
Granted »0'5*?-* i 710 325 s 62 34
Exerased T e g '-(3 817 697)}»404‘.1"43 41

Forfeited T 22 41 (161,627) (20illimgz gy

Outstandmg atrght e o N G

" Décember. 3185004‘.‘..."':‘:53___6 988, 914'%31‘“"""“45 ‘58
- nr

ﬁl:a' s‘d - (s f - . thif i 2 . . ﬁ £'82'126

Etizised ORI 3 ﬁ-‘""A(l 268653) Ry 3a4is

Forteited uJ’:OJ of abjow 18, Fe07/638)bagolazissiia
Outstandmg atJb HQUSTOC"}O\J j<iarg .aﬁﬂma]b]¢ 161 nsne
[ peDEcernber. 31 r 2005, SH0%",16.271:898! oA _49 86
Granted‘}J b}ﬂ” "Hoilbb~ 70 5774‘670 svitdsE2 91185
Exercrsedai}lrﬁob bee&b‘ »oatd (871’716).!;’1 095143176
'Forfelted‘j"tf;; SHOHRE 08" ri(138.840)24¢ Jorteaias
' Outstandingiat! \BUDN Bns’ pLuss ‘GUJ\ nonlim
e Decemberr31*2006n Batdali 6,036,011, 0rms $55.68

. Options expected.tovest:ataz ni grefaaF o fnk Antats
3, "December, 31,2006, 1kt arT 5,929,790 avitay-$55:10

Options exercisable aty: q—h;jgangqmn‘; haensd-Aooin (wf’t
.,.December.31 20061 .1 8243,269,. e $46.91

REX . e =
"AS of” Dec{ember 31 2006 the weugh—'tgd ave:amge
lremalmng'-contractual ‘termwasi5: 51years, o
tyears: and€4*3hyears fomopttonsnoutstandmg,
-optlons'expected to vesteand; optlons,,exerms
«able,_respectwelyaAs of Decemberf31h~2006,-gthe
aggregate_)mtrmsm Ivalue;,wasar$157‘~ rm|II|0n~
‘$157.1 mﬂhon‘;and $140: 7£m|llaon4for‘opt|ons
f outstandmg, optlons expected tovest;‘and: optlons

exermsabte,_respectlvely edt baxidgo e 461

et o Haodfls or . onf i Bopditscos
\The precedlng a'ggregate |ntr|n5|c lvalue‘s repre e’

sentsathettotaltpretax mtrmsrc;_value;(the dn‘fer
ence3betweenrtheglCorporatlon.s‘closmg stock
prlce 1on1the1|ast1trad|ng- day, offr2006jand the

lexercisey prlce,gmultlphed ¢by;:theynu mberﬂof jin: -

tthe. moneyloptions) that would have;been received
‘by.the-holders; oftthose .ophons‘spec:f:edrmtthe
table above had, aII.optionghoIders exermsed thetr
optlons omDecember 3142006 ,.fl'hesetamounts
-will: change;based: ontthe.falr;market .valuetofithe
Corporatlon s' stock e mlret e .he {‘: pora

.C‘a‘sch“recelved from optlon exercnses m 206@3
2005 and 2004 W25, $38. 5 mllllon $56 O m|II|on

and $171 6 mltllonr!respectlvely s

o . Ceati, e
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The».total; mtrlnsu%&value! of?ophons exercased‘rm
2006 s2005’tand12004lwas $39 lamiltion:s $52"7ﬁ
mllllon‘ and $95 6im|Il|onfrespectlvely The actual
5tax;beneflt reahzed“forothe ttaxrdeductionrfrom
ophontexermseséotaled $1'3‘4 million}, $18 2 mil:
,hon,,and 1$31. ~2|m|IIionnnr2006 ;2005)and12004’
respectlve!yt . alovginfa‘a 9VI—I§VI \eﬁ_;‘uan'nu n'ue

n'\m o‘nqw naoiliym hne nﬂl'trﬂ K tf\

The}welghted -average, grant -date fair..values,of.

AL A TASE R AT R Sy | e A My 0 R

optlonsttgrantedtdurlng[2006 2005gand'12004'
‘werei $25:52 per- shatel $26°125per share  and
’$20 46"'perrshare respectlvely Jhe ;fam«value
i_Scholes optlongvaluatlon model whtchﬂncorpo
rates assumptaons surroundlng expected.volatlhty,
dlwdend yleld the rlsk free mterest rate expected
the stock prlce on the grant date In connectlon
with the‘adoption;offSFASING] 123R andithe:2006
grarnt\oj employee stock optlons the Corpp)ra’gqn
.evalliated the assumptrons prevnously used. tfor
:estimating the “fairvalte:of the'optlons granted
'Based on;this:evaluation; mctudlng gundance pro
vided-by #Hi&'Securities-and- Exchange Commrssnon
Lin'Staffl Accounting:Bultéetin 107, the Corporatlon
‘determined:that a.combination, of’ hlstorlcauand
rlmplled;volatmty, rather than" hlstortcal volatlllty
alone provided a, better mducator,pf-future 'stock
prace;trends eThe volat:llty assumptlon utlllzed‘m
-determining the fair value of-stock’ optrons gr‘a'n,tled
“during 2006 was based upon the average of
h|stor|ca| and implied voIatlhty“:!ﬁThe Corporatlon
{determinedthe estimatéd’ expected hfe of: optlons
‘basedona  weighted-average ofl the average’period
vof-rtime’ from grant»daterto?exercrse: date?® the
laverage period of 'time'from'grant date’ toxcancel
flation date after vesting and the m|d pomt of time
to: explratnon for outstandlng vested ptlonsgl“"

.‘ 't' Lo A e
Optlons granted durlng 2006J 2005%‘ Yo ;‘2004
were determmed usmg the Black: Scholes“opt:on
Naluation‘mode! fwith the - followmg weighted-
t‘averageiassumptuons i+, gnginan hoynitacoeld

N T v
BRI MR L% "‘“‘ 2005“" F'2oo~’\“"“ir *2004
Ex ctedlfen eas o WTRigige ted g I L Ag
e I YRars s, 1| Db sy o s
;Interest rate ) 496‘7 404‘7 .‘3.;97%
Volatlllty- -“_“‘_, o - 258903107 213199,
Dividend yidig 2¢_____2e.a2 17669,18 11 36572 21436,

. et A TR B PR ol L) A
The Corporatlon has.a share repurchase program
that was |mplemented based on the belief that
|ts-shares were undervalued and to manage
.share growth resulting.from opt|on exerC|ses At
_December,31, 2006, the Corporation has remain:
ing authorization from its Board of ' Directors to
repurchase an additional 3,315,095 shares of its
common stock.




Restricted Stock Plan: in 2004, the Corporation
adopted a restricted stock plan. A total of
1,000,000 shares of restricted stock were autho-
rized under this plan..Under the restricted stock
plan, eligible employees are awarded restricted

shares of. the Corporation's common stock. Re-. '

strictions on awards generally expire from three
to four years after issvance, subject to continu-
ous employment and certain other conditions.
Transactlons are summarized as follows:

WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE
NUMBER FAIR VALUE AT
- OF SHARES GRANT DATE
Non-vested at o

December 31, 2003 — $ —
Granted - : 278,296 .57.28
Forfeited - (7,950) 62,80
Non-vested at . . .

December 31, 2004 270,346 '57.12
Granted - 199,630 82.23
Forfeited : (32,025) 67.72
Vested . (255) 55.23
Non-vested at .

December 31, 2005 -437696 t- T ‘67.80
Granted 230,134 91.58
Forfeited ) (37,093) 73.18
Vested | (12,699) . " 68.44
Non-vested at

December 31, 2006 . 618,038 $76.32

The fair value of the shares that vested during
2006 was $1.1 million. The fair value of

the shares that vested during 2005 was not ~

significant.

As of December 31, 2006, 369,008 shares of

common stock were reserved for future grants.

Performance Equity Plan: The Corporation also
has a Performance Equity Plan (PEP) under which
awards payable in the Corporation’'s common
stock are made. Vesting of the awards, which can
range from 0% to 150% of the initial award, is
based on pre-established financial performance
measures during a two-year performance period.
The fair value of the shares that vested during
2006 and 2005 was $7.4 million and $12.7 mil-
lion, respectively. No shares vested during 2004.
During 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Corporation
granted 44,988, 41,189, and 61,035 performance
shares under the PEP, respectively. At December
31, 2006 and 2005, there were 84,693 and
102,224 performance shares outstanding under
the PEP, respectively.

NOTE 18: BUSINESS SEGMENTS AND .
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION - .

The Corporation has elected to organize its busu

" nesses based principally upon products and

services. In certain instances where a business

. does not have a local presence in a particular

country or geographic region, however, the Corpo-
ration has assigned responsibility for sales of that
business’s products to one of its other busunesses
with a presence in that country or reglon

The Corporation operates in three reportable
business segments: Power Tools and_ Acces-
sories, Hardware and Home Improvemént, .and
Fastening and Assembly Systems. The Power
Tools and Accessories segment has worldwide
responsibility for the manufacture ‘and sale
of consumer and industrial power tools and
accessories, lawn and garden tools, and electric
cleaning, automotive, and lighting products, as
well as for product service. In addition, the Power
Tools and Accessories segment has responsibility
for the sale of security hardware to customers
in Mexico, Central America, the Caribbean, and
South America; for the sale of plumbing prod-
ucts to customers outside the United States and
Canada; and for sales of household products. On
March 1, 2006, the Corporation.acquired Vector.
On Qctober 2, 2004, the Corporation acquired the
Porter-Cable*and Delta Tools. Group from Pentair,
Inc. These acquired businesses are included in
the Power Tools and Accessories segment. The
Hardware and Home Improvement segment has
worldwide responsibility for the manufacture and
sale of security hardware (except-for the sale of
security hardware_ in Mexico, Central America,
the Caribbean, and South America). The Hard-
ware and Home Improvement segment also has
responsibility for the manufacture of plumbing
products and for the sale of plumbing products
to customers in the United States and Canada.
The Fastening and Assembly Systems segment has
worldwide responsibility for the manufacture and
sale of fastening and assembly systems.

Sales, segment profit, depreciation and amorti-
zation, and capital expenditures set forth in the
following tables exclude the results of the dis-
continued European security hardware business,
as more fully described in Note 3.
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Business Segments
(MILLIONS OF DOLLARS)

REPORTABLE BUSINESS SEGMENTS

POWER -  HARDWARE  FASTENING ' CURRENCY ' CORPORATE, |
' TOOLS & & HOME & ASSEMBLY TRANSLATION  ADJUSTMENTS, ' -
Year Ended December 31, 2006 ACCESSORIES  IMPROVEMENT SYSTEMS TOTAL .  ADJUSTMENTS & ELIMINATIONS CONSOLIDATED
Sales to unaffiliated customers $4,735.6  $1,0034 $6660.5 $6,405.5 $41.8 % = $6,447.3
Segment profit (loss) , ' . ,

(for Consolidated, operating income) 570.0 135.4 95.8 , 801.2 4.3 (65.1) 740.4
Depreciation and amortization 109.8 22.9 188 151.5 1.2 2.2, 154.9
income from equity method investees 13.2 — — . 13.2 — 1.1 12.1
Capital expenditures 71.7 140 16.6 102.3 Re) 14 104.6
Segment assets ' . :

" (for Consolidated, total assets) 2,7514 638.4 3766 .3,766.4 66.2 1,415.1  5,247.7
Investment in equity method investees 169 — 3 11.2 — (1.7) - 9.5
Year Ended December 31, 2005 ' , .

Sales to unaffiliated customers $4,821.4 $1,019.8 $662.2 $6,503.4 $20.3 $ — $6,523.7
Segment profit (loss)

(for Consolidated, operating income) 634.9 143.9 94.6 873.4 2.7 (81.2) 7949
Depreciation and amorti‘zation 102.4 256 18.7 146.7 A4 35 150.6
incorne from equity method investees 21.1 — — 21.1 — (1.7) 194
Capital expenditures 80.7 129 15.7 109.3 — 1.8 111.1
Segment assets . . L

(for Consolidated, total assets) 2,752.0 633.0 3785  3,7635 (33.3) 2,112.2 58424
Investment in equity method investees 8.9 — 3 g2 — (1.7) 7.5
Year Ended December 31, 2004 . )

Sales to unaffiliated customers $3,840.8 $970.2 $619.9 $5,4309 $(32.5) $ — | $5,3984
Segment profit {loss) :

(for Consolidated, operating income) 488.4 146.3 84.2 7189 G0 (100.7) 613.2
Depreciation and amortization 90.1 27.1 17.5 134.7 (1.2 . 9.0 1425
Income from equity method investees 158 — - 15.8 — £1.2) 146
Capital expenditures 78.8 259 140 ' 1187 19 0 117.8
Segment assets ) : ’

(for Consolidated, total assets) 2,709.8 604.9 362.6 36773 71.6 1,806.1 ' 5,555.0
Investment in equity method investees 125 — 3 12.8+« — (1.7) 11.1
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The profitability measure employed by the Cor-
poration and its chief operating decision maker
for making decisions about allocating resources
to segments and assessing segment perfor:
mance is segment profit (for the Corporation
on a consolidated basis, operating income). In
general, segments follow the same accounting
policies as those described in Note 1, except
with respect to foreign currency transiation and
except as further indicated below. The financial
statements of a segment’s operating units located
outside of the United States, except those units
operating in highly mflatlonary economies, are
generally measured using the local currency as the
functional currency. For these units located outside
of the United States, segment assets and elements
of segment profit.are translated using budgeted
rates of exchange. Budgeted rates of exchange
are established annuaily and, once established,
all prior period segment data is restated to reflect
the current year’s budgeted rates of exchange. The
amounts included in the preceding table under
the captions “Reportable Business Segments”,
and “Corporate, Adjustments, & Eliminations”
are reflected at the Corporation’s budgeted rates
of exchange for 2006. The ameunts included in
the preceding table under the caption “Currency
Translation Adjustments” represent the difference
between consolidated amounts determined using
those budgeted rates of exchange and those
determined based upon the rates of exchange
applicable under accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.. .

Segment profit excludes interest income and
expense, non-operating income and expense,
adjustments to eliminate intercompany profit in
inventory, and income tax expense. In determin-
ing segment profit, expenses relating to pension
and other postretirement benefits are based
solely upon estimated service costs. Corporate
expenses as well as certain céntrally managed ex-
penses, lncludlng expenses related to share-based
compensation, are allocated to each reportable
segment based upon budgeted amounts. While
sales and transfers between segments are
accounted for at cost plus a reasonable profit, the
effects of intersegment sales are excluded from
the computation of segment profit. Intercompany
profit in inventory is excluded from segment

assets and- is recognized as a reduction of cost
of goods sold by the selling segment when the
related inventory is sold to an.unaffiliated
customer..Because the Corporation compensates
the management of its various businesses on,
among other factors, segment profit,.the Corpora-
tion may elect to record certain segment-related
expense items of an unusual or non-recurring
nature in consolidation rather than reflect such
iterns in segment profit. In addition, certain segment-
related items of income or expense may be record-
ed in consolidation in one period and transferred
to the various segments in a later period..

Segment assets exclude assets of discontinued
operations pension and tax assets, intercompany
profit in inventory, intercompany receivables, and
goodwill associated with the Corporatlon 3 acqunsu
tion of Embhart Corporatlon in 1989,

The reconciliation of segment profit to consoli-
dated earnings from continuing operations before
income taxes for each year, in millions of dollars,
is as follows: - . . <o

2006 2005 2004

Segment profit for tofal
reportable business segments
lterns excluded from
,segment profit:
. Adjustment of budgeted
foreign exchange rates

.$801.2 $873.4 %7189

to actual rates v 4.3 2.7 5.0
Deprecuatlon of- ’ -
Corporate property - 9 (1.0) (1.2)

Adjustment to businesses’
postretirement benefit
-expenses booked e v o
in consolidation -{25.2) (13.8) .8

Other adjustments booked
in consolidation directly
related to reportable - .
business segments (.2) 33 (10.0)

Amounts allocated to businesses
in arriving at segment profit
in excess of (less than}
Corporate center operating .
expenses, eliminations, and . o
other amounts identified above (38.8) (69.7) (90.3)

Operating income _ 740.4 7949 6132
Interest expense, ‘

net of interest income 738 454 221
Other expense (income) 2.2 (51.6) 28

Earnings from continuing ~

operations before income taxes $664.4 $801.1 $588.3
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The reconciliation of segment assets to con-
solidated total assets at the end of each year, in
millions of dollars, is as follows:

2006 ' 2005 2004

Segment assets for
total reportable
business segments

Iltems excluded from
segment assets:
Adjustment of budgeted
. foreign exchange rates

$3,766.4 33,7635 $3,677.3

to actual rates 66.2 (33.3) 716
Goodwill 6258 6156 628.5
Pension assets 31.6 45.1 45.1

1,4515 11,1325

Other Corporate assets 757.7
: $5,247.7 $5,8424 $5555.0

Other Corporate assets principally consist of cash
and cash equivalents, tax assets, property, assets
of discontinued operations, and other assets.

Sales to The Horme Depot, a customer of the Power
Tools and Accessories and Hardware and Home Im-
provement segments, accounted for approximately
$1.3 billion, $1.4 billion, and $1.0 billion of
the Corporation’s consolidated sales for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and
2004, respectively. Sales to Lowe’'s Home
Improvement Warehouse, a customer of the
Power Tools and Accessories and Hardware and
Home Improvement segments, accounted for
approximately $.9 billion, $.9 billion, and
$.7 billion of the Corporation’s consolidated sales
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005,
and 2004, respectively.

The composition of the Corporati'on’s sales by
product group for each year, in millions of dollars,
is set forth below:

2006 2005 2004

Consumer and industrial
power tools and

product service $3,481.1 $3,640.0 $2,888.0

Lawn and garden products 457.8 518.2 339.2
Consumer and industrial ]

accessaries 475.1 4585 379.1

"Cleaning, automotive, lighting,

and household products 319.3 184.7 180.2
Security hardware 751.7 7451 730.1
Plumbing preducts 296.0 308.0 259.5
Fastening and

assembly systems 666.3 669.2 622.3

$6,447.3 $6,523.7 $5,398.4
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The Corporation markets its-products and services
in over 100 countries and has manufacturing sites
in 10 countries. Other than in the United States,
the Corporation does not conduct business in any
country in which its sales in that country exceed
109, .0f consolidated sales. Sales are attributed
to countries based on the location of customers.
The composition of the Corporation's sales to un-
affiliated customers between those in the United
States and those in other locations for each year,
in millicns of dollars, is set forth below:

2006 2005 2004
United States $4,149.9 $4,317.8 $3,442.6
Canada 356.5 335.1 249.4
. North America 4,506.4 46529 36920
Europe 13571 1,350.2 1,266.5
Other _ 5838 5206 4399

$6,447.3 $6,523.7 $5,398.4

The composition of the Corporation's property,
plant, and egquipment between those in the
United States and those in other countries as of
the end of each year, in mllhons of dollars, is set
forth below: :

2006 2005 2004
United States $281.9 $3283 $380.2
Mexico 1269 120.0 110.7

Other countries " 2194 2205 263.7
' $622.2 $668.8 $754.6

NOTE 19: LEASES

The Corporation leases certain service centers,
offices, warehouses, manufacturing facilities, and
equipment. Generally, the leases carry renewal
provisions and require the Corporation to pay main-
tenance costs. Rental payments may be adjusted
for increases in taxes and insurance above specified
amounts. Rental expense for 2006, 2005, and 2004
amounted to $101.3 million, $99.7 million, and
$92.6 million, respectively. Capital leases were
immaterial in amount. Future minimum payments
under non-cancelable operating leases with initial
or remaining terms of more than one year as of
December 31, 2006, in millions of dollars, were
as follows:

2007 $ 68.1
2008 , . ' 50.3
2009 ‘ 371
2010 ‘ 21.5
2011 10.0
Thereafter 9.9

$196.9




NOTE 20: RESTRUCTURING ACTIONS |

A summary of restructuring activity during the
three years ended December 31, 2006, in millions

of dollars is set forth below:

WRITE-DOWN
TO FAIR VALUE
LESS COSTS
' TO SELL
OF CERTAIN
! SEVERANCE LONG-LIVED -, OQTHER
BENEFITS ASSETS CHARGES TOTAL

Restructuring reserve at.

December 31, 2003 $426  $—  $il1$437
Reserves establlshed . .

“in 2004 . 5.2 — 2 54
Reversal of reserves (4.0) — —  (4.0)
Proceeds réceived in excess o o

" of the adjusted carrying : -

‘value of long-lived assets — (1.4) — (1.4
Utilization of reserves: .o ' .

Cash (24.9) — (D250

Non-cash - i4 = 14
Foreign currency translation . .1 — —
Restructuring reserve at : : S

December 31, 2004 19.0 - — 1.2 202
Utilization of reserves: . . '

Cash {138 - — —. (13.6)
Foreign currency translation (.1} — = (1)
Restructuring reserve at ) . ’

December 31,2005 .53 —_ 1.2 65
Reserves established ; o .

in 2006° . — 1.8 — 18
Reversal of reserves (1.8) —_, — (1.8)
Utilization, of reserves: .

Cash e - 8 (1.7)

Non:cash o= (1.8) — (1.8)
Foreign currency translation .2 — — 2
Restructuring reserve at = | ' .

December 31 2006 ' $ 28 $ — $ 4% 32

in 2004, -the Corporation recognized $5.4 million
of pre-tax restructuring and exit costs related to
actions taken in its Power Tools and Accessories
segment. The restructuring actions taken in 2004
principally reflected severarce benefits. .The $5. 4
million charge recognized during 2004 was offset,
however, by the reversal of $4.0 million of sever-
ance accruals establlshed as part of prevnously
prowded restructurlng reserves that were no longer
requiréd and $1.4 million representing the excess
of proceeds received on the sale of long-lived as:
sets, written down as part of restructuring actions,
over their adjusted carrying values.

! - L . \
< ) e
: . R ]

)

During 2006, 2005,; and 2004, the Corporation
paid -severance -and other exit costs of $1.7
million, $13.6 million, and*$25.0 million,
respectwely .

The Corporation antlcnpates that actions cov:
ered by the $3.2 million restructuring accrual at
December 31, 2006, will be completed in 2007.

The amounts reflected in the column titled “Write-
down to fair value less costs to sell of certain
long-lived assets,”'as included within this Note,
relating to reserves ,establish_ed- during the three
years ended December 31; 2006, represent
adjustments to'the carrying value of those long-
lived assets . ,

NOTE 21: OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME)

Other expéense (mcome) was $2.2 milliori in 2006,

$(51. 6) million in 2005, and $2.8 million in 2004.

During 2005, the Corporation received a payment
of $55.0 million relating to the settlement of envi-

ronmental and product |Iabl|lty coverage Iltlgatlon
with an insurer. : .

NOTE 22: LITIGATION AND
CONTINGENT LIiABILITIES

The Corporatidn is involved in various lawsuits in
the ordinary course of business. These lawsuits
primarily involve claims for damages arising out
of the use of the Corporation’s products and
allegatlons of patent and trademark infringement.
The Corporatlon also is involved in litigation and
administrative procéedings mvolwng employment
matters and commercial disputes. Some of these
lawsuits include claims for punitive as well as
compensatory damages The Corporation, usmg
current product sales data and historical trends,
actuarially calculates the estimate of its exposure
for product liability. The Corporatlon is ‘insured
for product liability claims, for amounts in excess
of establtshed deductibles and accrues for the
estimated |Iabl|lty up to the limits'of the deduct-
ibles. All other claims and lawsuits are handled
on a case-by-case basis.

The Corporatlon also is party o Iltlgatlon and
administrative proceedings with respect to claims
involving the discharge of hazardous substances
into the environment. Some of these assert
claims for damages and liability for remedial
investigations and clean-up costs with respect
to sites that have never been owned or operated
1 : . ' f ' ' "y
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by -the Corporation.but at which the Corporation
has been<identified as a potentially responsible
party. Other matters:involvé current and former
manufacturing facilities. :

The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and
the Santa Ana Regional Wateér Quality Board (the
Water Quality Board) have each- initiated admin-
istrative proceedings against the Corporation and
certain of the Corporatrons current or former
affiliates alleging that the Corporatlon and numer-
ous other defendants are responsible to investigate
and remedlate alleged groundwater contamination
in and 1djacent to a 160-acre property Iocated in
Rialto, California. The cities of Colton and Rialto,
as well as the West Valley Water District and the
Fontana Water Company, a private company, also
have initiated lawsuits against the Corporatlon
and certain of the Corporation’s former or current
affiliates in the Federal District Court for California,
Central Dlstrlct alleglng 5|mrlar cla|ms that the
Corporatlon i$ Ilable under the ‘Corhprehensive
Environmental Resporise, Compensatlon and
Liability Act of 1980, the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act, and state-law for the dlscharge
or release of hazardous substances into the enyi-
ronment and the contammahon caused by those
alleged releases All defendants have crossclaims
against one another in the federal lltlgatlon The
administrative proceedlngs and the lawsuits gen!
erally allege that West Coast Loadlng Corporation
(WCLC), a defunct company that operated in Rialto
between 1952 and 1957, and an as yet undeﬁned
number of other defendants are responsubte for
the release of perchioraté and solvents into the
groundwater basm that supplies drlnklng water to
the referenced three munrcupal water suppllers and
one private water company in Callforma and that
the Corporatlon and certain of the Corporatlon S
current or former affiliates are liable as a “suc-
cessor” of WCLC. Judgmernit has$ been entered in
favor of aII ‘defendants, including the Corporatlon
and certaln of the Corporatlon s current and for-
mer affiliates, in the federal lawsuit brought by
the City of Colton as to Colton’s federal ¢laims.
The remaining state claims and the crossctaims
in that lawsuit have been dismissed. by the court
on. jurisdictional.grounds. The City of .Colton and
several co-defendants have appealed the dismissal
of these claims. The City of Colton alsc has re-filed
its claims in.California state court and:filed a new
federal action arising out of the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act of 1980, the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act, and state law. Certain defen-
dants have crossclaimed against other defendants
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in the new federal action and have asserted claims
against The United States Department of Defense,
Environmental Protection Agency and the City of
Rialto. The Corporation believes that neither the
facts nor the law support an allegation that the
Corporation is responsible for the contamination
and is vigorously contesting these claims. -

For sites never operated by the Corporation, the
Corporation makes an assessment of the costs
involved based on environmental studies, prior
experience at similar sites, and the experience of
other named parties. The Corporation also consid-
ers the ability of other parties to share costs, the
percentage of the Corporation’s exposure relative
to alt other parties, and the effects of inflation
on these estimated costs. For matters associated
with properties currently operated by the Cor-
poration, the Corporation makes an assessment
as to whether an investigation and remediation
wouid be required under applicable federal and
state laws. For matters associated with properties
previously sold or operated by the Corporation,
the Corporation considers any applicable terms

.of sale and applicable federal and state laws to

determine if it has any remaining liability. If it is
determined that the Corporation has potential |i-
ability for properties currently owned or previously
sold, an estimate is made of the total costs of
investigation and remediation and other potenhal
costs associated with the site.

As of December 31, 2006, the Corporation’s
aggregate probable exposure with respect to
environmental liabilities, for which accruals have
been established in the consolidated financial
statements, was $76.4 million. These accru-
als are reflected in other-current liabilities and
other fong-term liabilities.in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. _ '

During 2003, the Corporation received notices
of proposed adjustments from the United States
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) in connection with
audits of thé tax years 1998 through 2000. The
principal adjustment proposed by the IRS consists
of the disallowance of a capital loss deduction
taken in the Corporatlon s tax returns and interest
on the deficiency. Prior to receiving the notices of
proposed adjustments from the IRS, the Corpora-
tion filed a petition against the IRS'in the Federal
District Court of Maryland (the Court) seeking
refunds for a carryback of a portion of the afore-
mentioned capital loss deduction. The IRS sub-
sequently filed a counterclaim to the Corporation’s
petition. In October 2004, the Court granted the
Corporation’s motion for summary judgment on its




complaint against the IRS and dismissed the IRS |

counterclaim. In its opinion, the Court ruled in the
Corporation’s favor that the capital losses cannot

be disallowed by the IRS..In December 2004, the. .

IRS appealed the Court’s decision in favor of the
Corporation to the United States Circuit Court of
Appeals for the Fourth Circuit (the FourthiCircuit
Court). In February 2006, the Fourth Circuit Court
decided two of three issues in the Corporation’s”
favor and remanded the third issue for-trial in
the Court. The Corporation vigorously disputes
the position taken by the IRS in this matter. The
Corporation 'has provided adequate reserves in
the event that the IRS prevails in its disallowance
of the previously described capital loss and the
imposition of related interest. Shouldrthe IRS
prevail in its disallowance of the capital loss
deduction and imposition of related.interest, it
would result.in a cash outflow by the Corporation
of approximately $170 million. If the Corpora-
tion prevails; it would result in the Corporation
receiving a-refund of taxes previously. paid, of
approxlmately $50 million, plus interest.

The Corporatlon s estimate of the costs assouated
with product Ilablllty clalms enwronmental expo-
Sures, mcome tax matters and other’ Iegal pro-
ceedlngs is accrued if, in management s judgment,
the likelihood of a loss | s probable and the’ amount
of the loss c¢an'be reasonably estlmated

‘accorcl_ingly, the ultimaté resolution of these mat:

. other legal proceedings that are expected to have

These accrued liabilities are not discounted. In-
surance recoveries for environmental and certain
general liability claims’ have not been recognlzed
until realized. .

In the opinion of management, amounts accrued
for exposures relating to product liability claims;
environmental matters; -income tax matters, i
and other. legal proceedings are adequate and,

ters is not expected to have a material adverse
effect on the Corporation’s consolidated financial
statements. As of December 31, 2006, the Cor-
poration had no known probable but inestimable
exposures relating to product liability claims,
environmental matters, income tax matters, or

a material adverse‘effect-onthe Corporation. There

_can be no assurance, however, that unanticipated
~ events will not require the-Corporation to increase

the amount it has accrued for any matter or accrue

" for a mattér that has not been previously accrued

becatise it was not considered probable. While it is
possible‘that the increase or establishment of an
accrual could have a material adverse effect on-the
financial results for any particular fiscal'quarter or
year, in the opinion of management there exists
no kriown potential-exposure that would have a
fnaterial adverse effect on the financial condition
or ‘on the ‘financial results: of the Corporation
beyond any such fiscal quarter'or year. - - ,
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NOTE 23: QUARTERLY RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

L
+

_FIRST SECOND- THIRD FOURTH

{DOLLARS IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 QUARTER. +- QUARTER . QUARTER - QUARTER
Sales . . ) ] $1,5289 - $1,696.9 $1,6102 , . $1;611.3
Gross margln ‘ P b o 5436 - _  603.1 . 5581 .., +.536.7
Net eafnings ' 1 '_' ' 1131 -1522 . . 1251 ~95.7
Net earnings.per common share—ba51c . 1490 % 203 8 179 $ 142
Met earnings'per common share—diluted ¢« - % 1457 % 198 % 1747-. § 138
. - — - — - —— —

' g T FIRST -t ,ISECOND:,  THIRD" “ FOURTH
YEAR END"D DECEMBER 31 2005 «  QUARTER QUARTER ; ~ QUARTER _- QUARTER
Sales .. ', . W e * -$1,5193 1$1,698.8 - . $1,575:6 . ' $1,730.0
Gross margsn AERTRRS P , 535.5 5995, 562.1." 620.0
Net earmngs from contmumg operatlons ‘ s ;11440 .150.9 137.5, 99.8
Net earnings - TR ) - 1448 150.9 137.8 98.e
Net earnings from contlnumg operatlons per commen share basic *$ 179+ % 189 % 1737 v % 1.29
Net-earnings.per cormmon share — basic- |+ ' 1.801 1.89 174 1 1.27
Net earnings from continuing operations per commen share dlluted $°- 174 $ 184°' “$ 169" T % 1.26
Net earnlngs per cammon share ~ diluted. Pt R 75 ' - L 84 '-' R 70~" - 1.24

3! K

As more fuIIy descnbed in Note 1 the Corpora
tion adopted SFAS. No. 123R effective January 1,
2006, using the modlﬂgd retrospective method
of adoption whereby the Corporation restated all
prior periods presented based on.the;amounts
previously,.recognized under SFAS No. 123 for
purposes of. pro ‘forma disclosures., The above
quarterly results for 2005 reflect the restated
amounts upon adoptuon of SFAS No. 123R.

As more fully described in Note 21, net earnings
for the first quarter of 2005 included a $55.0 mil-
lion ($35.8 million after-tax) favorable settlement
of environmental and product liability coverage

Lo 1 .
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Iltlgatton with an insurer.. As more fuIIy described
in Note 3; net-earnings for the fourth'quarter of
2005 included a $.1 million loss on the sale of
discontinued operatlons As more fully described
in Note 12 net earnings. for the fourth_quarter
of 2005 mcluded $51 2 mllllon of lncremental
tax expense resultlng from the repatrlatlon of
$888.3 million of forengn earmngs associated
with the AJCA. V'

Earnings per common share are computed in-
dependently for each of the quarters presented.
Therefore, the sum of the quarters may not be
eqgual to the full year earnings per share.




~ We have audited the ac¢ompénying consolidated balance sheet of The Black
* & Decker Corporation and,Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,

PORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC .
ACCOUNTING FIRM ON. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . =

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors | s PR
of The Black & Decker Corporation: e

f i

and the related consolidated statements of earnings, stockholders’ equity,and

. cash flows for each of thethree years.in the period ended December 31, 2006. ) B A

-1

Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Indéx at

Item-15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the . . |
Corporation’s management. Our responsublllty is to express an oplmon on these | -~ '
fmam:lal statements and schédule based on our audits.

' £ o

. We conducted oour audits in accordance with the standards of the Publlc Com- : . . -.
~ pany Accountlng Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that.” y
- we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether . -

the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evuden‘ce supporting the amounts and disclosures -
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing'the accounting

- principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation: We believe that our ]
audits prowde a reasonable basis for our apinion, S

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of The Black
& Decker Corporation and Subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and
the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 20086, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related

. financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial

statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the informa-
tion set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1, the accompanying financial statements have been restat-
ed for the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R),
“Share-based Payment”, using the modified retrospective method. Also, as
discussed in Note 1, the Corporation adopted the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans”, as of December 31, 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of The Black &
Decker Corporation and Subsidiaries’ internal controi over financial reporting

as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 14, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

Gt ¥ MLLP

Baltimore, Maryland
February 14, 2007
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND
DISAGREEMENTS WITH
ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not appficable. ..’

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND
PROCEDURES

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS
AND PROCEDURES

Under the supervision and with the participation
of Corporation’s management, including the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the
Corporation evaluated the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Corporation's disclosure
controls and procedures as of December 31, 2006.

Based upon that evaluation, the Corporation’s :

Chief Executive QOfficer and Chief Financial Officer

concluded that the Corporation’s disclosure controls,

and procedures are effective.

I . -1
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_‘MA"NAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

. The Corporatlon s management is responsible for

estabhshlng and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting. Under the super-
vision and with the participation of Corporation’s
management, including the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, the Corporation evalu-

. ated the effectiveness of the design and operation
- of its internal control over financial reporting based
. .on.the framework in Internal Controf - Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
QOrganizations of the Treadway Commission. Based
on that evaluation, the Corporation’s Chief Execu-
tive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded
that the Corporation’s internal control over finan-
cial reportmg was effectwe as of December 31,

. 2006.

Ernst & Young LLP, the Corporation's indepen-
dent registered public accounting firm, audited
management’s assessment of the effectiveness

‘of internal control over financial reporting and,

based on that audit, issued the report set forth

- on the following page.

' CHANGES IN INTERNAL .CONTROL

OVER.FINANCIAL REPORTING

There were no changes in the Corporation’s inter-
nal controls over financial reporting during the
quarterly perlod ended December 31, 2006, that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely
to materially affect, the Corporation’s internal

- control over financial reporting.




: : REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

o ... To the Stockholders and Board of Directors =
oL T of . The Black & Decker Corporation: ':
) Lo

o I T I g o - . S B
.\We have .\atf_dited_'managem'ent:s.as_s‘ess nent, included in Management's Report op-lnterna[;-,."
- Control Over Financial Reporting’ that The Black & Decker Corporation and Subsidiaries -

maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,

based oni'ctiteria established in‘Interial Control—lntegrated Framework'issued by the
. - Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria).

* The Black & Decker Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining effective

“internal contro! over financial reporting and for its assessment of the'effectiveness of ~ °

* internal control overifinancial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinionon "’
management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal
control dver financial reporting Based on our audit.’* ™ ' ' " - o : ‘

LIS +
. .

14

We conducted our auditin accordance with the standards of the Public Company ‘

Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Thofse '$tandards require that we plan.and '

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control  ~

over financial reporting was maintained:in all material respects. Our audit included obtain-'

ing an understanding of “internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s

. assesSment, testing andsevallating the design and operating effectiveness of ‘internal” ~ «. '
control, and performing such other.procedures as we considered necessary in the® = + .

circumstances. We-believe that our-audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internai control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide .
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation

of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted X
accounting principles. A company’s internal contro| over. financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in réasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary

to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with, generally accepted ac-
counting principles, and that receipts and expenditures-of -the company are being made -
only in accordance with authorizations of managément and directors of the company; and =~
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized £, -
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect

on the financial statements. L S Lot :

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cont_rBI over financial reporting méx not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any évaluation of effectiveness to .
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance'with‘ the policies or procedures
may deteriorate, o ‘ S

=) ' PRI o
In our opinion, management’s assessment that The Black & Decker Corporation and Sub-
sidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
20086, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our
opinion, The Black & Decker Corporation and Subsidiaries maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,
based on the COSO criteria.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet of The Black & Decker
Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consol-
idated statements of earnings, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2006, and our report dated February 14, 2007
expressed an ungualified opinion thereon.

Sanct ¥ MLLP

Baltimore, Maryland
February 14, 2007
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ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, .. .
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND |
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

Information reqmred under this Item wrth respect
to Directors is contained in the Corporatlon s Proxy
Statement for.the Annual Meetmg of Stockhold-

ers to be held April 13, 2007, under the captlons .

“Election of Dlrectors" “Corporate Governance”,
and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Report
ing Compliancé” and is incorporated herein
by reference.

Information requred under this Iten1 :Ar'ltn‘resioeot
to Executive Officers of the Corporataon is included
in Item.1 of Part I of this report.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE -~ .
COMPENSATION . - o

’

Information reqmred under thls [tem is contained
in the Corporation’s Proxy Statement for the An.
nual Meeting. of Stockholders to be held April 19, -
2007, under thé captions “Corporate’ Governance
and ' ExecutweCompensatlon and |smcorporated
herein by reference .
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP .
OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS
AND MANAGEMENT AND- RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
| 3 -

informatlon reqwred under thls ltemis contamed
in the Corporatian’s, Proxy Statement for the

Annual Meeting 'of. Stockholders to be held |
April 19, 2007, under the’ captlons “Votmg '

Secur|t|es" “Securlty Ownership by Management
and “Equity Compensation Plan Information” ‘and
is incarporated herein by reference.
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PART m.o.

: ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSH!PS
AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS,
"AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

‘ l_nformation reqi.lired u'nder this Item is contained

in the Corporation's Proxy Statement for the An-
nual Meeting of Stockholders to be held Aprit 19,

. 2007,.under the caption “Corporate Governance”

and is mcorporated hereln by reference

ITEM 14 'PRINCIPAL AC_COUNTING

. FEES AND SERVICES

. Information required.under this Item is contained

_tn the Corporation’s Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held

~April 19, 2007, under the caption “Ratification

of the Selection of the Independent Registered
‘Public Accounting Firm™ and is incorporated herein
by reference. -

-~ ' - .
by T : '

i ot




.PART IV T

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SCHEDULES. .~

(a) List of Flnanmal Statements,
Financial Statement Schedules,
and ‘Exhibits . .

(1) LIST OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

The following consolidated financial statements of
the Corporation and its subsidiaries are included
in ltem 8 of Part 1l of thls report

Consolldated Statement of Earnmgs years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004: ~

Consolidated Balance Sheet - December 31, 2006
and 2005.

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders Equity
- years' ended December 31,2006, 2005, and
2004, e

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows - years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements s,

Report of Independent Registered Public Account-

ing Firm on Conslolidated'Financi_al Statements.

(2) LIST OF FINANCIAL S ‘
STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following financia] statement schedules ‘of

the Corporatlon and its subsidiaries : are mcluded

herein:

Schedule Il = Vatuatlon and Quallfymg Accounts
and Reserves. -

All other schedules for which provision is made
in the applicable accounting regulations of. the
Commission are not required under the related
instructions or are mappllcable and therefore
have been omitted. "

r

(3) LIST OF EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are either mcluded in thls
report or incorporated herein bysreference as
indicated below: :

b . oo

Exhlbit 3(a) ,

Articles of Restatement of the Charter of the Cor-
poration, included in the Corporation’s.Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June
29, 1997, are incorporated herein by reference.

Exhibit ad) N e A T L
'Indenture between the Corporatlon and The Bank

Exhibit3(b). . o . .~ : v
Bylaws of the Corporatlon as amended included
in the Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8- K
filed with the Commission on April.28, 2005; are
incorporated herein by reference. Ly
Exhibit 4(a) Sy
Indenture dated as:of -March 24, 1993,Lby and
between the Corporation and Security Trust Com-
pany, National Association, as Trustee, included
in the Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on March 26, 1993sis
mcorporated herem by reference:, :

]
'.‘I.l,l
-

SRR t-a_m-!-*

Exhlblt 4(b) Lo

Indenture dated as of June 26, 1998 by and
among Black & Deoker Holdings Inc.! as Issuer,
the Corporatlon as Guarantor, and- The First-Na-
tional-Bank of Chicago, as Trustee, included'in thé
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 28, 1998, is mcorporated
herein by reference C e e et
Exhibit 4(c)(1) = - b T
Credit Agreemient, dated as of October 29, 2004
among the Corporatlon Black & Decker Hold-
ings, Inc., as Initial Borrowers;, ‘the initial ienders
named thereln as Initial tenders, Citibank, N.A.,

as Administrative Agent, JPMorgan Chase’ Bank
as Syndlcatlon Agent, and Bank &f Amerlca N.A,

BNP Paribas and Cornmerzbank AG, as Co-Docu:
mentatlon Agents, 'included in 'the Corporat:on S
Current Report on Form‘8-K filed with the Comi-
mission on November 4, 2004, is mcorporated

herein by reference. e
;- IR

R

Exhlblt 4{c)(2) N b
Amendment, dated June 16, 2006 “fo the Credit
Agreement dated as of October 29, 2008, among
the Corporation, Black-& Decker Luxembourg
S.ar.L, Black & Decker Luxembourg Finance
S.C.A., the banks, financial institutions and other
mstntutuonal Ienders and |ssu|ng banks ||sted on
the sngnature pages thereof and Cltlbank N.A,,

as administrative agent, mcluded in the, Corpo-
ration's Quarterly Report on Form 10:Q for the
quarter ended Ju|y2 2006, is lncorporated hereln
by reference , o .

AR L

S o

of ‘New York, as-Trustee, dated as of June 5,
2001, included in the Corporatlon s Reg|stratson
Statement on Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-64790), is
incorperated herein by reference.
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Exhibit 4({e)

Indenture, dated as of October 18, 2004, between
the Corporation and The Bank of New York, as
Trustee, included in the Corporation’s Current
Report on Form-8-K filed with the Commission
on- October 20, 2004, is* mcorporated herein
by reference. s

Exhibit 4(f) oo

Indenture,“dated as of November 16 2006, be
tween the Corporation and The Bank of New York,
as Trustee "~

Exhlblt 4(g) A :
First Supplemental lndenture dated as of Novem
ber 16, 2006, between the Corporation and The

Bank of New York, as Trustee.
|

The Corporatron agrees o furnlsh a copy of any
other documents with respect to. long-term debt
instruments of the Corporatron and its sub5|d|ar
ies upon request. :

-

. ' v T

Exhlblt 10(a)

The Black & Decker Corporation Deferred Coin-
pensation Plan for Non-Employee :Directors, as
amended, included in the Corporatlons Annual
Report on Form.10-K for the year ended December
31, 2005, is incorporated herein by reference
Exhibit "10(b) . e

The Black & Decker Non Employee Dlrectors Stock
Plan, as-amended and restated, included in the
Corporataon s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
-year ended December 31, 2005, is rncorporated
herein by reference

1

Exhibit 10(c)

The Black & Decker 1989 Stock Option: Plan, as
amended, included in the Corporation’s Quarterly
Reporton Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March
30, 1997, is mcorporated hereln by reference.”,

Exhlblt 10(d)

The Black & Decker 1992 Stock Option Plan as
amended, mcluded in the Corporation’s Annual
Report on Form 10 K for the year ended December
31, 2005, is mcorporated herem by reference
Exhibit10(e) = T ’
The Black & Decker 1995 Stock Option Plan for
Non-Employee Directors, as amended, included
in the Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1998 is incor-
porated hereln by reference., e

-

-

' i, .
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"-Exhibit 10(¢f)
The Black & Decker 1996 Stock Optlon Plan, as
amendéd, mcluded in the Corporatron s Annual
Report on Form 10-K:for the year énded December
31, 2005 |s mcorporated herem by reference
- & t P -

Exhibit 10(g) T e
The Black & Decker 2003 Stock Option Plan, as
amended

SR S '
Exhibit 10(h) - R i
The Black & Decker Corporatron 2004 Restricted
Stock Plan, included as- Exhibit- B to the. Proxy
Statement, dated March 16, 2004, for the 2004
Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Reglstrant
is mcorporated herem by reference -
Exhibit 10(|)
The Black & Decker Performance Eqwty Plan as
amended, included in the Corporation’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2005, is rncorporated herein by reference.

Exhlblt 10(]) .
Form of Restricted Share Agreement relatlng to
The Black & Decker Corporation 2004 Restricted
Stock Plan, included in the Corporation’s Current
Report on Form 8-K flled with the Commission
on Aprll 28, 2005, is incorporated herein by
reference. S LI A L :
ot .f.‘t-' TRER L
Exhibit 10(k) '
Form of Nonqualified Stock Optron Agreement
with executivé officers relating to the Corporation’s
stock option plans, included in the Corporation’s
Current Report on Form &K' filed with the Com-
mission on April 28, 2005, is incorporated herein

by reference. Sy o1 s

-

Exhlblt 10(I) :

The Black & 'Decker Executlve Arinual - Incentive
Plan, as amended’ and restated included in the
Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2005, is mcorporated
here:n by reference T

I“,

Exhlblt 10(m) - RN -

The Black & Decker Management Annual incentive
Plan, as amended, included in the Corporation’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December ‘31, 2005 is mcorporated herern
by reference' ¥ !

N ,-, -

S I i
Exhibit 10(n)(1) - . o

The Black & Decker Supplemental Pension Plan
as amended and restated, included in the Corpo-
ration's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2005, is incorporated herein
by reference.




Exhibit 10(n)(2)

First Amendment tc The Black & Decker Supple
mental Pension Plan, included in the Corpora-
tion's Quarterly Report on 10-Q for the quarter
ended April 2, 2006, is incorporated herern by
reference.

Exhlblt 10(0) i

The Black & Décker Supplementa| Retlrement
Savings Plan, as amended and restated, included
in the Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2005, is incor-
porated herein by refe_rence

Exhibit 10(p)

The Black & Decker Supplemental Executive Re-
tirement Plan, as amended and restated, included
in the Corporation’s Annual Report on Form-10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2005, is incor-
porated herein by reference.., . v
Exhibit 10(q)

The Black & Decker Executwe Life Insurance Pro
gram, as amended, included in the Corporation's
Quarterly Report on'Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended April 4, 1993, is iincorporated herein
by reference.

Exhibit 10(r)

The Black & Decker Executive Salary Continuance
Plan, as amended and restated, included in the
Corporatlon s Annual.Report on Form 10-K. for the
year ended December 31,"2005,"is mcorporated
herein by reference. '

Exhibit 10(5) '
Description of the Corporation’s policy and .
procedures for relocation of emstmg employees
(individual transfers), included in the Corpora-
tion's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1991 lsmcorporated herean
by reference '

Exhibit 10(t) - I e -
Description of the Corporation’s pollcy and proce-
dures for relocation of new employees, included -
in the Corporation’s Annua! Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1991, is incor-
porated herein by reference.

Exhibit 10(u)
Description of certain incidental benefits provided

to executive officers of the Corporation, included .

in the Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1997, is incor-
porated herein by reference.

Exhibit 10(v)

Form of Severance Benefits. Agreement by and
between the Corporatlon and approxlmately 17
of its key employees, included .in the Corpora-
tion’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2005, is incorporated hereln
by reference.

Exhibit 10(w) . 4 :
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement
dated.as of February 9, 2006, .by andbetween
the Corporation and Nolan D"Archibald included
in the Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2005 is |ncor
porated herein by reference. -

Exhibit 10(x) LR
Severance Benefits Agreement, dated February 10,
2006, by and between the Corporation and John
W. Schiech, included in the Corporation’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended: December
31, 2005, is incorporated herein by reference. -

Exhibit 10(y) ERdE
Severance 'Benefits Agreement dated February
10, 2006, by and between the Corporation and
Charles E. Fenton, included in the Corporation’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005, is incorporated herein
by reference.

' fExhlblt 10(:)
.Severance Benefits Agreement dated February
"10, 2006, by and between the Corporation and
_ 'Michael D. Mangan, included in the Corporation’s
. ~Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2005, is incorporated herein
by reference, ’ I -

Exhibit’ 10(aa)
. Severance Benefits Agreement dated February

10, 2006, by and between the Corporatlon and
Paul F McBrrde

Exhlblt 10(bb) ‘
Severance Benefits Agreement, dated February
10, 2006, by and between the Corporation and
Thomas D. Koos, included in the Corporation’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005, is incorporated herein
by reference.
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Exhibit 10(cc) )

The Black & Decker Corporation ‘Corporate Gov
ernance Policies 'and Procedures ‘Statement, as
amended, included in the Corporation's Current
Report-on Form 8-K filed with the Commission
on April 21, 2006, is incorporated herein by
reference. '

ltems 10(a) through 10(cc) constitute manage-
ment contracts and compensatory plans and
arrangements required to be filed as exhibits under
itern 14(c) of this Report '

Exhibit 21 :
List of Subsidiaries., ey

Exhlblt 23

Consent:of Independent Reglstered Publrc
Accountmg Firm. .
Exhlblt.24 I
Powers of Attorney.

Exhibit 31.1

Chief Executive Officer's Certlflcatlon Pursuant
to Rule 13a- 14(a)/15d-14(a) and pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002. . .

Exhibit 31.2 '

Chief Financial Officer's Certification Pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a)/15-d-14(a) and pursuant to Sec-
tlon 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 32.1

Chief Executive Officer’s Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Exhibit 32 2

Chief Financial Officer's Certlfucatlon Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 806 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

All other-items are “not applicable” or “none”.

(b)Exhibit's

The exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulatnon

S-K are filed herewith.

(¢)Financial Statement Schedules
and Other Financial Statements

The Financial Statement Schedule required by
Regulation S-X is filed herewith.

SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

The Black & Decker Corporatlon and Sub5|d|ar|es
(Millions of Dollars) '

BA_LANCE ADDITIONS OTHER

AT CHARGED TO CHANGES BALANCE
o - ! . BEGINNING COSTS AND ADD . AT END
DESCRIPTION . . , OF PERIOD EXPENSES DEDUCTIONS (DEDUCT) OF PERIOD
Year Ended December 31, 2006 ) . . o S . -
Reserve for doubtful accounts and cash discounts $45.1 $101.5 . $104.1<a) $2.0 (b) $44.5
Year Ended Decermnber 31, 2005 ot . . - ' .
Reserve' for doubtful accounts and cash discounts $52.1 $87.2 $928(@) 1 $(1.4)b). $45.1
Year Ended December 31, 2004 : , '
Reserve for doubtful accounts and cash discounts C %474 $86.3 $93.0(a) $11.4 (b) $52.1

{a) Accounts written off during the year and cash chscounts taken by customers.

4

(b) Primarily |ncludes currency translation adjustments and amounts assocuated wuth acquired and dlvested businesses.
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Pursuant to the req'uirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE BLACK & DECKER CORPORATION

Date;: February 14, 2007 | By % / /fw

Nolan D. Archibald
Chairman, President, and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securitiés Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below on
February 14, 2007, by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

Principal Executive Officer

Nolan D. Archibald Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Financial Officer

WBO—;@Y—  February 14. 2007
S

Michael D. Mangan enior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Frincipal Accounting Officer

Chrlstlna M. McMuIJen 35

Vice Président and Controller

This report has been signed by the foliowing directors, constituting a majority of the Board of Directors,
by Nolan D. Archibald, Attorney-in-Fact.

Nolan D. Archibald Manuel A. Fernandez
Barbara L. Bowles Benjamin H. Griswoid, |V
George W, Buckley Anthony Luiso

M. Anthony Burns Mark H. Willes

Kim B. Clark

By%/ / /ﬂw Date: Egb[ua[y. 14, 2007

Nolan D. Archibald
Attorney-in-Fact
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Exhibit 31.1

THE BLACK & DECKER CORPORATION
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Nolan D. Archibald, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Black & Decker Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report,;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15({f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the pericd in which this report is being prepared,

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internat control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and repcrt financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

2 2 Attt/

MNolan D. Archibald
Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer
February 14, 2007
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Exhibit 31.2

THE BLACK & DECKER CORPORATION
CERTIFICATIONS

Michael D. Mangan, certify that:
| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Black & Decker Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal contro! over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaiuation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and matenai weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasconably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
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Michaet D. Mangan
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
February 14, 2007




STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION ‘ ‘

This report contains “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of Section 27A
of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that
are intended to come within the safe harbor
protection provided by those statutes. By their
nature, all forwarddooking statements involve
risks and uncertainties, and actual results

may differ materially from those contemplated
by the forward-looking statements. Several
factors that could materially affect Black &
Decker's actual results are identified in ltem
1A of Black & Decker's Annual Report on Form
10K for the year ended December 31, 2006,
as well as in Black & Decker's other periodic
filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

FORMFL0ZK]

This 2006 Annual Report, when delivered to
stockholders in connection with the 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, contains in
its back pocket and incorporates by reference
Black & Decker's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2006, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

JANNUALYMEETING)

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders will
be held on April 19, 2007, at the Sheraton
Baltimore North Hotel, 903 Dulaney Valley
Road, Towson, MD 21204, at 9:00 AM.,
Eastern Time.

The Black & Decker Corporation
701 East Joppa Road
Towson, MD 21286 {(U.S.A)

Telephone: (410} 716-3900
Web site: www.bdk.com

INVESTOR]RELATIONSTAND]PUBLICATIONS]
Telephone: {410) 716-3979

Web site: www.bdk.com

E-mail: investor.relations@bdk.com

Order Publications
Telephone: {800) 892-3042 or (410) 716-2914

[CORPORATE{GOVERNANCE!

Black & Decker’s Corporate Governance
Policies and Procedures Statement is

available free of charge online at www.bdk.com
or in print by calling (800} 992-3042 or

(410) 716-2914. The Statement contains
charters of the standing committees of the
Board of Directors, the Code of Ethics and
Standards of Conduct, and the Code of

Ethics for Senior Financial Officers.

\TRANSEERJAGENTREGISTRARYAND)
DIVIDEND]DISBURSINGIAGENTS ‘
The Bank of New York

Investor Services Department

P.O. Box 11258

Church Street Station

New York, NY 10286

Telephone: {800) 432-0140
Qutside U.S.A. (call “collect™:
+1(610) 382-7833

Web site: www.stockbny.com
E-mail: shareowners@bankofny.com

Address Changes and Certificate
Transfers ar Replacements

The Bank of New York

Receive and Deliver Department

P.0. Box 11002

Church Street Station .

. New York, NY 10286

[EUECTRONICIDELIVERYJOFJANNUAL
S QD Gy SEUETES

If Black & Decker stock is registered in your
namets) or you are enrolled in the Black &
Decker Retirement Savings Plan, you may
arrange to receive the Corporation’s annual
reports and proxy statements online at
www.giveconsent.com/bdk.

[CHANGE{OFJADDRESSDIVIDENDS]

If your Black & Decker stock is registered in
your name(s), notify The Bank of New York of a
change of address. If your stock is registered
in your name(s), you may have dividends

sent electronically to a checking or savings
account, and you are eligible to participate

in the Black & Decker Dividend Reinvestment
Plan. For additional information, contact

The Bank of New York.

TRADEMARKS

Use of ® or ™ in this annual report indicates
trademarks owned by The Black & Decker
Corporation and its subsidiaries.

CTEENER GEESEED (RIS
[ACCOUNTINGIFIRM)

Ernst & Young LLP

621 East Pratt Street

Baltimore, MD 21202

Telephone: (410} 539-7940

EQUALYORPORTUNITY}
Black & Decker is an Equal Opportunity/
Affirmative Action employer.







